
 
 

CABINET 

GWYNEDD COUNCIL 
 

 

DATE Tuesday, 3rd November, 2020 

TIME 1.00 pm 

LOCATION Virtual Meeting  

CONTACT POINT Annes Siôn 

01286 679490 

cabinet@gwynedd.llyw.cymru 

 

GWYNEDD COUNCIL CABINET MEMBERS 
 

Members 

Dyfrig L. Siencyn Leader 

Dafydd Meurig Deputy Leader, Cabinet Member for 
Adults, Health and Wellbeing 

Craig ab Iago Cabinet Member for Housing 

Gareth Wyn Griffith Cabinet Member for Environment 

Nia Wyn Jeffreys Cabinet Member for Corporate 
Support 

Dilwyn Morgan Cabinet Member for Children and 
Young People 

Gareth Thomas Cabinet Member for Economic 
Development and Community 

Ioan Thomas Cabinet Member for Finance 

Catrin Elen Wager Cabinet Member for Highways and 
Municipal 

Cemlyn Rees Williams Cabinet Member for Education 

 

Complete Agenda



 

 
 

AGENDA 
 

 Item Submitted 
by 

Officer Page 

1   APOLOGIES 

 

   

2   DECLARATION OF PERSONAL 
INTEREST 

 

   

3   URGENT ITEMS 

 

   

4   MATTERS ARISING FROM OVERVIEW 
AND SCRUTINY 

Cyng / Cllr 
Paul 
Rowlinson 

 3 - 
150 

 YSGOL ABERSOCH 

 
   

5   MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON 
13 OCTOBER 2020 

 

  151 - 
161 

6   ANNUAL EQUALITY REPORT 2019/20 

 

Cyng / Cllr 
Nia Jeffreys 

Delyth 
Williams 

162 - 
210 

7   CODE OF CONDUCT FOR STAFF 

 

Cyng / Cllr 
Nia Jeffreys 

Eurig 
Williams 

211 - 
216 

8   APPOINT THREE COMMUNITY 
ENGAGEMENT OFFICER TO ASSIST 
WITH WORKING DERIVING FROM THE 
PANDEMIC 

 

Cyng / Cllr 
Gareth 
Griffith 

Dafydd Wyn 
Jones 

217 - 
221 



GWYNEDD COUNCIL CABINET  
 

Report to a meeting of Gwynedd Council Cabinet 

 

 

Date of meeting:  3 NOVEMBER 2020 

 

Scrutiny Member:  Councillor Paul Rowlinson, Chair of the Education and 

Economy Scrutiny Committee 

  

Contact officer:  Vera Jones – Democracy and Language Services 

Manager 

 

Contact Number:   32267 

 

Subject: Referral back to the Cabinet by the Scrutiny 

Committee –  

Cabinet Decision on 15/09/20, Item 5: Ysgol Abersoch  
 

 

THE DECISION SOUGHT 

 

That the Cabinet reconsiders its decision to hold a statutory consultation on the 

proposal to close Ysgol Abersoch, following the Education and Economy 

Committee's decision on 08/10/20 to refer the matter back to the Cabinet. The 

Cabinet is asked to consider whether or not amendments should be made to the 

decision prior to adopting the final decision 

 

 

REASONS FOR THE NEED FOR A DECISION 

 

In accordance with section 7.25 d of the Council's constitution: 

 

“If, having considered the decision, the Scrutiny Committee is still concerned 

about it, then it may refer it back to the decision making body for 

reconsideration, setting out in writing the nature of its concerns or refer the 

matter to Full Council. If referred to the decision maker they shall then reconsider 

within a further 15 clear working days, amending the decision or not, before 

adopting a final decision.” 

 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

 

INTRODUCTION AND RELEVANT CONSIDERATIONS 

 

Page 3

Agenda Item 4



BACKGROUND 

1. The Cabinet’s decision regarding Item 5: Ysgol Abersoch, at the meeting 

held on 15/09/20, was called in for scrutiny by the Education and 

Economy Scrutiny Committee. That decision was:- 

"Permission was granted to hold a statutory consultation, in accordance 

with the requirements of section 48 of the School Standards and 

Organisation (Wales) Act 2013, on the proposal to close Ysgol Abersoch on 

31 August 2021 and to provide a place for the pupils at Ysgol Sarn Bach 

from 1 September 2021 onwards". 

 

2. This request, in accordance with Section 7.25 of the Council's Constitution, 

was made by Councillors Paul Rowlinson (Chair of the Scrutiny 

Committee), Dewi Roberts and Elwyn Jones within the necessary 

requirements and timeframe. 

 

  

3. The reasons for calling in, namely the aspects of the decision that it is 

considered should be scrutinised, have been noted as follows: 

 

“Owing to the COVID situation and legal guidelines and the Education 

Department's policies, it is not possible to hold meetings in the usual manner 

and it is impossible to hold meetings with some people who have a keen 

interest in the matter. The Head teacher was off work during the period. 

Therefore, continuing with the process under these circumstances was 

unfair for the school and community.  According to the school's 

representatives, it has not been registered as a Rural School and we 

question why this is the case. Some believe that small schools should not be 

closed without scrutinising the decision”. 

 

 

4. A meeting of the Education and Economy Scrutiny Committee was held 

on 8 October 2020. The members of the scrutiny Committee decided to 

refer the matter back to the Cabinet for further consideration for the 

following reasons:  

 

The scrutiny committee remained concerned about the situation and, 

therefore referred the matter back to the Cabinet for reconsideration for 

the following reasons: 

  

 Owing to the COVID situation and legal guidelines and the 

Education Department's policies, it is not possible to hold meetings 

in the usual manner and it is impossible to hold meetings with some 

people who have a keen interest in the matter. It is also impossible 

to hold public meetings in the community as is usual to discuss and 

respond to the consultation. 

Page 4



 The Head teacher was off work during the period, and continues to 

be absent. As the permanent head teacher is best placed to know 

about the school's situation, continuing with the process when she 

continues to be absent is unfair to the school and the community. 

 Some believe that small schools should not be closed without 

scrutinising the decision. 

 

 
 

ANY CONSULTATIONS UNDERTAKEN PRIOR TO RECOMMENDING THE DECISION 

The Education and Scrutiny Committee decided to call witnesses to the 

Committee to answer questions.   The Chairman and Vice-chairman of Ysgol 

Abersoch's Governing Body were questioned. 

 

 

VIEWS OF THE STATUTORY OFFICERS 

 

The Monitoring Officer: 

 

The report traces the Process which was followed following a call in request in request 

under Part 7.25 OF TEH constitution.  The Education and Economy Scrutiny Committee 

determined that the mater should be referred back to the Cabinet for re-consideration of 

the decision made on the 15th of September 2020. In accordance with the provisions of 

the Constitution this decision has been suspended from implementation until the call in 

process has been completed. The Scrutiny Committee has noted the matters it wished the 

Cabinet to consider. 

 

The Cabinet needs to give careful consideration to the opinion of the Scrutiny Committee 

and whether or not it needs to amend the decision. However, the decision on the response 

to the Scrutiny Committee recommendations remains a Cabinet decision as to whether it 

should commence a statutory consultation Process on the future of Ysgol Abersoch in 

accordance with Section 48 of The School  Standards and Organisation (Wales) Act 

2013. Therefore in reviewing  its original decision it remains a mater which needs to be 

assessed within the framework of considerations and requirements which are  relevant to 

it. In the same way the recommendations of the Scrutiny Committee have to be placed in 

this context. This a solely a decision for the Cabinet. 

 

Head of Finance: 

 

The view of the statutory finance officer in the original report to the Cabinet on 
15/09/2020 noted clear reasons, including financial reasons, to support the 
recommendation to close Ysgol Abersoch.  It was noted that establishing the 
new arrangements would lead to annual net savings of £96,062.  In general, 
Gwynedd schools need to achieve savings to contribute additional running costs. 
 

Page 5



 

 

Appendices 

 
APPENDIX 1 Education and Economy Scrutiny Committee Decision Notice  

  (08/10/2020) 

APPENDIX 2 Education and Economy Scrutiny Committee draft minutes (08/10/2020) 

APPENDIX 3 Education and Economy Scrutiny Committee papers (08/10/20) that 

include 

APPENDIX 3a Cover report 

APPENDIX 3b The Education Department's response to the aspects of the decision that 

were scrutinised 

APPENDIX 3c Cabinet Decision Notice on 15/09, Item 5 

APPENDIX 3d Cabinet Report on 15/09, Item  

 

Page 6



GWYNEDD COUNCIL EDUCATION AND ECONOMY SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
DECISION NOTICE  

 
 

(Section 100C of the Local Government Act 1972 (as amended by the Local 
Authorities (Coronavirus) Regulations (Meetings) (Wales) 2020) 

 
8 October 2020 

 
Virtual Meeting  

 
Attendance: 
 
Councillors: 
Steve Collings, Aled Evans, Selwyn Griffiths, Alwyn Gruffydd, Judith Humphreys, Elin Walker 
Jones, Elwyn Jones, Gareth Tudor Morris Jones, Huw Wyn Jones, Cai Larsen, Beth Lawton, Dewi 
Owen, Dewi Roberts, Elfed Powell Roberts, Mair Rowlands, Paul Rowlinson (Chair). 
 
Co-opted Member: 
Dilwyn Elis Hughes (UCAC) 
 
Officers present:  

 
Sion Huws (Senior Solicitor - Corporate), Vera Jones (Democracy and Language Services 
Manager), Bethan Adams (Scrutiny Advisor) and Eirian Roberts (Democracy Services Officer). 
 
Present for item 7: 
Councillor Cemlyn Williams (Cabinet Member for Education) 
Garem Jackson (Head of Education) 
Gwern ap Rhisiart (Dwyfor / Meirionnydd Area Education Officer) 
 
Also in attendance:  
Margot Jones (Ysgol Abersoch Chair of Governors) and Eifiona Wood (Ysgol Abersoch Vice-chair 
of Governors) 
 
Apologies 
Councillor Freya Bentham, Anest Gray Frazer (Church in Wales) and Dylan Huw Jones 
(NASUWT)  

Page 7



 
Page 2 of 2 

GWYNEDD COUNCIL EDUCATION AND ECONOMY SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
DECISION NOTICE  

 
 

(Section 100C of the Local Government Act 1972 (as amended by the Local 
Authorities (Coronavirus) Regulations (Meetings) (Wales) 2020) 

 
 

Date of Education and Economy Scrutiny Committee Meeting 8 October 2020 

 

 
SUBJECT 
 
Item 7: CABINET DECISION 15-0-20 - ITEM 5 - YSGOL ABERSOCH 
 
 

 
DECISION 
 
That the scrutiny committee remained concerned about the situation and, therefore, refers 
the matter back to the Cabinet for reconsideration for the following reasons: 
 

 Owing to the COVID situation and legal guidelines and the Education Department's 
policies, it is not possible to hold meetings in the usual manner and it is impossible 
to hold meetings with some individuals who have a keen interest in the matter. It is 
also impossible to hold public meetings in the usual manner in the community to 
discuss and respond to the consultation.  

 The Head was off work during this period, and continues to be off work.  As the 
permanent head knows the school’s situation best, continuing with the process while 
she remains off work would be unfair to the school and the community. 

 Some believe that small schools should not be closed without scrutinising the 
decision. 

 

 
THE RESULT OF THE VOTE 
 
In favour:              5 
Against:                1 
Abstentions:         5 
       

 
DECLARATIONS OF PERSONAL INTEREST AND PROTOCOL MATTERS 
 
Councillor Dewi Roberts declared a personal interest in the matter as he was a governor of 
the school but, as he had been appointed to that role by the Authority, he had been 
advised that an exception in the Code allowed him to take part in the discussion fully. 
 

 

Page 8



Education and Economy Scrutiny Committee 8.10.20 

1 
 

 

EDUCATION AND ECONOMY SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
8/10/20 

 

 
Present: Councillor Paul Rowlinson (Chair) 
  Councillor Elwyn Jones (Vice-chair) 

 

Councillors: Steve Collings, Aled Evans, Selwyn Griffiths, Alwyn Gruffydd, Judith 

Humphreys, Elin Walker Jones, Gareth Jones, Huw Wyn Jones, Cai Larsen, Beth Lawton, 

Dewi Owen, Dewi Roberts, Elfed Roberts and Mair Rowlands. 
 

Co-opted Member: Dilwyn Ellis Hughes (UCAC). 

 

Officers present:  

Sion Huws (Senior Solicitor - Corporate), Vera Jones (Democracy and Language Services 

Manager), Bethan Adams (Scrutiny Advisor) and Eirian Roberts (Democracy Services 

Officer). 
 

Present for item 7 below: 
Councillor Cemlyn Williams (Cabinet Member for Education) 
Garem Jackson (Head of Education) 
Gwern ap Rhisiart (Dwyfor / Meirionnydd Area Education Officer) 
 
Also in attendance:  
Margot Jones (Ysgol Abersoch Chair of Governors) and Eifiona Wood (Ysgol Abersoch Vice-
chair of Governors). 
 
1. ELECTION OF CHAIR 
 

RESOLVED to elect Councillor Paul Rowlinson as Chair of this committee for 
2020/21. 

 
2. ELECTION OF VICE-CHAIR 
 

RESOLVED to elect Councillor Elwyn Jones as Vice-chair of this committee for 
2020/21. 
 

3. APOLOGIES 
 

Councillor Freya Bentham, Anest Gray Frazer (Church in Wales) and Dylan Huw Jones 
(NASUWT). 
 
The Chair noted that Neil Foden (NEU), Dylan Davies (Meirionnydd Parent / Governors 
Representative) and Councillor Gareth Williams had ended their service on the 
committee recently, and he expressed gratitude to all three for their service. 

 
4. DECLARATION OF PERSONAL INTEREST 
 

Councillor Dewi Roberts declared a personal interest in item 7 on the agenda - Cabinet 
Decision 15.9.20 - Item 5 - Ysgol Abersoch, as he was a governor at the school.  

Page 9



Education and Economy Scrutiny Committee 8.10.20 

2 
 

However, as he had been appointed to that role by the Authority, he had been advised 
that an exception in the Code allowed him to take a full part in the discussion. 

 
5  URGENT ITEMS 
 

None to note. 
 
6. MINUTES 
 

The Chair signed the minutes of the previous meeting of this committee held on 23 
January, 2020 as a true record.  
 

7. CABINET DECISION 15-9-20 - ITEM 5 - YSGOL ABERSOCH 
 

Submitted - the report of the Head of Democracy Service noting that the following 

decision had been called in for scrutiny in accordance with Section 7.25 of the Council's 

Constitution:- 

 

Item 5: Ysgol Abersoch, Cabinet meeting 15.9.20 

 

"Permission was granted to hold a statutory consultation, in accordance with the 

requirements of section 48 of the School Standards and Organisation (Wales) Act 2013, 

on the proposal to close Ysgol Abersoch on 31 December 2020 and to provide a place 

for the pupils at Ysgol Sarn Bach from 1 January 2021 onwards." 

 

The Chair explained that a request had been made to call in the decision for scrutiny by 

Councillors Dewi Roberts, Elwyn Jones and himself, within the necessary requirements 

and timetable. 

 

It was noted that the reasons for calling in, namely the aspects of the decision that it is 

considered should be scrutinised, have been noted as follows: 

 

"Owing to the COVID situation and legal guidelines and the Education Department's 

policies, it is not possible to hold meetings in the usual manner and it is impossible to 

hold meetings with some people who have a keen interest in the matter.  It is also 

impossible to hold public meetings in the usual manner.  The Head was off work during 

the period.  Therefore, continuing with the process under these circumstances was 

unfair to the school and community.  According to the school's representatives, it has 

not been registered as a Rural School and we question why this is the case.  Some 

believe that small schools should not be closed without scrutinising the decision." 

 

The Chair emphasised that it was important for the committee to consider these aspects 

only.  The committee was not considering the issue of proceeding to close the school, 

and this would be a matter for the Cabinet. 

 

In order to assist the committee to scrutinise the matter in accordance with the aspects 

of the decision that it is considered should be scrutinised, the following documents were 

also presented to the scrutiny committee:- 

 

 Appendix 1 - the Education Department's response to the aspects of the decision 

that it is considered should be scrutinised 

 Appendix 2 - Cabinet Decision Notice (Item 5, 15.9.20) 

Page 10



Education and Economy Scrutiny Committee 8.10.20 

3 
 

 Appendix 3 - Cabinet Report (Item 5, 15.9.20) 

 

The Cabinet Member set out the context, drawing specific attention to paragraph 3.3 of 

the Education Department's response which noted, although Ysgol Abersoch had not 

been designated as a Rural School for the purposes of the Schools Organisation Code 

011/2018, that the Department, as good practice, had followed a similar process to the 

required process and procedures in relation to a Rural School when developing the 

proposal for further consultation. 

 

The Dwyfor/Meirion Area Education Officer submitted the response of the Education 

Department, and reiterated some of the details included in the report.  He noted that:- 

 

 It was important to note that the consultation process would address the needs 

of the code in full; however, a slightly different procedure to what was required 

in the Code was followed, by holding three informal engagement meetings with 

stakeholders. 

 If a school had fewer than 10 pupils in January, it would have been possible to 

disregard the consultation process in its entirety and move immediately to a 

statutory notice to close a school; however, the Department wished, in this case, 

to consult fully and work through a process of informal consultation in the first 

instance and then proceed to the Cabinet to seek a decision to undertake formal 

consultation. 

 In terms of public meetings, the Code clearly noted that public meetings did not 

have to be held, and that consultation could be carried out in other ways.  In 

simple terms, the consultation process was the Department's way of giving local 

people an opportunity to ask questions.  Those carrying out the consultation had 

to submit it in writing, and people who responded to the consultation had to do 

so in writing.   

 In terms of the processes of other authorities during the pandemic, a number had 

consulted and had proceeded by using the same code as Gwynedd, and some 

of them had been implemented in the middle of the Spring lockdown period, 

which meant that they could not hold any face-to-face meetings. 

 That it was also important to note that the committee's discussions with regard 

to conducting or failing to conduct meetings during lockdown as part of the 

consultation process could affect other projects, e.g. the new school in Cricieth.  

The Department would follow the same process in respect of that school, and 

the decision of this meeting could impact the timetable of the process of building 

that new school, and many other projects. 

 That Welsh Government had confirmed that it was not intended to change the 

Organisation Code as a result of COVID, that there was no need to hold a public 

consultation, and that making a decision on the process to follow would be a 

matter for the Authority. 

 That the local arrangements had included 3 meetings, and the views of many 

stakeholders on various proposals had already been sought. 

 That the Authority's methods had been praised by Welsh Government and had 

highlighted that the Council were consulting in a way that was identified as good 

practice nationally. 

 If the Department was permitted to hold a statutory consultation, all stakeholders 

would have an opportunity to make observations.  A slightly different procedure 

Page 11



Education and Economy Scrutiny Committee 8.10.20 

4 
 

was proposed this time, via Zoom or Teams, or to receive written observations 

or to answer questions over the phone if necessary. 

 That the designation of rural schools was a decision made by Welsh 

Government, and not the Authority.  A school was designated a rural school for 

the purposes of the presumption against its closure, using the National Statistics 

Office’s rural and urban categories.  The Government designated a school which 

was located in a rural village with a sparse population, a hamlet or other 

dispersed settlement with a sparse population, or in a hamlet or other dispersed 

settlement where the population was not as sparse, as a rural school.  This 

represented 17.5% of Welsh schools and approximately 40% of Gwynedd 

schools.  

 This did not mean that no rural school would ever close, but that the case for 

closure needed to be robust, and that all other practical options had been 

conscienciously considered. 

 That the outcomes of the definitions were difficult to understand at times, and 

that Ysgol Sarn Bach, Llanbedrog and Foel Gron, which surrounded Ysgol 

Abersoch, had been designated as rural schools. 

 That the Education Department had chosen to treat Ysgol Abersoch as if it were 

a rural school, and as a result, it was believed that the status did not make a 

difference in this context.  The Department had followed the process and had 

presumed against closure, by giving the school and the community a fair hearing. 
 

The Local Member noted that he was eager to call witnesses before the committee, 

namely the Chair and Vice-chair of Ysgol Abersoch Governors, as they were much better 

placed than anyone to answer questions, and as they also volunteered and worked 

tirelessly to raise standards at the school. 

 

It was explained that the scrutiny committee was entitled to call witnesses to submit 

evidence or respond to questions put forward by members of the committee, but that 

this had to be a decision made by the whole committee. 

 

It was proposed that the Chair and Vice-chair of Governors should be called to submit 

evidence and respond to questions.  This proposal was seconded with an addition that 

the witnesses could also question the Education Department, but it was explained that 

the procedure rules and the committee’s terms of reference did not allow the witnesses 

to question the Education Department. 

 

RESOLVED to call the Chair and Vice-chair of Ysgol Abersoch Governors to 

submit evidence and respond to questions, but not to question the Education 

Department. 

 

Margot Jones (Chair) and Eifiona Wood (Ysgol Abersoch Vice-chair of Governors) were 

welcomed to the meeting. 

 

The local member expressed his sadness that this committee was discussing the 

closure of a school, and that the issue had been progressed to the Cabinet.  He noted 

that:- 

 

 Ysgol Abersoch was a cornerstone in terms of the Welsh language and culture 

within the village.  The school was very successful, and had received a good 

Page 12



Education and Economy Scrutiny Committee 8.10.20 

5 
 

Estyn inspection, and he was glad that the officers were acknowledging the 

school's success. 

 If the decision was going to affect other schools, there was a need to explain 

exactly why that was the case. 

 There was a perception regarding pupil numbers, and that it was obvious that 

the community and all the parents and governors and teachers wished to keep 

the school open. 

 He had a concerns about the accuracy of the report submitted to the Cabinet, 

and that the Governors had drawn attention to 35 mistakes in the report.  For 

example, although the 'Summary of Ysgol Abersoch's Main Challenges' on page 

105 of the agenda noted that the number of pupils was amongst the lowest in 

the county and that the projections showed a further reduction in the numbers, 

the tables on pages 22 and 38 of the report suggested the opposite of that. 

 It was astounding that the school's lack of rural status had not been challenged 

at the time of the consultation by Welsh Government. 

 The Department alleged that there was no need to hold a consultation, but that 

the Code stated otherwise, whether pupil numbers were below 10 or not. 

 Parents were sending their children to receive their education in other 

communities due to the uncertainty regarding the school's future. 

 It had been mentioned that the Education Department did not need to hold public 

meetings, but the Department did not wish to do so, except for the community, 

in order to receive observations from all. 

 That many people did not have a computer to be able to join virtual meetings, 

and possibly, public meetings could be held in the usual manner in a year or two.  

With that, the Cabinet was asked to pause the issue for the time in order to see 

how the situation would develop. 

 The fact that pupil numbers had increased during the pandemic showed the 

confidence that people had in this school. 

 

The witnesses were invited to submit their observations.  It was noted:- 

 

 That it was impossible for everyone to have a proper opportunity to hold a joint 

discussion.  Meetings had attempted to be held already between governors, staff 

and parents; however, due to data protection rules, it had not been possible to 

obtain the parents' e-mail addresses in order to send out e-mails to them.   

 Although there was appreciation for all the work that had been carried out by the 

Department, this was not the best time to proceed with the consultation.  The 

procedure would not work in the same way as it did pre-COVID, and it was 

impossible to see how everyone could be given a fair chance. 

 That the school had lost its head teacher, and that it was almost impossible to 

answer questions without her. 

 In terms of the situation of rural schools, there was no understanding as to why 

Abersoch was any different to Llanbedrog. 

 That they had only been formally informed of their permission to attend this 

committee at the last minute, and that this was another example of how the 

school and the governors felt they were being treated throughout the whole 

process, with a feeling that very little respect being shown towards them. 

 That the past months had been a very difficult period for the school.  They had 

lost the head teacher for a period; nevertheless, five new pupils were registered 

at the school in September. 

Page 13



Education and Economy Scrutiny Committee 8.10.20 

6 
 

 Since the process had commenced last September, a Cylch Meithrin had been 

established on the school site.  That would lead, in due course, to an increase in 

the number of children who would attend the school; however, the projections of 

the Education Department did not take this into consideration. 

 That there were many misleading statements in the Education Department's 

report to the Cabinet. 

 That the process had been problematic, even pre-COVID.  The documents for 

the three informal meetings had not been received until after those meetings, 

with a request for a response requested within a very tight schedule.  It was also 

noted that a letter that had been sent to the Education Department on 24 January 

had not been replied until 8 September.  

 That holding virtual meetings did not work in their experience and reference was 

made to the last governors' meeting, where 60% had failed to join as a result of 

technical difficulties. 

 That the governors were not allowed to enter the school to meet the staff face-

to-face. 

 That there was a perception that the entire process was misleading, unfair and 

undemocratic. 

 

In response to the observations of the local member and the witnesses, the Cabinet 

Member noted:- 

 

 That reference had been made to other schools that were on the Authority's 

radar; however, that the Council had adopted principles so far as schools were 

in the question, namely no more than two classes of 2 age groups in one class 

and that 80% of the head teacher's time was used to lead the school. 

 That it was disappointing that the speakers referred to a lack of respect.  He had 

attended the informal meetings, and he was certain that the Authority was 

respectful towards everyone involved in the process, and appreciated their 

position. 

 That he agreed that possibly more work needed to be undertaken to challenge 

the Government in relation to the designation of rural schools. 

 That it was acknowledged that the consultation process was frustrating in the 

middle of a pandemic.  He explained that the Dwyfor / Meirion Area Education 

Officer, when referring to other plans, was referring to Post-16 plans, etc., rather 

than school closures. 

 

In response to the observations of the local member and the witnesses, the Dwyfor / 

Meirion Area Education Officer noted:- 

 

 If there were questions regarding the accuracy of the report, the purpose of the 

consultation was to provide an opportunity to submit observations in that respect. 

 That the Project Team, throughout the meetings, had been respectful of 

everyone and of the schedule, and that stakeholders had been given sufficient 

time to respond. 

 As the head teacher was absent, the process of taking the matter before the 

Cabinet had been delayed, and this was also a mark of respect. 

 That the school had received every support from the Department, as any other 

school would. 

 

Page 14



Education and Economy Scrutiny Committee 8.10.20 

7 
 

In response to a request for clarification regarding the nature and procedure of the 

meetings, the Dwyfor / Meirion Area Education Officer noted:- 

 

 That the process was a process that the Department chose to follow, it was not 

necessary for the Department to follow it. 

 That three meetings had been held, with the first meeting explaining the 

challenge, the second collating ideas and suggestions as to how to improve the 

situation and the third to explain which options the Department favoured. 

 

In response to the explanation given by the Dwyfor / Meirion Area Education Officer, the 

Ysgol Abersoch Vice-chair of Governors noted that only forty five minutes had been 

scheduled for the third meeting, and that this was not good enough.  In response to this 

observation, the Dwyfor / Meirion Area Education Officer explained:- 

 

 That this was not correct, and that the meeting lasted over two hours, although 

scheduled to last forty five minutes only. 

 That the purpose of the meeting had been to report back on favoured options, 

but the meeting evolved into a discussion. 

 

A member noted – 

 That the Education Minister's code regarding the closure of small and rural 

schools stated that there should be a presumption against closing, and that 

schools should have a fair hearing. 

 That the Government or Council should not deprive communities of their 

schools.  That the decision should be made by the community itself, and the 

Abersoch community wished to keep its school. 

 That commencing a consultation that was in favour of the option to close was 

contrary to the code.  

 That the fact that the school had not been designated as a Rural School raised 

complex and relevant questions, bearing in mind that schools in a number of 

communities with a higher population than Abersoch were in the Rural Schools 

category.  

 As Ysgol Abersoch provided for children aged up to 8 years old only, and was, 

therefore, basically half a school, that the figure of 21, rather than 42, should 

apply when referring to the school's capacity. 

 That every rural Welsh school had periods of ebb and flow. 

 That he had concern regarding the intention to seek the opinion of pupils from 

Ysgol Abersoch and Ysgol Sarn Bach as this could create bad feeling between 

villages, schools, parents and pupils. 

 

In response to the observations of the local member and the witnesses, the Head of 

Education noted:- 

 

 That he was also disappointed that he had heard views that the informal process 

had been disrespectful of the local community, and that this was contrary to the 

truth. 

 In terms of the Rural School status, that some of the arguments were irrelevant 

as the Department was using processes similar to those used for Rural Schools 

in this case, and that it had done so intentionally, for transparency. 

Page 15



Education and Economy Scrutiny Committee 8.10.20 

8 
 

 That Welsh Government's Statistics Committee designated Rural Schools, and 

that the Council had no influence whatsoever in this respect. 

 

The local member noted further – 

 

 Since losing the head teacher, the temporary staff had been very supportive of 

the school, and the Dwyfor / Meirion Area Education Officer and the Department 

were thanked for their work.  

 That it concerned him that a small rural school could be closed without the 

decision being scrutinised, and there may be room to consider this separately. 

 That he did not agree that the designation of rural schools was a matter for the 

Government, and that he had evidence that the Government had consulted with 

the Council about this on three occasions, and had received input to the process 

from the Council. 

 That he, as a local member, was not confident that the consultation would be fair 

and comprehensive, and that it would include everyone in the community. 

 That he believed that it was genuinely important for this matter to return before 

the Cabinet, or, as the discussion included other schools, before the full Council, 

and the Council should send the matter back to the Cabinet for re-examination. 

 

In response to the local member’s observations, the Head of Education noted:- 

 

 That the situation in terms of rural schools had been explained; but that this was 

irrelevant in any case, as the Council was following similar processes in order to 

be fair and transparent with the local community. 

 In terms of scrutinising decisions to close small schools, that the Department 

was following the principles that had been adopted by the full Council, and that 

it was misleading to suggest that the Department had a list of schools on its 

radar. 

 

 

Members noted – 

 

 That it was a difficult situation, but that it was not felt that there was genuine 

acknowledgement of everyone's work to keep things going during such a difficult 

time. 

 That the suggestion that delaying this process could affect the new school in 

Cricieth, was irrelevant, as that was a completely different issue. 

 That the campaign of the parents, governors, local member, and others in the 

community was heroic, and that the presentation of the Chair and Vice-chair of 

Governors before this committee had been completely genuine. 

 As it was given to understand that any referral back to Cabinet would have to 

take place within 15 days of the date of this committee, another option would be 

to refer it to the full Council in December, which would allow more time to gather 

further evidence. 

 

For clarity regarding the situation in relation to other schools, the Senior Solicitor 

(Corporate) noted that a statutory process had to be followed in relation to specific types 

of proposals regarding schools.  For example, the process for closing, extending or 

opening schools was the same in general.  Consequently, any concerns with regard to 

Page 16



Education and Economy Scrutiny Committee 8.10.20 

9 
 

conducting the process in this instance were relevant to other proposed statutory 

proposals as there was a need to consult in respect of those also. 

 

It was proposed and seconded that the consultation should be deferred until the COVID 

crisis had alleviated, the school's rural status had been confirmed and the head teacher's 

situation had been resolved. 

 

The Senior Solicitor (Corporate) explained such a proposal was too open-ended in terms 

of timing and conditions. 

 

In light of that, the proposer rephrased his proposal to refer the matter to the Full Council 

with a recommendation that the consultation should be deferred until the COVID crisis 

was alleviated, the school's rural status confirmed and the head teacher's situation had 

been resolved. 

 

In response, the Head of Education noted -  

 

 That there was lack of clarity regarding the proposer's wish in relation to the head 

teacher's situation, as the Governing Body had appointed an acting head teacher 

with support from the Education Department. 

 In terms of confirming the school's rural status, that an explanation had been 

given, and that Welsh Government had not designated the school as a Rural 

School. 

 

A member noted that the matter should return to the Cabinet, for the reasons submitted 

in favour of calling in the matter to the scrutiny committee, excluding the reason 

regarding registering as a Rural School, as that had been explained in full.  The 

committee's views had been expressed clearly, and he did not believe that there was 

any point waiting until the next full Council meeting in December. 

 

The local member expressed his support to the proposal to refer the matter to the Full 

Council on the grounds that this was a relevant matter to all members of the Council and 

that it would be a good thing for the Cabinet to hear the views of every county councillor 

on the issue. 

 

In response to the comments of the Head of Education, the proposer noted -  

 

 In terms of the rural status, that it was obvious that there were differing opinions 

on the matter, as Welsh Government and Gwynedd Council blamed each other. 

 That he did not question the competency of the acting head teacher. 

 

For further clarity on the status of Rural Schools, the Dwyfor / Meirion Area Education 

Officer noted that the Government's consultation, the national consultation on the status 

of small and rural schools, sought the Authority's views on 8 categories of schools.  The 

Authority had sent a response at the time; however, the Authority had not known which 

schools were being referred to.  There was no oversight in relation to the status.  Ysgol 

Abersoch did not fit into the category, and the consultation process had taken place four 

years ago. 

 

Page 17



Education and Economy Scrutiny Committee 8.10.20 

10 
 

An amendment was proposed and seconded, namely that the scrutiny committee 

remained concerned about the situation, and therefore referred the matter back to 

Cabinet, for re-examination for the following reasons - 

 Owing to the COVID situation and legal guidelines and the Education 

Department's policies, it is not possible to hold meetings in the usual manner and 

it is impossible to hold meetings with some people who have a keen interest in 

the matter. It is also impossible to hold public meetings in the usual manner in 

the community to discuss and respond to the consultation.   

 The head teacher was off work during this period, and she continued to be off.  

As the permanent head teacher was best placed to know about the school's 

situation, continuing with the process when she continued to be off was unfair to 

the school and the community. 

 Some believe that small schools should not be closed without scrutinising the 

decision. 

 
A vote was taken on the amendment and it carried.  As the amendment carried, it 
replaced the original proposal.  A vote was taken on the proposal, as amended, and it 
carried. 
 
RESOLVED that the scrutiny committee remains concerned about the situation 
and therefore refers the matter back to the Cabinet for reconsideration for the 
following reasons: 
 

 Owing to the COVID situation and legal guidelines and the Education 

Department's policies, it is not possible to hold meetings in the usual 

manner and it is impossible to hold meetings with some people who have 

a keen interest in the matter. It is also impossible to hold public meetings 

in the usual manner in the community to discuss and respond to the 

consultation.   

 The head teacher was off work during this period, and she continues to be 

off.  As the permanent head teacher is best placed to know about the 

school's situation, continuing with the process when she continues to be 

off is unfair to the school and the community. 

 Some believe that small schools should not be closed without scrutinising 

the decision. 

 
 

The meeting commenced at 10.30am and concluded at 12.50pm 
 

Page 18



  
 

 

 
 

 
 

COMMITTEE Education and Economy Scrutiny Committee 
 

DATE 8 October 2020 
 

SUBJECT Cabinet Decision 15/09/2020.  Item 5 - Ysgol 
Abersoch 
 

AUTHOR Geraint Owen, Head of Democratic Services 
 

 
 

1. The following decision has been called in for scrutiny, in accordance with section 7.25  
of the Council's Constitution.   
 
Item 5: Ysgol Abersoch, Cabinet decision 15/09/2020. 
 
"Permission was granted to hold a statutory consultation, in accordance with  
the requirements of section 48 of the School Standards and Organisation (Wales)  
Act 2013, on the proposal to close Ysgol Abersoch on 31 August 2021 and to  
provide a place for the pupils at Ysgol Sarn Bach from 1 September 2021 onwards." 
 

 
2. The request to call in the item to be scrutinised was made by Councillors Paul  

Rowlinson (Chair of the Scrutiny Committee), Dewi Roberts and Elwyn Jones within  
the necessary requirements and timeframe. 

 
 
3. The reasons for calling in, namely the aspects of the decision that it is considered  

should be scrutinised, have been noted as follows: 
 

“Owing to the COVID situation and legal guidelines and the Education Department's  
policies, it is not possible to hold meetings in the usual manner and it is impossible to  
hold meetings with some people who have a keen interest in the matter. It is also  
impossible to hold public meetings in the usual manner. The Head was off work  
during the period. Therefore, continuing with the process under these circumstances  
was unfair for the school and community. According to the school's representatives,  
it has not been registered as a Rural School and we question why this is the case.  
Some believe that small schools should not be closed without scrutinising the decision”. 

 
4. In order to assist the Scrutiny Committee to scrutinise the matter in accordance with the 

aspects of the decision that it is considered should be scrutinised, the following documents 
are enclosed with this report. 

 

 Appendix 1 - the Education Department's response to the aspects of the decision that it is 
considered should be scrutinised 

 Appendix 2 - Cabinet Decision Notice (Item 5, 15/09/2020) 

 Appendix 3 - Cabinet Report (Item 5, 15/09/2020) 
 

Page 19



 

Committee Education and Economy Scrutiny Committee 

Report Title Ysgol Abersoch 

Date of Meeting 8 October 2020 

Relevant Officer Gwern ap Rhisiart, Area Education Officer 

Relevant Cabinet Member Councillor Cemlyn Rees Williams 

 

1. Background 

 

1.1. At its meeting on 15 September 2020, permission was granted by the Cabinet to “undertake a 

statutory consultation, in accordance with the requirements of section 48 of the School 

Standards and Organisation (Wales) Act 2013, on the proposal to close Ysgol Abersoch on 31 

August 2021 and to provide a place for the pupils at Ysgol Sarn Bach from 1 September 2021 

onwards.” 

 

1.2. The report presented to the Cabinet included the results of local discussions, as well as detailing 

the process of evaluating all the options, including the preferred proposal for further 

consultation. The report also includes an explanation of the steps following consultation and 

the outline timetable.  

 

2.  Proposed statutory consultation process 

 

2.1. Proposals for school organisation in Wales must be made in accordance with the School 

Standards and Organisation (Wales) Act 2013, as well as the requirements of the School 

Organisation Code 011/2018. 

 

2.2. The proposed statutory consultation process in relation to Ysgol Abersoch will comply with the 

requirements and guidelines of the School Organisation Code 011/2018. As part of the 

consultation process, the Education Department will follow the following procedures: 

 Publish a consultation document, together with relevant background papers, in an 

electronic format on the Council's website (hard copies available on request) 

 Distribute electronic copies of the document to the relevant stakeholder (as 

required by the Code) 

 Publish the consultation document during the school term of the school in question, 

giving consultees at least 42 days to respond to the document, with at least 20 of 

these being school days. 

 Receive written comments / responses on the proposed proposal by post or email 

(during the designated consultation period). 

 

2.3. The Code does not impose a requirement to hold consultation meetings. Instead, the Code 

states that, “Proposers may use other ways to engage consultees as they think appropriate.” 

 

2.4. In previous consultations, the Education Department has held "Drop In" sessions to discuss the 

proposed proposal with parents, governors and staff of the school in question. Due to the 

restrictions with COVID-19, it will not be possible to hold the "Drop In" sessions in the same 

Page 20



 

way. However, in order to ensure that stakeholders in Ysgol Abersoch have the same 

opportunity to receive information, seek clarification and comment, it is intended to hold "Drop 

In" sessions via virtual meeting software. In addition, stakeholders will have the opportunity to 

e-mail questions regarding the proposal to the Education Department, and officials will provide 

a timely response to enable stakeholders to submit informed responses during the consultation 

period.  

 

2.5. Arrangements will also be made to ensure that we receive the views of children and young 

people attending the schools which will be affected by the proposed proposal. It is envisaged 

that the designated sessions will be held with a group of pupils from both schools - the exact 

arrangements are to be confirmed. 

 

3. Rural Schools 

 

3.1. The School Organisation Code 011/2018 ('the Code') introduces new, special arrangements in 

relation to rural schools, establishing a procedural presumption against closure. This does not 

mean that a rural school will never close, but that the case for closure must be strong, and that 

all other viable options have been conscientiously considered. This means that a more detailed 

set of procedures and requirements must be followed when formulating a closure proposal 

(defined within the Code). 

 

3.2. Specific schools are designated as rural schools for the purposes of the presumption against 

closure by the Welsh Government, using the ONS rural and urban categories. The list includes 

schools located in a sparsely populated rural village, or in a very small village or other sparsely 

populated isolated area. 

 

3.3. Ysgol Abersoch is not designated as a 'rural school' for the purpose of the Code. However, in 

developing the proposed proposal for further consultation, the Education Department has 

followed a similar process to the process and procedures required in relation to a rural school. 

As part of the process to develop the proposal, a range of options for the school were 

considered and evaluated, and a series of impact assessments were undertaken, including: 

 Welsh language impact assessment 

 Assessment of the likely impact on quality and standards of education 

 Assessment of the likely impact on travel arrangements 

 Assessment of the likely impact on the community 

 Assessment against the Well-being Act 

 Assessment against the Equality Act  

 

3.4. The above impact assessments will be updated with current information and statistics before 

proceeding to statutory consultation. 

 

 

Page 21



GWYNEDD CABINET DECISION NOTICE 
 

Date of Cabinet Meeting: 15 September 2020 

Date decision will come into force and be implemented, unless 
the decision is called in, in accordance with section 7.25 of the 
Gwynedd Council Constitution 

30 September 2020 

 

 
SUBJECT 
 
Item 5: YSGOL ABERSOCH 
 

 
DECISION 
 
Permission was granted to undertake a statutory consultation, in accordance with the 
requirements of section 48 of the School Standards and Organisation (Wales) Act 2013, on 
the proposal to close Ysgol Abersoch on 31 August 2021 and to provide a place for the 
pupils at Ysgol Sarn Bach from 1 September 2021 onwards. 
 

 
REASONS FOR THE DECISION 
 
At the meeting of the Cabinet in September 2019, support was given to the 
recommendation to commence formal discussions with the governing body of Ysgol 
Abersoch in order to consider options for the future. The decision came about as a result of 
recent concerns regarding a reduction in pupil numbers at the school.   
 
The purpose of this report is to report back on the outcome of the local discussions, and 
seek permission to carry out a statutory consultation on a proposal to close Ysgol 
Abersoch on 31 August 2021, and provide a place for the pupils at Ysgol Sarn Bach from 1 
September 2021 onwards. 
 

 
DECLARATIONS OF PERSONAL INTEREST AND ANY RELEVANT DISPENSATIONS 
APPROVED BY THE STANDARDS COMMITTEE  
 
No declarations of personal interest or relevant dispensations were received. 
 

 
ANY CONSULTATIONS UNDERTAKEN PRIOR TO MAKING THE DECISION 
 
The Statutory Officers were consulted to seek their views, which have been included in the 
report 
 

Page 22



 

1 
 

REPORT TO THE CABINET 

Date of meeting:  15 September 2020 

Cabinet Member:  Councillor Cemlyn Rees Williams 

Contact Officer:  Gwern ap Rhisiart - Dwyfor Meirionnydd Area Education Officer 

Title of Item:   Ysgol Abersoch 

DECISION SOUGHT:  

The permission of the Council's Cabinet is sought to begin a period of statutory consultation in 

accordance with the requirements of section 48 of the School Standards and Organisation (Wales) 

Act 2013, on the proposed proposal to close Ysgol Abersoch on 31 August 2021 and to provide a 

place for the pupils at Ysgol Sarn Bach from 1 September 2021 onwards. 
 

1. INTRODUCTION 

 

1.1. At their meeting on 17 September 2019, the Cabinet supported a recommendation to 

commence formal discussions with the governing body of Ysgol Abersoch in order to consider 

options for the future. The decision came about as a result of recent concerns regarding a 

reduction in pupil numbers at the school.  

 

1.2. The purpose of this report is to report back on the outcome of the local discussions, and seek 

permission to carry out a statutory consultation on a proposal to close Ysgol Abersoch on 31 

August 2021, and provide a place for the pupils at Ysgol Sarn Bach from 1 September 2021 

onwards.  
 

2. THE STRATEGIC CONTEXT 

 

2.1 The Council implemented the Excellent Primary Education for the Children of Gwynedd 

strategy following its adoption in April 2009. It was noted in the strategy that there was a 

need to provide a way of giving attention to the situation of some vulnerable schools.  

 

2.2 At its meeting on 18 December 2018, the Cabinet approved the principles of the "Fit for 

Purpose Education" principles which now provide a basis to realise the Education 

Department's vision and develop the system to ensure a high quality education for the 

children and young people of Gwynedd for the twenty first century. These principles work 

towards rationalising age-ranges within primary classes and ensuring sufficient non-contact 

time for headteachers to focus on leadership matters in the primary schools.   

 

3. THE CURRENT SITUATION AT YSGOL ABERSOCH  

 

3.1 Ysgol Abersoch is located in the centre of the village of Abersoch, near Pwllheli, and provides 

education for pupils aged between 3 and 8 years. The pupils transfer to Ysgol Sarn Bach after 

year 3 in order to complete their primary education.   
 

3.2 Ysgol Abersoch has a capacity of 42 (nursery to year 3), and there are 8 full-time pupils, and 

2 nursery pupils (part-time) on the register (September 2020).   

Page 23



 

2 
 

 

3.3 As can be seen from the above graph, the total number of pupils attending the school has 

consistently reduced since 2016 and this has been vulnerable for some time. Therefore, it is 

likely that the school is facing increasing challenges, including:  

 Pupil numbers – In September 2020, there were 8 full time pupils, and 2 nursery pupils 

 Projected numbers - September 2021 = 10; September 2022 = 12; September 2023 = 12 

 High percentage of surplus places - Based on the figures for September 2020, there are 

approximately 76% of surplus places at the school (a total of 32) 

 Small class sizes -  1 class with 10 pupils (September 2020)  

 Broad age ranges within classes 

 Ysgol Abersoch receives an additional sum to the usual allocation through the 

minimum staffing policy (which ensures at least a headteacher and a teacher in every 

school, and a headteacher and an assistant in schools with fewer than 15 pupils). The 

total cost during the 2020-21 financial year (based on the numbers in September 2019) 

is £52,582.   

 Cost per Pupil at Ysgol Abersoch is £17,404 (2020-21), the county average cost per pupil 

is £ 4,198. 

 

4. RECENT DEVELOPMENTS 

Establish a Cylch Meithrin and Cylch Ti a Fi at Ysgol Abersoch 

4.1 During the Autumn term of 2019, Ysgol Abersoch stakeholders set up a Voluntary Management 

Committee to undertake the task of establishing a Cylch Meithrin and Ti a Fi group in the school. 
 

4.2 The first sessions of the Cylch Meithrin and Cylch Ti a Fi were held in February this year. At 

present, Cylch Meithrin Abersoch is part of the free 30-hour childcare plan for 3 and 4 year olds, 

and runs a 2 hour playgroup session five times a week, as well as a lunch club session three 

times a week. 

 

 

Number of pupils at Ysgol Abersoch (September 2010-2020) 

Number of pupils  Capacity 

Page 24



 

3 
 

5. LOCAL DISCUSSIONS 

 

5.1 In July 2019, officers from the Education Department met the Governing Body of Ysgol 

Abersoch in order to discuss the school's vulnerable situation. During the meeting, it was 

noted that it was intended to seek the Cabinet's approval to progress the discussions by 

holding formal meetings with the Governing Body and relevant stakeholders to discuss 

options for the school.  

 

5.2 In accordance with the Cabinet's decision (17 September 2019), an Ysgol Abersoch Review 

Panel (PAY) was established in October 2019.  An invitation was extended to all members of 

the Governing Body, parents and school staff, as well as the local elected member, to be 

members of the panel and participate in the discussions.  

 

5.3 On 7 October 2019, the first of three PAY meetings were held in order to commence the 

discussion and consider options. During this meeting, it was explained that there was a need 

to consider options that would respond to the challenges facing the school (as detailed in 

paragraph 3.3 above).  

 

5.4 The second PAY meeting was held on 13 November 2019. The strengths, opportunities, 

weaknesses and threats of all options were evaluated during this meeting. In addition, 

following the meeting, further observations were received from the governing body. 

 

5.5 After receiving the input of the PAY members, all options were evaluated against the factors 

of the Excellent Primary Education for the Children of Gwynedd strategy, and the above-

noted challenges (paragraph 3.3).  Having considered the conclusions of the evaluation, the 

list of options was whittled down to 3.  These options were presented during the third PAY 

meeting on 6 January 2020, and an explanation was given of the intention to undertake 

further assessments before making a decision on the preferred option.  

 

6. OPTIONS APPRAISAL 

6.1 In accordance with the “Excellent Primary Education for the Children of Gwynedd” strategy, 

a number of factors were considered when appraising the options for the situation, 

including:  

 Class sizes 

 Pupil numbers 

 Leadership and Staffing 

 The Community  

 Financial Resources 

 The Welsh Language 

 Geographical Factors 

 

6.2 With the input of members of the PAY during the local meetings, a list of options was created 

to be considered for the school:  

 Do nothing (continue with the status quo) 

 Amend the age range of Ysgol Abersoch from 3-8 to 3-11 years 

 Amend the age range of Ysgol Abersoch from 3-8 to 3-9 years  

 Federation with a nearby school  

 Federation with a nearby school, locating the Foundation Phase on the Ysgol Abersoch site, 

and KS2 on the site of a nearby school  

Page 25



 

4 
 

 Federation with nearby schools, locating the Foundation Phase + Years 3 and 4 + Years 5 and 

6 on the sites of three different schools  

 Close Ysgol Abersoch and offer a place for the pupils at an alternative school  

 Locate a Language Centre on the Ysgol Abersoch site  

 Establish a Cylch Meithrin at Ysgol Abersoch  

 Change the age range of Ysgol Abersoch from 3-8 to 3-9 years + establish a Cylch Meithrin at 

Ysgol Abersoch  
 

6.3 Following evaluating the advantages and disadvantages of the above options against the 

factors in the Excellent Primary Education for the Children of Gwynedd strategy, 3 options 

emerged as being the most viable and realistic to address the school’s current situation, 

namely:  

 Amend the age range of Ysgol Abersoch from 3-8 to 3-11 years 

 Federation with a nearby school   

 Close Ysgol Abersoch and offer a place for the pupils in an alternative school  

6.4 A further comparison of all options against the strategy's factors can be seen in Appendix 1. 

As explained in paragraph 4.1 above, the school situation has developed since September 

2019 with the opening of a Cylch Meithrin and a Cylch Ti a Fi on the school site. To ensure a 

fair comparison, please note that the development of the Cylch Meithrin and its potential 

impacts have been considered under all options, including the Status Quo. 

 

7. COMPARISON OF OPTIONS 
 

7.1 Do nothing – continue with the Status Quo:  

 

7.1.1 Although the case for change has been established, the ‘Do Nothing’ model has been 

included for comparison purposes.  
 

7.1.2 This model would mean that there would be no change to the current provision in the 

Ysgol Abersoch catchment area.  
 

7.1.3 As noted above, a Cylch Meithrin and Cylch Ti a Fi opened on the school site in February 

2020. However, whilst acknowledging the potential positive impact that locating a Cylch 

Meithrin on the Ysgol Abersoch site may have on pupil numbers, it cannot be guaranteed 

that it would lead to a significant increase in numbers. 
 

7.1.4 Having considered the school's latest position against the relevant factors, it is concluded 

that this model does not adequately respond to the school's vulnerable situation. By 

doing nothing, the challenge of falling pupil numbers, small class sizes and the financial 

challenges facing the school would continue. 
 

 

7.2 OPTIONS FOR FURTHER CONSIDERATION 
 

7.3 Amend the age range of Ysgol Abersoch  
 

7.3.1 Two options to amend the school's age range were discussed, namely extending to 3-9 

and extending to 3-11.   

 

7.3.2 It should be noted that the option favoured locally was the option to extend the school's 

age range to 3-9, including the development of the Cylch Meithrin. This option was 

Page 26



 

5 
 

preferred locally for practical reasons such as improved use of the empty space in the 

school building as a result of providing a location for the Cylch Meithrin, and to mitigate 

against the possible impact of the change on the numbers of Ysgol Sarn Bach (the school 

which provides education to the 9-11 year old pupils in the Abersoch catchment area).   

 

7.3.3 When comparing the two options, it was concluded that the best option to be considered 

further was the option to extend the age range to 3-11. The 3-9 option was disregarded 

for many reasons, specifically:  

 It is anticipated that adding an educational year would not lead to a sufficient 

increase in the numbers.  Consequently, the challenges facing the school would 

continue.  

 The age range would not be consistent with the majority of the county's primary 

schools.  

 It would not allow for the school to offer a comprehensive KS2 provision. The pupils 

would continue to transfer to Ysgol Sarn Bach to complete their primary education.  

 

7.3.4 It is believed that the option to extend the age range to 3-11 would offer more 

advantages from the perspective of having an opportunity to increase the numbers at 

the school. The option would also rationalise the age range with the rest of the county's 

schools, and would mean that the school offers a comprehensive KS2 provision.   

 

7.3.5 In order for the option to respond to the challenges facing the school, this increase would 

have to be substantial. Nevertheless, it is likely that any increase in the numbers at Ysgol 

Abersoch after extending the age range, would cause a reduction in the numbers of Ysgol 

Sarn Bach and, potentially, at nearby schools.  

 

7.3.6 After further consideration, it was concluded that the option would not be a sustainable 

solution for the future for the school, and may have an impact on pupil numbers at 

neighbouring schools. 

 

7.4 Federation:  

 

7.4.1 As seen above (para. 6.2), 3 different forms of federation were discussed and considered. 

It was concluded that the most reasonable option to be considered further was the 

option to federate with a nearby school.   

 

7.4.2 This model would ensure the continued presence of the school in the village of Abersoch 

by means of a collaboration agreement with a nearby school under the leadership of a 

headteacher or headteachers and one Governing body. The governing bodies of the 

individual schools would be revoked and a (new) federal governing body would be 

formed. The identity of the school in question (including name, ethos and school 

uniform) would continue, and it would enable the possibility of sharing staff, resources, 

IT, buildings and expertise.  

 

7.4.3 However, it is unlikely that the option would address the challenge of a reduction in 

numbers, and consequently, the school's financial challenges would continue.  

 

Page 27



 

6 
 

7.4.4 When considering this model, any impact on the operation of both schools must be 

assessed. Noting the challenges facing Ysgol Abersoch, it would be necessary to ensure 

that such an arrangement could offer benefits to all children and young people in the 

federated schools by improving educational provision. 

 

7.4.5 Discussions were held with the headteachers and chairs of governors of the two nearby 

schools (Ysgol Sarn Bach and Ysgol Llanbedrog) regarding the option to establish a 

federation with Ysgol Abersoch.   
 

7.4.6 After weighing up the advantages and disadvantages, it was concluded that the option 

would not be a sustainable solution for the school. If this option were realised, it is 

anticipated that the challenge of low pupil numbers, small class sizes and the financial 

challenges facing the school would continue. 

 

7.5 Close Ysgol Abersoch and offer a place for the pupils in an alternative school  

 

7.5.1 This option would mean closing Ysgol Abersoch and offering a place for the pupils to 

receive their education at Ysgol Sarn Bach.   

 

7.5.2 Ysgol Sarn Bach is considered as the 'alternative school' for the following reasons:  

 Geographically, Ysgol Sarn Bach is the closest school to Ysgol Abersoch. The school is 

located 1.4 miles from the site of Ysgol Abersoch.    

 Ysgol Sarn Bach already accepts pupils in year 4 from Ysgol Abersoch.  

 40% of the children (3-8 years) from the Ysgol Abersoch catchment area already attend 

Ysgol Sarn Bach.   

 Ysgol Sarn Bach has capacity to accept the current pupils of Ysgol Abersoch.   

 

7.5.3 This proposal is detailed further in the following section.  

 

8. THE PREFERRED OPTION  

 

8.1 Of the options considered, the preferred option for further consultation is to close Ysgol 

Abersoch and transfer the pupils to Ysgol Sarn Bach. This option is favoured for the following 

reasons: 

 

8.2 Class sizes:  
 

8.2.1 Ysgol Abersoch has one class, with 10 pupils aged between 3 and 8 years (September 

2020). The current average class size at Ysgol Sarn Bach is 23. Delivering the proposal 

would mean that pupils would be educated in more sustainably sized classes, with more 

children from the same age group.   

 

8.2.2 At Ysgol Sarn Bach, there are two classes, one with 22 pupils aged between 3 and 8 years, 

and one with 24 pupils aged between 8 and 11 years (September 2020). If the proposal 

is implemented, appropriate attention will need to be given to any potential impacts on 

class sizes in order to ensure the best opportunities and experiences for the children.   

 

Page 28



 

7 
 

8.3 Pupil Numbers 

 

8.3.1 Pupil numbers at Ysgol Abersoch have varied over the years; however, in general, there 

has been a 50% drop over the past 5 years. According to the projections created in 

September 2020, it is anticipated that numbers will remain low over the next three years.  

See below (table 1) the numbers at Ysgol Abersoch since September 2014 up to the 

projections for September 2023. The figures below do not include the potential impact 

of the Cylch Meithrin on the school.   

 Table 1: Numbers at Ysgol Abersoch (N - Yr. 3) 

Actual Numbers  (Source: Annual Census - September)  
 

Projections (Source: September 2020) 

2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 

22 20 24 17 13 9 10 10 12 12 

 

8.3.2 Ysgol Sarn Bach has capacity of 72 (N - Yr. 6), and in September 2020 it had 45 full-time 

pupils (reception - Yr. 6) and 3 part-time pupils (Nursery). With 24 surplus places (N-Yr. 

6), Ysgol Sarn Bach has sufficient capacity to accept all current pupils from Ysgol 

Abersoch.   

 

8.3.3 As a result of the low numbers, there are also a number of surplus places in Ysgol 

Abersoch - around 76% (32 in total). Welsh Government's School Organisation Code 

(2018) notes that there are "excessive numbers of unused places that could be removed 

meaning that resources are tied up unproductively... A significant level of surplus 

provision is defined as 25% or more of a school’s capacity." Currently, between Ysgol 

Abersoch and Ysgol Sarn Bach, there are 56 (49%) surplus places in the area. Delivering 

the preferred option would reduce the number of surplus places in the area to 14 (19%).   
 

8.4 Leadership and Staffing 

 

8.4.1 The current staffing structure of Ysgol Abersoch includes one full-time headteacher, a 

part-time teacher, part-time PPA teacher and a part-time assistant. The Headteacher 

teaches for 70% of the time and receives 30% of non-contact time for managerial and 

leadership matters.  

 

8.4.2 At Ysgol Sarn Bach, there is a headteacher, two part-time teachers (FTE 1.0), and three 

part-time assistants. The Headteacher teaches for 80% of the time and receives 20% of 

non-contact time for managerial and leadership matters.   

 

8.5 Financial Resources 

 

8.5.1 There is a broad range in the cost per pupil in the area:  

 Ysgol Abersoch - £17,404 

 Ysgol Sarn Bach - £4,683 

 Ysgol Foel Gron - £4,982 

 Ysgol Llanbedrog - £4,274 

(2020-21 Budget - Based on the numbers in September 2019)   

 

Page 29



 

8 
 

8.5.2 This means that the cost of educating a pupil at Ysgol Abersoch is over £10,000 more 

than in nearby schools.   

 

8.5.3 In addition, in terms of the cost per pupil, Ysgol Abersoch is the highest school in the 

county. The average Gwynedd-wide cost per pupil is £4,198.  

 

8.5.4 Below is a summary of Ysgol Abersoch's financial allocation compared to Ysgol Sarn Bach. 

 
Ysgol Abersoch Ysgol Sarn Bach 

2020-21 Allocation £84,558 £228,890 

£ Minimum Staffing Protection (2020-21) £52,582 - 

2020-21 Total Allocation £137,140 £228,890 

£ per pupil (based on September 2019 
numbers) 

£17,404 £4,683 

 

8.5.5 Ysgol Abersoch receives an additional amount to the usual allocation via the minimum 

staffing protection policy (which ensures at least a headteacher and teacher at each 

school, and a headteacher and an assistant in schools with fewer than 15 pupils). This 

current financial year (2020-21), this sum amounted to a total of £52,582.  

 

8.5.6 Ysgol Sarn Bach does not receive an additional amount through the protection policy.  

The school's current numbers attract a sufficient budget to maintain an appropriate 

staffing level.  

 

8.5.7 In the 2020-21 financial year, a total of £366,030 was allocated to the two schools. In 

terms of revenue costs, it is projected that the proposal would create an annual saving 

of £110,062, less the costs of additional transport needs (£14,000) - namely around 

£96,062 a year.    

 

8.6 Learning Environment 

 

8.6.1 Ysgol Sarn Bach has capacity for the existing current pupils at Ysgol Abersoch. The 

Property Department's latest condition assessment notes that the condition category of 

both Ysgol Abersoch and Ysgol Sarn Bach is 'B'. 

 

8.6.2 Both schools are community schools and provide Welsh medium education 

 

8.7 The Community  

 

8.7.1 Welsh Government guidance (The School Organisation Code 011/2018) states that a 

community impact assessment must be held as part of any proposal for schools 

reorganisation. A community impact assessment was carried out on the list of options 

noted in paragraph 6.3. See the full report in Appendix 2. 

 

Page 30



 

9 
 

8.7.2 In brief, the assessment notes that there would be some negative impact on the 

community as a result of closing the school. Nevertheless, it is noted that 25 pupils (N-

Y6) who live in the Abersoch catchment area already attend Ysgol Sarn Bach; therefore, 

it is concluded that a link already exists between the school and the broader area.   

 

8.7.3 To mitigate any potential negative impact on the community should the proposal be 

realised, the assessment notes the importance of ensuring that the Abersoch community 

is included in the activities of the alternative school, and to encourage community 

collaboration between the alternative school and Abersoch community, where 

appropriate. 

 

8.8 The Welsh Language 

 

8.8.1 Welsh Government guidance (School Organisation Code 011/2018) notes that a Welsh 

language impact assessment must be held as part of any proposal for school 

reorganisation. A Welsh language impact assessment was carried out on the list of 

options noted in paragraph 6.3. See the full report in Appendix 2. 

 

8.8.2 It is noted in the assessment that no negative impact is anticipated on the Welsh 

language, should the proposal be implemented. It appears that the linguistic situation at 

Ysgol Sarn Bach is very strong.  With 57% of Ysgol Sarn Bach pupils coming from Welsh 

speaking homes. In comparison, 33% of Ysgol Abersoch pupils come from Welsh speaking 

homes.   

 

8.8.3 Ysgol Abersoch has worked hard to develop the children's bilingual skills and promote 

the importance of Welsh culture. In addition, in 2019, the school managed to secure the 

Welsh Language Charter gold award. Therefore, it is important that the proposal 

acknowledges the need to support and continue this work.   

 

8.9 Geographical Factors 

 

8.9.1 It is noted in the "Excellent Primary Education for the Children of Gwynedd" Strategy that 

an attempt should be made to restrict travelling to a maximum of 30 minutes of one-way 

travel between the home and the school. From implementing the proposal, it is 

anticipated that all existing pupils of the school would be within a reasonable distance 

(less than 30 minutes of travel) to the alternative school, Ysgol Sarn Bach.   
 

8.9.2 If the proposal was implemented, the pupils who live within the Ysgol Abersoch 

catchment area would receive transport to Ysgol Sarn Bach, in accordance with the 

County's School Transport Policy.  
 

9. IMPLICATIONS OF THE PROPOSAL  

 

9.1 Schools admissions catchment areas 

 

9.1.1 It should be noted that Ysgol Sarn Bach already accepts pupils from the Ysgol Abersoch 

catchment area at the beginning of September following their 8th birthday.    

Page 31



 

10 
 

 

9.1.2 If the proposal was implemented, the Ysgol Sarn Bach catchment area would be 

amended to include the existing Ysgol Abersoch catchment area.     

Map 1: Area's existing catchment areas  

 

Map 2: Ysgol Sarn Bach Catchment Area if the proposal was implemented  

 

9.2 Transport 

 

9.2.1 As noted in para. 8.9.2 above; if the proposal was implemented, the pupils who live 

within the catchment area of Ysgol Abersoch would receive transport to Ysgol Sarn Bach 

in accordance with the County's School Transport Policy.  

 

9.3 Staffing Considerations 

 

9.3.1 If the proposal was implemented, there would be staffing implications that could lead to 

redundancies. There will be consultation with staff and Union representatives specifically 

as part of the statutory consultation period. Gwynedd Council has developed a detailed 

staffing policy, jointly with Trade Unions and headteachers. Any redundancies resulting 

from this proposal will have to comply with that policy. Clear and open communication 

will play a fundamental part in the implication of any proposals.  

 

Page 32



 

11 
 

10. OTHER CONSIDERATIONS 

 

10.1 The School Organisation Code 011/2018 

 

10.1.1 Any statutory process will be conducted in accordance with Welsh Government 

Guidelines (School Organisation Code 011/2018).  

 

10.1.2 As part of the process of developing the proposal, a range of options for the school were 

considered and evaluated and a series of impact assessments were undertaken, 

including: 

 Welsh Language Impact Assessment (see para. 8.8) 

 Assessment of the likely impact on the quality and standards of education  

 Assessment of the likely impact on different transport arrangements  

 Assessment of the likely impact on the community (see para. 8.7)  

 

10.1.3 The above assessments are included in Appendix 2. 

 

10.2 Equality Assessment 

 

10.2.1 An equality impact assessment was carried out on the proposal - see the full report in 

Appendix 2. 

 

10.2.2 The assessment gives specific attention to various equality elements such as race, 

gender, disability, language, religion or belief and age. The assessment notes the current 

situation and shows that policies and procedures are in place which will ensure that the 

proposal considers and is in accordance with equal rights. 
 

10.2.3 Having weighed-up the relevant factors, it is concluded that the proposal is unlikely to 

have a negative impact on equality characteristics. It is noted that measures are already 

in place to ensure that there will be no unlawful discrimination and harassment.   
 

10.2.4 The Council will follow the usual procedures by supporting and monitoring, in order to 

ensure the compliance of every school with the equality characteristics.   

 

10.3 Well-being of Future Generations Act 

 

10.3.1 The Education Department has a role in promoting the well-being objectives of the Act 

amongst pupils in the county through its activities and projects. The Act sets a duty on 

public bodies in Wales to improve economic, social, environmental and cultural well-

being. As part of the duty, the Council has published well-being objectives that outline 

the way it will improve well-being in the "2018-23 Gwynedd Plan".  

 

10.3.2 Following consideration and an assessment in line with the requirements of the Well-

being Act, it is concluded that the proposal did satisfy the seven well-being objectives 

within the Act (as noted in para 8.1), and the Council's well-being objectives. This 

proposal will allow us to respond to and address the children's needs today, and 

strengthen their future well-being. 

Page 33



 

12 
 

 

10.3.3 See the full report in Appendix 2. 

 

11. NEXT STEPS AND TIMETABLE 

 

 

11.1 If the Cabinet resolves to support the recommendation submitted in this report - a period 

of statutory consultation will need to be undertaken in accordance with the School 

Standards and Organisation (Wales) Act 2013 and the guidance given in the School 

Organisation Code 011/2018. It is anticipated that this will be held in the coming weeks. 

 

11.2 Subsequently, a further report will be submitted to the Cabinet in order to report back 

on the outcomes of this consultation. The Cabinet will then have to consider the 

outcomes of the consultation, and decide whether or not a Statutory Notice should be 

published.  If a Statutory Notice is issued, a period of 28 days is allowed for any objection 

to be submitted. Following the period, a further report will be submitted to the Cabinet 

for a final decision. That report will include a summary of any objections received along 

with responses to them.   

 

12. VIEWS OF THE STATUTORY OFFICERS 

Monitoring Officer: 

The contents of this report has been the subject of legal advice by the Legal Service.  

No further comments regarding propriety. 

Head of Finance Department:

There are clear reasons (including financial ones) supporting the proposal to close Ysgol 

Abersoch. I can confirm that the financial figures in sections 3.3 and 8.5.1-8.5.7 of the report and 

in the 'Financial Resources' section of Appendix 1 are either true accurate costs, or fair estimates 

(where appropriate). Establishing the new arrangements (closing Ysgol Abersoch and providing 

pupil places at Ysgol Sarn Bach) would save £110,062, less additional transport needs (currently 

estimated at around £14,000), resulting in annual net savings of approximately £96,062 (as noted 

in clause 8.5.7 of the report). 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 34



 

13 
 

Appendices 

Appendix 1: Comparison of the characteristics of the models against the strategy’s factors.   

Appendix 2: Impact Assessments: 

- An Assessment of the likely Impact on the Quality and Standard of Education 
- Assessment of the likely impact on travel arrangements 
- Assessment of the likely impact on the community 
- Language Impact Assessment 
- Well-being Assessment 
- Equality Assessment  

Appendix 3: Background pack, which includes presentations and minutes of the local meetings.  

 

Page 35



Appendix 1 

 

 

 

 
 

 
Options Appraisal  

Ysgol Abersoch 

 

 

Page 36



 

1 
 

 1 2 (a) 2 (b)  3 4 

 Status Quo Change the age range of Ysgol 
Abersoch from 3-8 years to 3-11 years 

Change the age range of Ysgol 
Abersoch from 3-8 years to 3-9 years 

Federalise with a nearby school Federalise with a nearby school locating 
the Foundation Phase on the site of Ysgol 

Abersoch, and KS2 on the site of the 
nearby school 

Class Sizes and Age 
Range 

Ysgol Abersoch class sizes remain 
small – 1 class of 10 (September 
2020) 
 
Age range of up to 5 years remains 
in the class. 
  

Ysgol Abersoch class sizes remain small – 1 
class of 10 (September 2020) 
  
Age range of up to 5 years remains in the 
class. 
  
 

Ysgol Abersoch class sizes remain small – 1 
class of 10 (September 2020) 
  
Age range of up to 5 years remains in the 
class. 
  

Ysgol Abersoch class sizes remain small – 1 class of 
10 (September 2020) 
  
Age range of up to 5 years remains in the class. 
  

Pupils educated in more viably sized classes. 
 
Pupils educated with more children in the same 
age group. 
 
Age range of up to 4 years remains in FP class + 
KS2 class. 
 

Pupil Numbers Numbers would remain low at 
Ysgol Abersoch. 
 
32 surplus places (76%). 
 
School projections continue to 
appear fragile in terms of numbers. 
 
Cylch Meithrin and Cylch Ti a Fi 
opened on the school site in 
February 2020, this could lead to 
an increase in pupil numbers. 
 

Numbers would remain low at Ysgol 
Abersoch. 
 
32 surplus places (76%). 
  
School projections continue to appear fragile 
in terms of numbers. 
 
Extending the provision to year 6 is likely to 
lead to an increase in pupil numbers and 
consequently reduce surplus places. 
 
Cylch Meithrin and Cylch Ti a Fi opened on 
the school site in February 2020, this could 
lead to an increase in pupil numbers. 

Numbers would remain low at Ysgol 
Abersoch. 
 
32 surplus places (76%). 
  
School projections continue to appear fragile 
in terms of numbers. 
 
Extending the provision to year 4 is likely to 
lead to an increase in pupil numbers, and 
consequently reduce surplus places, but not 
as much as option 2 (a). 
Cylch Meithrin and Cylch Ti a Fi opened on 
the school site in February 2020, this could 
lead to an increase in pupil numbers. 
 

Numbers would remain low at Ysgol Abersoch. 
 
32 surplus places (76%). 
  
School projections continue to appear fragile in 
terms of numbers. 
 
Cylch Meithrin and Cylch Ti a Fi opened on the 
school site in February 2020, this could lead to an 
increase in pupil numbers. 
 

Pupil numbers at the school would likely 
increase as Ysgol Abersoch would be the 
provider of FP education for pupils in the 2 
schools within the catchment area. 
 
Restricting the neighbouring school to provide 
education for KS2 pupils only would lead to a 
reduction in pupil numbers at that school. 
 
Cylch Meithrin and Cylch Ti a Fi opened on the 
school site in February 2020, this could lead to 
an increase in pupil numbers. 
 

Leadership and 
Staffing 

No change to the headteacher's 
non-contact time. 
 
 

No change to the headteacher's non-contact 
time. 
 
 

No change to the headteacher's non-contact 
time. 
 
 

Opportunities to share staff and share expertise 
across the schools. Opportunities to collaborate on 
curricular issues and develop joint plans. 
 

Opportunities to share staff and share expertise 
across the schools. Opportunities to collaborate 
on curricular issues and develop joint plans. 
 

The Community Retaining school presence in the 
village – no effect on the 
relationship between the school 
and the local community. 
 
Uncertainty remains regarding the 
long-term sustainability of the 
school. 
 
High percentage of Ysgol Abersoch 
catchment area pupils already 
attend out of catchment schools. 

Retaining school presence in the village – no 
effect on the relationship between the 
school and the local community. 
 
Should the numbers remain low, the 
uncertainty regarding the long term 
sustainability of the school would continue.  
 
High percentage of Ysgol Abersoch 
catchment area pupils already attend out of 
catchment schools. 
 

Retaining school presence in the village – no 
effect on the relationship between the 
school and the local community. 
 
Should the numbers remain low, the 
uncertainty regarding the long term 
sustainability of the school would continue. 
 
High percentage of Ysgol Abersoch 
catchment area pupils already attend out of 
catchment schools. 

Retaining school presence in the village – no effect 
on the relationship between the school and the 
local community. 
 
Uncertainty remains regarding the long-term 
sustainability of the school. 
 
High percentage of Ysgol Abersoch catchment area 
pupils already attend out of catchment schools. 

Retaining school presence in the village – no 
effect on the relationship between the school 
and the local community. 
 
 

Financial Resources Ysgol Abersoch remains financially 
unsustainable and therefore 
receives an additional minimum 
staffing protection allocation from 
the authority to ensure appropriate 
staffing levels (£52,582 in 2020-21) 
 
Average cost per pupil remains 
high, £17,404 over four times the 
county average, and the highest in 
the county. 

Ysgol Abersoch remains financially 
unsustainable and therefore receives an 
additional minimum staffing protection 
allocation from the authority to ensure 
appropriate staffing levels (£52,582 in 2020-
21) 
 
Average cost per pupil remains high, £17,404 
over four times the county average, and the 
highest in the county. 
  

Ysgol Abersoch remains financially 
unsustainable and therefore receives an 
additional minimum staffing protection 
allocation from the authority to ensure 
appropriate staffing levels (£52,582 in 2020-
21) 
 
Average cost per pupil remains high, £17,404 
over four times the county average, and the 
highest in the county. 
  

Ysgol Abersoch remains financially unsustainable 
and therefore receives an additional minimum 
staffing protection allocation from the authority to 
ensure appropriate staffing levels (£52,582 in 2020-
21) 
 
Average cost per pupil remains high, £17,404 over 
four times the county average, and the highest in 
the county. 
  

Ysgol Abersoch remains financially unsustainable 
and therefore receives an additional minimum 
staffing protection allocation from the authority 
to ensure appropriate staffing levels (£52,582 in 
2020-21) 
  
Cost per pupil likely to remain high. 
 
Opportunity to share resources and access to 
budgets across the schools in the federation. 
 

Key 

Blue Font –
Advantages 

Red Font – 
Disadvantages 

Black Font – Facts / 
Comments 
 
 

P
age 37



 

2 
 

With the opening of a Cylch 
Meithrin and Ti a Fi on the Ysgol 
Abersoch site, there is potential to 
generate income by charging 
childcare providers for the use of 
the school. 
 

If the numbers were to increase, it would 
lead to a reduction in the cost per pupil. 
 
With the opening of a Cylch Meithrin and Ti a 
Fi on the Ysgol Abersoch site, there is 
potential to generate income by charging 
childcare providers for the use of the school. 

If the numbers increased, it would lead to a 
reduction in the cost per pupil. 
 
With the opening of a Cylch Meithrin and Ti a 
Fi on the Ysgol Abersoch site, there is 
potential to generate income by charging 
childcare providers for the use of the school.  
 

Opportunity to share resources and access to 
budgets across the schools in the federation. 
 
Any managerial saving resulting from the 
arrangement would be retained by the schools to 
run the federation. 
 
With the opening of a Cylch Meithrin and Ti a Fi on 
the Ysgol Abersoch site, there is potential to 
generate income by charging childcare providers for 
the use of the school.  

If the numbers increased, it would lead to a 
reduction in the cost per pupil. 
 
Any managerial saving resulting from the 
arrangement would be retained by the schools 
to run the federation. 
  
With the opening of a Cylch Meithrin and Ti a Fi 
on the Ysgol Abersoch site, there is potential to 
generate income by charging childcare providers 
for the use of the school. 

Welsh Language  No change in the situation 
regarding the language. 
 
Welsh medium education 
continues in Abersoch village - 
continue to promote and facilitate 
the use of Welsh locally / within 
the community. 

No change in the situation regarding the 
language. 
 
Welsh medium education continues in 
Abersoch village - continue to promote and 
facilitate the use of Welsh locally / within the 
community. 

No change in the situation regarding the 
language. 
 
Welsh medium education continues in 
Abersoch village - continue to promote and 
facilitate the use of Welsh locally / within the 
community. 

No change in the situation regarding the language. 
 
Welsh medium education continues in Abersoch 
village - continue to promote and facilitate the use 
of Welsh locally / within the community. 

No change in the situation regarding the 
language. 
 
Welsh medium education continues in Abersoch 
village - continue to promote and facilitate the 
use of Welsh locally / within the community. 

Geographical Factor No change. 
 
School within walking distance of 
the home of most Abersoch 
catchment area pupils. 

No change. 
 
School within walking distance of the home 
of most Abersoch catchment area pupils. 

No change. 
 
School within walking distance of the home 
of most Abersoch catchment area pupils. 

No change. 
 
School within walking distance of the home of most 
Abersoch catchment area pupils. 

No change for FP pupils. 
School within walking distance of the home of 
most Abersoch catchment area FP pupils.  
 

Some pupils would have to travel further to 
school than they do at present - need to 
consider the environmental impact. 
 

Further 
considerations 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 No disruption to the school's KS2 provision - 
may lead to better curriculum continuity as 
the school offers 2 full phase teaching (FP + 
KS2) 
 
The age range of the school would be 
consistent with most of the county's primary 
schools. 
 
The existing building / site, without 
modifications, would not be suitable for a 
large increase in pupil numbers. 

The age range of the school would not be 
consistent with most of the county's primary 
schools. 
 
The existing building / site, without 
modifications, would not be suitable for a 
large increase in pupil numbers. 

Federation is a model that depends on the 
willingness of other schools to join the co-operation 
arrangement. 

Federation is a model that depends on the 
willingness of other schools to join the co-
operation arrangement. 
 
The federation could be subject to a statutory 
process to change the age range of schools. 
 
Potentially it would lead to a reduction in 
number of pupils attending the nearby school, 
as it would be restricted to provide KS2 
education only. 

Comments from SRP 
members 

Small classes can be an advantage. 
 
Potential for numbers to increase 
through local housing initiative. 
 
Continuing opportunities to 
strengthen the Welsh language in 
the school and community. 
 
Ysgol Abersoch has been awarded 
the Gwynedd Language Charter 
Gold Award. 

Small classes can be an advantage. 
 
Ysgol Abersoch has been awarded the 
Gwynedd Language Charter Gold Award 
 
 

Small classes can be an advantage. 
 
Pupils have the option to continue their 
education for an additional year at Ysgol 
Abersoch. 
 
  
Ysgol Abersoch has been awarded the 
Gwynedd Language Charter Gold Award 

Small classes can be an advantage. 
  
Concern about the lack of full representation of the 
communities on the federal governing body. 
 
Ysgol Abersoch has been awarded the Gwynedd 
Language Charter Gold Award 

Concern about the lack of full representation of 
the communities on the federal governing body. 
   

Classes too large in terms of pupil numbers can 
be disadvantageous - but, isn't it true that there 
would be room for two CS classes at Ysgol 
Abersoch and three KS2 classes at Ysgol Sarn 
Bach? 
 
 

The change could lead to parents choosing not 
to send their children to the school. 
 
Ysgol Abersoch has been awarded the Gwynedd 
Language Charter Gold Award. 
 
 
 
 

P
age 38



 

3 
 

 5 6 7 8 (a) 8 (b) 

 Federalise with neighbouring 
schools locating Foundation 

Phase + Years 3 and 4 + Years 
5 and 6 on 3 different school 

sites 

Close Ysgol Abersoch and offer pupils 
a place at a nearby school 

Locate a Language Centre on the site 
of Ysgol Abersoch 

Establish a Cylch Meithrin at Ysgol Abersoch Change the age range of Ysgol Abersoch 
from 3-8 years to 3-9 years and establish 

a Cylch Meithrin at Ysgol Abersoch 

Class Sizes and Age 
Range 

Pupils educated in more viably 
sized classes. 
 
Pupils educated with more children 
in the same age group. 
 

 

Pupils educated in more viably sized classes. 
 
Pupils educated with more children in the 
same age group. 
 
Age range of up to 4 years remains in FP class 
+ KS2 class. 

Ysgol Abersoch class sizes remain small – 1 
class of 10 (September 2020), 
 
Age range of up to 5 years remains in the 
class. 

 

Ysgol Abersoch class sizes remain small – 1 class of 
10 (September 2020), 
 
Age range of up to 5 years remains in the class. 

 

Ysgol Abersoch class sizes remain small – 1 class 
of 10 (September 2020), 
 
Age range of up to 5 years remains in the class. 
  

 

Pupil Numbers School pupil numbers would likely 
increase as Ysgol Abersoch would 
be the provider of FP education for 
pupils in the 3 schools within the 
catchment area. 
 
Restricting the neighbouring 
schools to provide education for 3 
and 4 + 5 and 6 pupils only would 
lead to a reduction in pupil 
numbers at those schools. 
 
Cylch Meithrin and Cylch Ti a Fi 
opened on the school site in 
February 2020, this could lead to 
an increase in pupil numbers. 
 

Numbers at the school providing education in 
the area would be much stronger and 
sustainable for the future. 
 
Reduction in the percentage of surplus places 
in the area. 

Numbers would remain low at Ysgol 
Abersoch. 
 
School projections continue to appear fragile 
in terms of numbers. 
 
Cylch Meithrin and Cylch Ti a Fi opened on 
the school site in February 2020, this could 
lead to an increase in pupil numbers. 
 
 

Numbers would remain low at Ysgol Abersoch. 
 
32 surplus places (76%). 
  
School projections continue to appear fragile in 
terms of numbers. 
 
Cylch Meithrin and Cylch Ti a Fi opened on the 
school site in February 2020, this could lead to an 
increase in pupil numbers. 
  

Numbers would remain low at Ysgol Abersoch. 
 
32 surplus places (76%). 
 
School projections continue to appear fragile in 
terms of numbers. 
 
Extending the provision to year 4 is likely to lead 
to an increase in pupil numbers, and 
consequently reduce surplus places, but not as 
much as option 2 (a).  
 
Cylch Meithrin and Cylch Ti a Fi opened on the 
school site in February 2020, this could lead to 
an increase in pupil numbers. 
 

Leadership and 
Staffing 

Opportunities to share staff and 
share expertise across the schools.  
Opportunities to collaborate on 
curricular issues and develop joint 
plans. 

Staff redundancies.  
 
 
 

No change to the headteacher's non-contact 
time. 
 
 
 

No change to the headteacher's non-contact time. 
 
 
 

No change to the headteacher's non-contact 
time. 
 
 
 

The Community Retaining school presence in the 
village – no effect on the 
relationship between the school 
and the local community. 
 
 

Loss of school presence in Abersoch village. 
 
A high percentage of Ysgol Abersoch 
catchment-area pupils already attend out-of-
catchment schools, therefore a link between 
the neighboring schools and the community 
in Abersoch already exists. 

Retaining school presence in the village – no 
effect on the relationship between the 
school and the local community. 
 
Uncertainty remains regarding the long-term 
sustainability of the school. 
 
High percentage of Ysgol Abersoch 
catchment area pupils already attend out of 
catchment schools. 

Retaining school presence in the village – no effect 
on the relationship between the school and the 
local community. 
 
Should the numbers remain low, the uncertainty 
regarding the long term sustainability of the school 
would continue.  
 
High percentage of Ysgol Abersoch catchment area 
pupils already attend out of catchment schools. 

Retaining school presence in the village – no 
effect on the relationship between the school 
and the local community. 
 
Should the numbers remain low, the uncertainty 
regarding the long term sustainability of the 
school would continue.  
 
High percentage of Ysgol Abersoch catchment 
area pupils already attend out of catchment 
schools. 

Financial Resources Opportunity to share resources and 
access to budgets across the 
schools in the federation. 
 
If the numbers were increased, it 
would lead to a reduction in the 
cost per pupil. 
 
Any managerial saving resulting 
from the arrangement would be 

May lead to increased transport costs for the 
authority (if alternative school is more than 2 
miles from pupils' homes) 
 
The school would not remain in the minimum 
staffing protection allocation. 
 
Cost per pupil for teaching would be closer to 
the county average. 
 
  

Ysgol Abersoch remains financially 
unsustainable and therefore receives an 
additional minimum staffing protection 
allocation from the authority to ensure 
appropriate staffing levels (£52,582 in 2020-
21) 
 
Average cost per pupil remains high, £17,404 
over four times the county average, and the 
highest in the county. 
  

Potential to generate income by charging a fee on 
the child care providers. 
 
Ysgol Abersoch remains financially unsustainable 
and therefore receives an additional minimum 
staffing protection allocation from the authority to 
ensure appropriate staffing levels (£52,582 in 2020-
21) 
 

Potential to generate income by charging a fee 
on the child care providers. 
 
Ysgol Abersoch remains financially unsustainable 
and therefore receives an additional minimum 
staffing protection allocation from the authority 
to ensure appropriate staffing levels (£52,582 in 
2020-21) 
 

P
age 39



 

4 
 

retained by the schools to run the 
federation. 
  
With the opening of a Cylch 
Meithrin and Ti a Fi on the Ysgol 
Abersoch site, there is potential to 
generate income by charging 
childcare providers for the use of 
the school. 
 
The 3 schools may require an 
additional allocation to ensure 
appropriate staffing levels. 

Implementing the option would not generate 
income for the school in terms of the 
language centre. 
 
With the opening of a Cylch Meithrin and Ti a 
Fi on the Ysgol Abersoch site, there is 
potential to generate income by charging 
childcare providers for the use of the school.  
 
If the numbers were increased, it would lead 
to a reduction in the cost per pupil. 

Average cost per pupil remains high, £17,404 over 
four times the county average, and the highest in 
the county. 
  
If the numbers were increased, it would lead to a 
reduction in the cost per pupil. 

Average cost per pupil remains high, £17,404 
over four times the county average, and the 
highest in the county. 
  
If the numbers were increased, it would lead to 
a reduction in the cost per pupil. 

Welsh Language  No change in the situation 
regarding the language. 
 
Welsh medium education 
continues in Abersoch village - 
continue to promote and facilitate 
the use of Welsh locally / within 
the community. 

Loss of Welsh medium education in Abersoch 
village. 
 
Similar Welsh-medium education provision 
offered at alternative school. 

No change in the situation regarding the 
language. 
 
Welsh medium education continues in 
Abersoch village - continue to promote and 
facilitate the use of Welsh locally / within the 
community. 

No change in the situation regarding the language. 
 
Welsh medium education continues in Abersoch 
village - continue to promote and facilitate the use 
of Welsh locally / within the community. 

No change in the situation regarding the 
language. 
 
Welsh medium education continues in Abersoch 
village - continue to promote and facilitate the 
use of Welsh locally / within the community. 

Geographical Factor No change for FP pupils. 
School within walking distance of 
the home of most Abersoch 
catchment area FP pupils.  
 

Some pupils would have to travel 
further to school than they do at 
present - need to consider the 
environmental impact. 

No pupil in the area will travel an 
unreasonable distance to school. 
 
 
Some pupils would have to travel further to 
school than they do at present - need to 
consider the environmental impact. 

No change. 
 
School within walking distance of the home 
of most Abersoch catchment area pupils. 

No change. 
 
School within walking distance of the home of most 
Abersoch catchment area pupils. 

No change. 
 
School within walking distance of the home of 
most Abersoch catchment area pupils. 

Further 
considerations 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Federation is a model that depends 
on the willingness of other schools 
to join the co-operation 
arrangement. 
 

It is not possible to federate 
schools with different legal status. 
 

The federation could be subject to 
a statutory process to change the 
age range of schools. 
 

Potentially it would lead to a 
reduction in number of pupils 
attending the nearby school, as it 
would be restricted to provide KS2 
education only. 
 

Pupils transferring 3 times during 
their time in primary school. 

 Sacrifice learning space to locate centre. 
 
Concerns regarding the lack of demand for 
additional language centre provision in the 
area. 

Sacrifice learning space to locate a Cylch Meithrin.  
 

Sacrifice learning space to locate a Cylch 
Meithrin.  
 
 

Comments from SRP 
members 

Concern about the lack of full 
representation of the communities 
on the federal governing body.   

Classes too large in terms of pupil 
numbers can be disadvantageous. 
 

The change could lead to parents 
choosing not to send their children 
to the school. 
 

Closing the school will lead to the closure of 
Cylch Meithrin, Ti a Fi, Urdd, Hunaniaith Craft 
Club and all other community initiatives the 
school is involved in including: 
• using the weekly bus service to the Leisure 
Center (children buy their own tickets, learn 
how to handle money, use public transport) 
• judging shop / business window decoration 
competitions for Christmas and St David's 
Day 
• Christmas and St David's Day concerts 

Small classes can be an advantage. 
 
Ysgol Abersoch has been awarded the 
Gwynedd Language Charter Gold Award. 

Small classes can be an advantage. 
 
Ysgol Abersoch has been awarded the Gwynedd 
Language Charter Gold Award. 

Small classes can be an advantage. 
  
Ysgol Abersoch has been awarded the Gwynedd 
Language Charter Gold Award. 

P
age 40



 

5 
 

Ysgol Abersoch has been awarded 
the Gwynedd Language Charter 
Gold Award. 

• singing at Age Cymru's Coffee Mornings, 
local shops and other organisations 
• beach visits 
• and much more! 
  
The Community: 
Neighboring schools do not have a significant 
presence or link with the local Abersoch 
community. 
It is not possible to emulate the contribution 
of the community if the school is not located 
in the village, e.g. the cost of transport in 
terms of the impact on money and 
environment versus walking 
 
Impact on daily contact with parents as each 
child is dropped off and collected at Ysgol 
Abersoch rather than catch a bus, allowing 
for invaluable and vital ongoing 
communication and development, 
encouraging Welsh learners to improve their 
Welsh. 
 
The Welsh Language: 
 
The loss of Welsh-medium education in 
Abersoch and the wider community would 
affect the use of Welsh as a living language 
and work (see Hunaniaith Gwynedd - Action 
Plan for Promoting the Welsh Language in 
Abersoch). 
 
Miss being involved in activities such as 
Shwmae Su´mae to distribute leaflets to the 
shops / businesses. 

 

P
age 41



Appendix 2 

 
Impact Assessment 

Ysgol Abersoch 

Assessment of the Likely 
Impact on the Quality and 

Standards of Education 

1 
 
 
 

Assessment of the Likely 
Impact on Travel 

Arrangements  
 

11 
 
 

Assessment of the Likely 
Impact on the Community 

19 
 
 

Language Impact 
Assessment 

33 
 
 

Well-being Assessment  46 
 
 

Equality Assessment  55 
 
 

 

Page 42



 

  

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 Quality and Standards in Education 

Assessment Report - Ysgol Abersoch 

- September 2020 
 

1
Page 43



 

Contents 

 

1. INTRODUCTION 

2. SUMMARY 

3. ASSESSMENT OF IMPACT ON QUALITY AND STANDARDS OF EDUCATION 

4. CONCLUSION 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

2
Page 44



 

1. INTRODUCTION  

 

At its meeting on 17 September 2019, Gwynedd Council's Cabinet approved the Education Department  

“to initiate formal discussions with the governing body and other relevant stakeholders of Ysgol Abersoch due to 

concerns over the school numbers, thus enabling a range of possible options to be drawn up relating to the future of 

the school.” 

 

As part of the process of developing a proposal (s) for school/school reorganisation, the authority is 
required to carry out an assessment of likely impact on the quality and standards of education, in 
accordance with the School Organisation Code (011/2018). 
 
The Council is committed to providing the highest quality education possible that will provide the County’s 
children with the experiences, skills and confidence to become bilingual, successful and fulfilled citizens. 
 
It continues to be a high priority to provide the best possible learning experiences - for all learners within 

the County, ensuring an exciting and broad curriculum, as well as extra-curricular activities that stimulate 

learning and understanding, and which will lead to improved standards. 

 

2. SUMMARY  

 

Following the last Estyn inspection in 2017 it was concluded that the school's current performance was 

Good. 

 

In 2019, the school was placed in the Yellow support category by the regional consortia under the Welsh 

Government's National System for categorising schools according to their current educational standards 

and improvement requirements. The Welsh Government defines a 'Yellow' category school as an “effective 

school that is already doing well and knows what areas it needs to improve”. 

 

Below is a summary of the latest surveys of neighbouring schools, or schools that are the subject of any of 

the possible models for the future of Ysgol Abersoch. 

 

2.1 Ysgol Abersoch  

 

Ysgol Abersoch is located in the centre of the village of Abersoch near Pwllheli, and provides education for 

3-8 year olds. Following year 3, pupils transfer to Ysgol Sarn Bach, the nearby school. When the school was 

last inspected in 2017, there were 21 pupils on roll, including 6 part-time nursery pupils. 

 

School 
Year of 

Inspection 

How good are 

the outcomes? 

How good is 

provision? 

How good are 

leadership and 

management 

Welsh 

Government 

Support 

Category 2019 

Abersoch June 2017 Good Good Good Yellow 

 

 

 

3
Page 45



 

2.2 Other schools in the area  

 

School 
Year of 

Inspection 

How good are 

the outcomes? 

How good is 

provision? 

How good are 

leadership and 

management 

Welsh 

Government 

Support 

Category 2019 

Llanbedrog May 2014 Good Good Good Green 

Foel Gron October 2015 Good Good Good Yellow 

 
The table below summarise the school's Estyn inspection report which has been inspected since 
September 2017, when Estyn introduced the five areas of review: 
 

School 
Year of 

Inspection 
Standards 

Wellbeing 
and 

attitudes 
to learning 

Teaching 
and 

learning 
experiences 

Care, 
support and 

guidance 

Leadership and 
management 

Welsh 
Government 

Support Category 
2019 

Sarn Bach 
October 

2017 
Good Good Good Good Good Yellow 

 

 

 

  

4
Page 46



 

3. ASSESSMENT OF IMPACT ON QUALITY AND STANDARDS OF EDUCATION 

 

 

• Do nothing - continue with the current structure of the school. 
 
Please note that although the case for change has been established, the Do nothing model has been 

included in the assessment for comparison purposes. 

 

• Federation with a neighbouring school 
 

This option would involve establishing a formal collaboration arrangement, between a neighbouring 
school/schools. These schools would share a single governing body, but at the same time retain their legal 
status as separate entities, their financial allocation, name and school presses, and continue to have their 
own Estyn inspection. 
 
The formation of a formal federation with a school or other schools would strengthen the leadership 
position of the school, and increase pupils' opportunities to socialise and collaborate with peers. 
 
In this case, for geographical reasons, Ysgol Sarn Bach, and Ysgol Llanbedrog were considered as 
reasonable options for the collaborative arrangement. Ysgol Foel Gron was not considered as it is not 
possible to federate schools with charitable status, with those with Community status.  
 

• Extend the age range of Ysgol Abersoch from 3-8 years to 3-11 years 
 
At present, the age range of Ysgol Abersoch means that the school's education provision ceases at the end 
of year 3. Extending the age range to 3-11 would mean that the school can continue to educate pupils until 
the end of Key Stage 2, which is the end of year 6. This would be consistent with the age range of the 
majority of the county's primary schools. 
 

• Close Ysgol Abersoch and pupils to be educated at an alternative school 
 

This option would mean that Ysgol Abersoch would close, and the current pupils would be offered a place 

at Ysgol Sarn Bach (the alternative school). 

  

5
Page 47



 

DO NOTHING –  
ASSESSMENT OF THE IMPACT ON QUALITY AND STANDARDS OF EDUCATIONAL  

 

 

 
The above assessment has been based on the information of Ysgol Abersoch’s Estyn report June 2017. 

  

Positive Neutral  Negative 

Impact Criteria Description The impact and status of work 

Standards and general 
progress of specific 

groups and in terms of 
skills 

No change Neutral 

Well-being and attitude 
to learning No change Neutral 

Teaching and learning 
experiences 

No change Neutral 

Care guidance and 
support No change Neutral 

Leadership and 
management 

No change Neutral 

Vulnerable groups, 
including children with 

Additional Learning 
Needs (ALN) 

No change Neutral 

Provision that is at least 
commensurate with what 

is currently available to 
learners (including those 

with ALN) 

No change Neutral 

6
Page 48



 

EXTENDING THE SCHOOL'S AGE FROM 3-8 YEARS TO 3-11 YEARS – 

ASSESSMENT OF IMPACT ON QUALITY AND STANDARDS OF EDUCATIONAL  
 
 
 

 
The above assessment has been based on the information of Ysgol Abersoch’s Estyn report June 2017. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Positif Niwtral  Negyddol  

Impact Criteria Description The impact and status of work 

Standards and general 
progress of specific 

groups and in terms of 
skills 

A negative impact on these criteria is not 

envisaged by extending the age range of 

the school. 

Neutral 

Well-being and attitude 
to learning 

A negative impact on these criteria is not 
envisaged by extending the age range of 

the school. 
Neutral 

Teaching and learning 
experiences 

A negative impact on these criteria is not 
envisaged by extending the age range of 

the school. 
Neutral 

Care guidance and 
support 

A negative impact on these criteria is not 
envisaged by extending the age range of 

the school. 
Neutral 

Leadership and 
management 

A negative impact on these criteria is not 
envisaged by extending the age range of 

the school. 
Neutral 

Vulnerable groups, 
including children with 

Additional Learning 
Needs (ALN) 

A negative impact on these criteria is not 
envisaged by extending the age range of 

the school. 
Neutral 

Provision that is at least 
commensurate with what 

is currently available to 
learners (including those 

with ALN) 

A negative impact on these criteria is not 
envisaged by extending the age range of 

the school. 
Neutral 

7
Page 49



 

FEDERATION -   
ASSESSMENT OF IMPACT ON QUALITY AND STANDARDS OF EDUCATIONAL  

 

 

 

 
The above assessment has been made based on the information of the June 2017 Ysgol Abersoch Estyn report; Ysgol 

Sarn Bach October 2017, and Ysgol Llanbedrog May 2014.  

Positive Neutral  Negative 

Impact Criteria Description The impact and status of work 

Standards and general 
progress of specific groups 

and in terms of skills 

No negative impact is predicted on this 

criteria by federating with a 

neighbouring school. All the schools in 

question are at least in the same 

category as Abersoch. 

Neutral  

 

Well-being and attitude to 
learning 

No negative impact is predicted on this 

criteria by federating with a 

neighbouring school. All the schools in 

question are at least in the same 

category as Abersoch. 

Neutral  

  

Teaching and learning 
experiences 

No negative impact is predicted on this 

criteria by federating with a 

neighbouring school.  A federal model 

would likely include the same 

opportunities, with the potential to 

expand on this. 

Positive  

Care guidance and support 

No negative impact is predicted on this 

criteria by federating with a 

neighbouring school. All the schools in 

question are at least in the same 

category as Abersoch. 

Neutral  

  

Leadership and management 

Depending on the exact federal model, 

it can lead to saving Headteacher time 

by planning across the federation rather 

than for individual schools. 

Positive 

 

Vulnerable groups, including 
children with Additional 

Learning Needs (ALN) 

Provisions for vulnerable groups would 

not change under a federal model. 
Neutral  

Provision that is at least 
commensurate with what is 

currently available to learners 
(including those with ALN) 

No change as Ysgol Abersoch would 

continue. 
Neutral  

8
Page 50



 

CLOSE YSGOL ABERSOCH AND OFFER PUPILS A PLACE AT AN ALTERNATIVE SCHOOL -   
ASSESSMENT OF IMPACT ON QUALITY AND STANDARDS OF EDUCATIONAL  

 

 
 

 
The above assessment has been made based on the information of the Ysgol Abersoch June 2017 Estyn report, and 
Ysgol Sarn Bach October 2017.

Positive Neutral  Negative 

Impact Criteria Description 
The impact and 

status of work 

Standards and general progress 
of specific groups and in terms 

of skills 

The result of an Estyn survey for the Abersoch School standards 

indicators was 'Good', as was the result of the Ysgol Sarn Bach survey. 

Based on the information from the last surveys (2017) no impact is 

predicted by educating the children at Ysgol Sarn Bach. 

Neutral 

 

Well-being and attitude to 
learning 

The 'Wellbeing' indicator for Ysgol Abersoch, in their last inspection 

in 2017, was 'adequate' while the result at Ysgol Sarn Bach was 

'Good'. Based on the findings of these surveys, it is concluded that 

educating the children at Ysgol Sarn Bach would have a positive 

impact. 

Positive 

 

Teaching and learning 
experiences 

The 'learning experiences' indicator at Ysgol Abersoch was 

'adequate', and the 'teaching' indicator was 'good'. The outcome of 

an Estyn survey for 'Teaching and learning experiences' indicators 

was' Good' at Sarn Bach School in 2017. As a result, it is considered 

that the option may have a positive impact on pupils' teaching and 

learning experiences. Ysgol Sarn Bach can offer the opportunity to 

teach in larger groups and with peers to broaden their experiences. 

Positive 

Care guidance and support 

The results of the 'Care guidance and support' indicators were 'Good' 

in the last Ysgol Abersoch and Ysgol Sarn Bach inspection. Based on 

this information, no impact on this area is foreseen by teaching the 

pupils at Ysgol Sarn Bach. 

Neutral 

Leadership and management 
Ysgol Abersoch's last Estyn report noted that the leadership and 

management at the school are 'Good'. Ysgol Sarn Bach was also 

placed in the ‘Good’ category. 

Neutral 

Vulnerable groups, including 
children with Additional 

Learning Needs (ALN) 

Support for vulnerable groups including children with additional 

learning needs is provided in accordance with the Authority's policy, 

as in all schools in Gwynedd. 

Neutral 

Provision that is at least 
commensurate with what is 

currently available to learners 
(including those with ALN) 

The result of Estyn report for Ysgol Abersoch standards indicators 

was 'Good', as was the result of Ysgol Sarn Bach report. Based on the 

information from the last report (2017) no impact is predicted by 

educating the children at Ysgol Sarn Bach. 

Neutral  

9
Page 51



 

4. CONCLUSIONS 
 

Based on the outcome of the above assessments, it is concluded that the standard of education provided 

at Ysgol Sarn Bach is at the same level as that of Ysgol Abersoch. As a result, it is not anticipated that any 

negative impact in terms of quality and standards of education would result from the proposal to federate 

or close Ysgol Abersoch and transfer pupils to Ysgol Sarn Bach. Similarly, no negative impacts are predicted 

in terms of the quality and standards of education arising from the option of extending the age range of 

the school from 3-8 to 3-11. 

 

The information in this assessment following the most recent Estyn inspections of the schools in question 

indicates that all of the schools have been placed in at least an equivalent category for Ysgol Abersoch, and 

all of the schools have been ranked yellow, or green in terms of Welsh Government support category. 

 

 

10
Page 52



 

1 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 
 

Assessment Report of the likely impact on 

different travelling arrangements –  

Ysgol Abersoch 

- September 2020 
 

11 
Page 53



 

 

Context 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

  

  

1. INTRODUCTION  

1.1 Gwynedd Council Transport Policy 

1.2 Context of Ysgol Abersoch 

2. OPTIONS  

3. ASSESSMENT OF THE IMPACT ON TRANSPORT ARRANGEMENTS 

3.1 Location of the alternative school 

3.2 Free transport options 

3.3. Financial impact 

4. CONCLUSIONS 

  

12
Page 54



 

 

 

1. INTRODUCTION 

 

At its meeting on 17 September 2019, Gwynedd Council's Cabinet approved the Education Department 
 “to initiate formal discussions with the governing body and other relevant stakeholders of Ysgol Abersoch 
due to concerns over the school numbers, thus enabling a range of possible options to be drawn up relating 
to the future of the school.” 
 
As part of the process of developing a proposal (s) for school / school reorganisation, the authority is required 
to carry out an assessment of the likely impact on different travel arrangements, in accordance with the 
School Organisation Code (011/2018). 
 
The Council is committed to provide the highest quality of education as possible for the children of Gwynedd 
County along with the experiences, skills and confidence to develop into bilingual, successful and fulfilled 
citizens. 
 
It remains a high priority to provide the best possible learning experiences - for all learners within the County, 
ensuring an exciting and broad curriculum, as well as extra-curricular activities that stimulate learning and 
understanding, and which will lead to improved standards. 
  

1.1 Gwynedd Counci l  Transport Policy  

 

The ‘Excellent primary education for children in Gwynedd’ strategy aims to restrict travel from home to 

school to a one-way journey of no more than 30 minutes.  

 

Gwynedd Council provides free transport for learners who live two or more miles from the school in their 

catchment area, or the closest school (not including nursery pupils). Learners who receive a primary 

education are expected (except for learners with additional learning needs or disabilities), to walk up to two 

miles to meet any modes of transport provided by Gwynedd Council. The transport policy can be viewed in 

the Parent’s Handbook: (https://www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/en/Residents/Documents-Residents/Schools-

and-learning-documents/Guide-Book.pdf).  

 

1.2 Context of  Ysgol Abersoch  

 

Ysgol Abersoch is located in the centre of the village of Abersoch near Pwllheli, and provides education for 

3-8 year olds. Following year 3, pupils transfer to Ysgol Sarn Bach, the neighbouring school. 

 

In September 2019, there were 25 pupils aged 3-8 living in the Ysgol Aberoch catchment area - 9 of those 

pupils attended Ysgol Abersoch. This means that 18 pupils from the catchment area (aged 3-8) attended out 

of catchment schools. In addition, 2 pupils from Ysgol Abersoch lived outside the catchment area. Further 

information can be found in the table below: 

 

 

13
Page 55

https://www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/en/Residents/Documents-Residents/Schools-and-learning-documents/Guide-Book.pdf
https://www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/en/Residents/Documents-Residents/Schools-and-learning-documents/Guide-Book.pdf


 

 

 
 

* For comparison purposes, the table above reflects the position in relation to pupils aged 3-8 only. 

 

2. OPTIONS 

 
 
 

 Do nothing - continue with the current structure of the school.  
(Although the case for change has been established, this model has been included in the assessment for 
comparison purposes) 

 
As this model would mean that pupils continue to be educated at Ysgol Abersoch, it is not envisaged that 

this model would have any impact on current travel arrangements. 

 

• Federation with a neighbouring school 
 

This option would involve establishing a formal collaboration arrangement, between a neighbouring 
school/schools. These schools would share a single governing body, but at the same time retain their legal 
status as separate entities, their financial allocation, name and school presses, and continue to have their 
own Estyn inspection. 
 
The formation of a formal federation with a school or other schools would strengthen the leadership position 
of the school, and increase pupils' opportunities to socialise and collaborate with peers. 
 
In this case, for geographical reasons, Ysgol Sarn Bach, and Ysgol Llanbedrog were considered as reasonable 
options for the collaborative arrangement. Ysgol Foel Gron was not considered as it is not possible to 
federate schools with charitable status, with those with Community status. 
 

As this model would mean that pupils continue to be educated at Ysgol Abersoch, it is not envisaged that 

this model would have any impact on current travel arrangements. 

 

Source: Census September 2019 

14
Page 56



 

 

 

 

• Extend the age range of Ysgol Abersoch from 3-8 years to 3-11 years 
 
At present, the age range of Ysgol Abersoch means that the school's education provision ceases at the end 
of year 3. Extending the age range to 3-11 would mean that the school can continue to educate pupils until 
the end of Key Stage 2, which is the end of year 6. This would be consistent with the age range of the majority 
of the county's primary schools. 
 
As this model would mean that pupils continue to be educated at Ysgol Abersoch, it is not envisaged that 
this model would have an impact on the travel arrangements of current pupils. However, if the option 
were to be implemented, further consideration would have to be given to the impact that changing 
catchment areas could have on the current transport arrangements for pupils aged 8-11 years in the 
Abersoch catchment area who have already opted to attend Ysgol Sarn Bach. 
 

• Close Ysgol Abersoch and pupils to be educated at an alternative school 
 

This option would mean that Ysgol Abersoch would close, and that current pupils would be offered a place 
at Ysgol Sarn Bach (the alternative school). 
 
Ysgol Sarn Bach is located 1.4 miles from Ysgol Abersoch. In accordance with Gwynedd Council's transport 
policy the authority would provide transport for pupils of the current catchment area of Ysgol Abersoch 
who would choose to attend Ysgol Sarn Bach and live more than 2 miles from the school. 
 
In addition, the pupils who would choose to attend Ysgol Sarn Bach but live less than 2 miles away from 
school, and are therefore not entitled to free transport, but traveling to school along a road the Council 
considers as very dangerous, free transport will be provided. 
 
 

3. ASSESSMENT OF THE IMPACT ON TRANSPORT ARRANGEMENTS  
 

 
3.1.  Location of the alternative school  
 
Ysgol Sarn Bach is located in the village of Sarn Bach, approximately 1.4 miles down the road from the centre 
of Abersoch. This is the nearest geographical school to Ysgol Abersoch. 
 
3.2.  Free transport options  
 
In line with Gwynedd Council's transport policy, learners receiving primary or secondary education (with the 
exception of learners with additional learning needs or disabilities) would be expected to walk up to two 
miles to meet any modes of transport provided by Gwynedd Council along the shortest route.   
 
The shortest route available is the route which is not deemed by the Council to be especially dangerous, 

after assessing the other routes available for the journey, and these routes would be assessed in line with 

Gwynedd Council's transport policy. 

 

15
Page 57



 

 

 

Ysgol Sarn Bach is the catchment school for pupils between the ages of 8 and 11 in the Abersoch catchment 

area. As the route to school is considered dangerous, the authority already provides free transport for some 

eligible pupils. 

 

Therefore a primary school bus already runs between Abersoch and Ysgol Sarn Bach, and it is envisaged that 

there would be sufficient empty seats for current pupils at Ysgol Abersoch. 

 

In line with current arrangements, pupils travel to school on a service bus and travel home on a dedicated 

school bus. Below is the current bus timetable for Ysgol Sarn Bach: 

 

 
 

If all pupils between the age of 3 and 8 in the Abersoch catchment area choose to take advantage of free 

transport, it is envisaged that the current arrangements would need to be adapted. The estimated additional 

costs that would result from this change are set out below. 

 

3.3. Financial impact  

The financial impact on travel arrangements is summarised below: 

 

  

 The probable impact on travel 

arrangements for learners 

The assessment of the probable 

annual financial impact on 

travel arrangements for the 

Authority  

Do nothing No Change   £0 

Extend the age range of Ysgol Abersoch 
from 3-8 years to 3-11 years 

No Change   £0 

Formally federalise with a school or 

other schools 

No Change   £0 

Close Ysgol Abersoch and offer pupils a 

place at Ysgol Sarn Bach 

Assemble at an agreed place to catch 

the bus. 

Provision of transport for the 

current 8 pupils: £ 0 

No additional costs - empty 

seats already available on the 

Ysgol Sarn Bach bus. 

Provision of transport for all 3-

8 pupils at Ysgol Abersoch 

catchment area (25 pupils): £ 

14,000 

Ysgol Sarn Bach's current 

transport arrangements would 

need to be modified - it may 

16
Page 58



 

 

 

require a specific school bus for 

Ysgol Sarn Bach (morning and 

afternoon). 

 

Should the proposal to close Ysgol Abersoch and provide pupils a place at Ysgol Sarn Bach be implemented, 

it is estimated that: 

 There would be no additional costs associated with providing transport for the current 8 pupils of 

Ysgol Abersoch as well as pupils from the Abersoch catchment area that already attend Ysgol Sarn 

Bach. It is understood that a bus already transports pupils from Abersoch to Ysgol Sarn Bach, and 

we understand that there would be sufficient empty seats on the bus for the current pupils at Ysgol 

Abersoch. It could be argued that implementing the proposal would make more cost effective use 

of the existing transport arrangements for transporting pupils to Ysgol Sarn Bach. 

 The additional costs of transport would be approximately £14,000 per year if all 3-8 year old pupils 

in the current Ysgol Abersoch catchment area chose to attend Ysgol Sarn Bach in the future. 
 

 

  

17
Page 59



 

 

4. CONCLUSIONS 

 

In summary, it is not anticipated that the option to form a Federation would affect current travel and 

transport arrangements as the pupils would continue to receive their education at Ysgol Abersoch. 

 

With the option to extend the age range of the school to 3-11 years, it is not anticipated that there would 

be an impact on the transport arrangements for the current school pupils. However, bearing in mind that 

Ysgol Sarn Bach is the catchment school for 8 - 11 year olds in the Abersoch catchment area, further 

consideration would have to be given to the impact that this option may have on the transport arrangements 

for 8-11 year old pupils in the Abersoch catchment area. 

 

Should the option to close Ysgol Abersoch and offer the pupils a place at Ysgol Sarn Bach be implemented, 

it is envisaged that the learners would be able to use the existing transport arrangements for Ysgol Sarn Bach 

– this would not result in an additional cost to the authority. 

 

If all 3-8 year olds in the Ysgol Abersoch catchment area required transport to Ysgol Sarn Bach, it is envisaged 

that the current transport arrangements at Ysgol Sarn Bach would need to be modified by arranging a larger 

bus. It is estimated that this would result in additional costs of £14,000 per annum. 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

18
Page 60



 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 
 
 

 

Community Impact Assessment Report 

Ysgol Abersoch 

- September 2020 
 

19
Page 61



 

Context 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

  

  

1. INTRODUCTION 

2. OPTIONS   

3. SUMMARY OF THE CATCHMENT AREA 

4. CATCHMENT AREA SCHOOL 

5. ASSESSMENT OF THE LIKELY IMPACT ON THE COMMUNITY 

6. CONCLUSIONS 

  

20
Page 62



 

1. INTRODUCTION 

 

As part of the statutory process, a community impact assessment is required in compliance with the 

School Organisation Coode 011/2018. This assessment is derived from the Welsh Government’s 

national guidance for schools reorganisation, including considerations of the unique needs of rural 

areas.  

 

"In some areas, a school may also be the main focal point for community activity, and its closure could 

have implications beyond the issue of the provision of education. This may be a particular feature in 

rural areas if school buildings are used as a place to provide services to the local community." 

 

"The case prepared by those bringing forward proposals should show that the impact of closure on the 

community has been assessed through the production of a Community Impact Assessment and how 

any community facilities currently provided by the school could be maintained." 

Source: The Schools Organisation Code 011/2018  

 

1.1 Background 

 

Ysgol Abersoch is located in the center of the village of Abersoch near Pwllheli, and provides 
education for pupils aged 3 to 8 years. Pupils transfer to Ysgol Sarn Bach after year 3 to complete 
their primary education. 
 
Ysgol Abersoch has a capacity of 42 (nursery to year 3), and in January 2020, it had 7 full-time pupils, 
and 2 nursery (part-time) pupils on roll. To date, (September 2020), there are 8 full time pupils, and 2 
part time pupils. 
 
At their meeting on 17 September 2019, Cabinet supported a recommendation to hold formal 
discussions with the governing body of Ysgol Abersoch to consider options for the future. The 
decision came as a result of recent concerns over low number of pupils on register. 
 
Between October 2019 and January 2020, 3 local meetings were held with stakeholders at Ysgol 
Abersoch where a number of options were proposed and discussed. Following the evaluation of 
those options, the list was refined to 3 options for further consideration in addition to the Do Nothing 
model.  
 

2. OPTIONS 

 
A number of options were proposed and discussed at the local meetings. Following an evaluation of 
these options against the Strategy factors, the list was refined into 3 options for further consideration, 
in addition to the Do Nothing option. 
 

 Do nothing - continue with the current structure of the school. 
 

 Form a federation with a neighbouring school 
 
This option would involve establishing a formal collaboration arrangement, between a neighbouring 
school/schools. These schools would share a single governing body, but at the same time retain their 

21
Page 63



 

legal status as separate entities, their financial allocation, name and school presses, and continue to 
have their own Estyn inspection. 
 
The formation of a formal federation with a school or other schools would strengthen the leadership 
position of the school, and increase pupils' opportunities to socialise and collaborate with peers. 
 
In this case, for geographical reasons, Ysgol Sarn Bach, and Ysgol Llanbedrog were considered as 
reasonable options for the collaborative arrangement. Ysgol Foel Gron was not considered as it is not 
possible to federate schools with charitable status, with those with Community status.  
 

 Extend the age range of Ysgol Abersoch from 3-8 years to 3-11 years 
 
At present, the age range of Ysgol Abersoch means that the school's education provision ceases at the 
end of year 3. Extending the age range to 3-11 would mean that the school can continue to educate 
pupils until the end of Key Stage 2, which is the end of year 6. This would be consistent with the age 
range of the majority of the county's primary schools. 
 

 Close Ysgol Abersoch and pupils to be educated at an alternative school 
 
This option would mean that Ysgol Abersoch would close, and that current pupils would be offered a 
place at Ysgol Sarn Bach (the alternative school). 
  

3. SUMMARY OF CATCHMENT AREA 

 

3.1  The Area 
 

Abersoch is a village in the community of Llanengan located on the Llŷn peninsula in Gwynedd, with 

approximately 800 residents. It is located 11 km (7 miles) from the town of Pwllheli and 43 km (27 

miles) from Caernarfon. 

 

According to the 2011 census, there are 783 people living in the Abersoch ward. 
 

3.2  The Economy  

 
75.6%, of people aged 16 to 74 within Abersoch ward are classified as economically active, 3.7% of 
whom are unemployed. 24.4% of people in the same age group are economically inactive with 3.6% of 
these sick or long term disabled. 
 
The type of industry in which the population is active varies in the area, with the highest rate (23.7%) 
working in Retail and Wholesale. 
 
According to data from the 'Welsh Index of Multiple Deprivation (2014)' the employment rate of 
Abersoch ward compared to other wards in Wales gives them a rank of 1404 out of 1909 wards. 
Abersoch ward is therefore not within the 50% most deprived area in Wales. 
 
There are a number of businesses operating in the village, including, a variety of shops, restaurants, 
cafes, pubs, self-catering accommodation, tourist attractions and a garage. 
 
 
 
 

22
Page 64



 

3.3  Deprivation  
 

Abersoch ward (which is wider than the geographical area of the school catchment area) is not within 
the 50% most deprived in Wales (a rank of 1417 out of 1909 wards). 
 
A number of areas make up this overall index, including income, employment, health, education, access 
to services, community safety, physical environment and housing. 
 
It is noted that Abersoch ward is within the 40% most deprived areas in Wales in the 'Housing' domain. 
The indicators in this area are the proportion of people living in overcrowded homes (bedroom usage), 
and the proportion of people living in homes without central heating. 
 
In addition, Abersoch ward is within the 40% most deprived areas in Wales in the 'access to services' 
field, i.e. deprivation because people cannot access a range of services that are considered essential 
for daily living. The indicators include average public and private travel times for a number of services 
such as grocery stores, GP surgeries, primary and secondary schools, post office, public library, 
pharmacy, leisure centre and private travel time to a petrol station. 
 
Below is a summary of how the Abersoch area is positioned in the context of other areas in Wales 
according to the Welsh Index of Multiple Deprivation (2014): 
 

Area  
Range in Wales, out of 1909 districts. (1 = most 
deprived and 1909 = least deprived) 

Most deprived in Wales % 

Employment  1404   

Income 1327   

Health   1312  

Education  1472   

Housing  577  Within 40-50% most deprived 

Physical environment 
 

 1725  

Access to Services  593 Within 40-50% most deprived 

Community safety 821 Within 50% most deprived 

  
3.4  The Community  

A number of activities take place in Abersoch, including; 
• Abersoch Festival 
• Welsh for Adults 
• Shwmae / Su´mae Day 
• Cylch Ti a Fi and Cylch Meithrin 
• Beach cleaning activities 
• Identity Project with Welsh language 
• Merched y Wawr 
In addition, there are a number of facilities in the village, including, the village hall, a variety of shops, 
pharmacy, mobile bank, post office, garage, cafes, pubs, mobile library, tourist attractions, public 
transport and children's playground. 
  

23
Page 65



 

4. CATCHMENT AREA SCHOOLS 

 

4.1 Context of the schools according to Estyn Inspection Reports 

 

As part of Estyn's reports, the authors, i.e. the inspectors, will place the schools within their context 
and will detail their community connections. This is the context given to Ysgol Abersoch by Estyn 
inspectors. 
 
Ysgol Abersoch 
 
"Ysgol Abersoch is in the village of Abersoch near Pwllheli, in Gwynedd local authority, and serves the 
village and the surrounding area" 

Source: Estyn Report, June 2017 
 
4.2 School statistical information 

 

The table below shows the numbers of pupils at Ysgol Abersoch (N-Y3), and the other neighbouring 

schools, from Nursery to Year 6. Also shown in this table are the capacity of the schools, and the 

number of surplus places. All of these schools teach through the medium of Welsh. 

 

School 
Full Capacity        

  (N – Y6) 

Number on roll 

January 2020  

  (N – Y6) 

Number of surplus 

places 

January 2020 

  (N – Y6) 

Legal Category 

Abersoch 
(*N-Y3) 

42 9 33 
Community School 

(Infant) 

Sarn Bach  73 48 25 Community School 

Llanbedrog 83 95 0 Community School 

Foel Gron 61 44 17 VC – Church in Wales  

Source: PLASC January 2020 

 

4.3  Information about the location of pupils' dwellings and choice of school  

 

Every school has a specific catchment area that it serves and this is important in terms of the Council's 

admissions and transport policy. Pupils do not have to attend their catchment area school, this is the 

parents’ choice (in accordance with the admissions policy). 

In comparison with other catchment areas in the area, the number of pupils that attend school 
outside the catchment area is high. The latest data shows that 48 children lived in the Abersoch 
catchment area aged 3-11 years (September 2019), of whom 7 attend the school. This means that 
85% of the children living in the Abersoch catchment area attend out of catchment schools, according 
to 2019 data. 

 
 

 

 

 

24
Page 66



 

 

  

  

  

Byw yn Dalgylch / Home Catchment Area 

(Medi / September 2019) 
   

    

Abersoch Sarn Bach Llanbedrog Foel Gron 
Arall   

Other 

Cyfanswm 

Ysgol 

School Total 

(M-Bl6 / N-

Y6)  

M
yn

yc
h

u
 Y

sg
o

l /
 S

ch
o

o
l 

A
tt

en
d

in
g 

(M
ed

i /
 S

ep
te

m
b

er
 2

0
1

9
) Abersoch 7 1 - - 1 9 

Sarn Bach 25 14 2 1 8 50 

Llanbedrog 12 - 43 14 23 92 

Foel Gron 1 - 4 29 6 40 

Arall / Other 3 - 3 -   

Cyfanswm 

Total 
48 15 52 44 

 

 

Source: September 2019 Census 
 

Latest data shows that 48 children lived in the Abersoch catchment area aged 3-11 years (September 

2019 data), of whom 7 attend the school. This means that 85% of children living in the Abersoch 

catchment area attend out of catchment schools, according to 2019 data. 

 

  

  

  

Byw yn Dalgylch / Home Catchment Area 

(Medi / September 2019) 
   

    

Abersoch Sarn Bach Llanbedrog Foel Gron 
Arall   

Other 

Cyfanswm 

Ysgol 

School Total 

(M-Bl3 / N-

Y3)  

M
yn

yc
h

u
 Y

sg
o

l /
 S

ch
o

o
l 

A
tt

en
d

in
g 

(M
ed

i /
 S

ep
te

m
b

er
 2

0
1

9
) Abersoch 7 1 - - 1 9 

Sarn Bach 10 4 2 - 5 21 

Llanbedrog 6 - 30 9 17 62 

Foel Gron 1 - 3 15 3 22 

Arall / Other 1 - - -   

Cyfanswm 

Total 
25 5 35 24 

 

 

Source: September 2019 Census 
 

The above tables show the complete information regarding pupils' living locations and school choice. 
 

25
Page 67



 

4.4  Summary of various facilities in the communities (January 2020) 

 

The following information has been collected on the schools and areas that may be affected by any of 
the options. 
 

 Abersoch  Sarn Bach Llanbedrog 

Village Hall Community Centre  ✔  ✔ ✔ 

Chapel/Church  ✔ ✔ ✔ 

Public Transport ✔ ✔ ✔ 

Shop ✔ ✔ ✔ 

Café/Pub ✔ ✔ ✔ 

Post Office ✔     

Surgery/Pharmacy  ✔ ✔ ✔ 

Library ✔  

(mobile library) 
    

Children’s Playing Field ✔ ✔ ✔ 

Bank  ✔ 
 (mobile bank) 

   

Residential Home for the Elderly    ✔ 

Leisure Centre    

Garage ✔ ✔ ✔ 

Tourism Attraction  ✔ ✔ ✔ 

Cylch Ti a Fi + Cylch Meithrin  ✔  ✔ 
 

Source: Headteachers' Questionnaires January 2020 
 

 
It is acknowledged in the community impact questionnaire that members of the community visit 
Ysgol Abersoch regularly to assist with the learning experiences. Members from the communities of 
each of the schools included in this assessment visit the schools to hold activities with the pupils, 
such as a gardening club, reading and health fair. Additionally, as there is no hall at Ysgol Abersoch 
the school makes regular use of the community hall. 
 
 

 

4.5 Summary of the school's use outside the school's core hours (January 2020) 

 

A summary of community or extra-curricular use of local school buildings is provided below 

 Abersoch  Sarn Bach Llanbedrog 

Play Groups (School holidays)     

Aelwyd yr Urdd ✔ ✔  

Plays     
Voluntary Groups     

Coffee Morning/Evening    
Community Auction     

Community Library     
Choir Practice     

Welsh for Adults     
26

Page 68



 

Town/Community Council Meeting      

Cylch/Nursery School ✔  ✔ 

Sports Club/Activity ✔ ✔ ✔ 

After School Club     

Local Interest Club     
 

Source:  Headteachers' Questionnaires January 2020 

 

4.6 Summary of activities or groups that the school are regularly involved with: 

 

 Abersoch  Sarn Bach Llanbedrog 

Ti a Fi Group / Cylch Meithrin  ✔ 
Discussions ongoing 
to establish a Cylch ✔  

Eisteddfodau  
(Local/County/National)   ✔  ✔ ✔  

Urdd Adrannau   ✔ ✔   ✔ 
Visits to Glan Llyn / Llangrannog / 
Cardiff  

  ✔ ✔  

Other activities (sports, clubs)   ✔ ✔   ✔ 
 
Source:  Headteachers' Questionnaires January 2020 

 

4.7  If buildings, rooms, facilities or services are provided by the school for the community, where 

will they be provided if the school is closed? 

 

School Where will facilities be provided if the school is closed?  

Abersoch  

Cylch Meithrin and Cylch Ti a Fi are held in the school building. 
Should a decision be made to close the school, options for after school use 
would have to be considered, taking into account the activities currently taking 
place at the school 
 

 
4.8  Information about the distance and travel time to other schools in the catchment area  
 
The table below notes the distance and travel time between schools in the area.  We can see that 
Ysgol Sarn Bach is closest to Ysgol Abersoch, with Ysgol Llanbedrog second closest.  The following 
travel times considers the nature of the roads and the impact that this could have on travel times in a 
rural area.     

 

 

Ysgol / School Sarn Bach Llanbedrog Foel Gron 

Llanbedrog 
Milltir 4.2     

Munudau 10   

Foel Gron 
Milltir 3.9 1.6   

Munudau 11 4  

Abersoch 
Milltir 1.4 3.3 3.2 

Munudau 5 7 9 

27
Page 69



 

 

2. ASSESSMENT OF THE PROBABLE IMPACT ON THE COMMUNITY 

 
In order to assess the community impact of the potential models, it was decided to create criteria in 
accordance with the recommendations of the community impact considerations of The Schools 
Organisation Code 011/2018 
 
MODEL 1 – Do nothing/Status Quo 

 
 

Impact Criteria Description Status of the impact and 
the work 

Impact on Health and Well-being  
No Change Neutral 

Implications of the change on 
public transport provisions  

No Change Neutral 

Impact on facilities / other services 
provided at the school  

No Change Neutral 

The impact on broader community 
safety  

No Change Neutral 

Would the option encourage 
families and school-age children to 

leave the community, or would 
young families be less likely to 

move to the community 

No Change Neutral 

Impact on other services provided 
locally  

No Change Neutral 

Detrimental effect on the 
community's broader economy 

No Change Neutral 

The general impact on the local 
community  

No Change Neutral 

 
  

Positive Neutral Negative  

28
Page 70



 

MODEL 2 –  CHANGE THE AGE RANGE OF YSGOL ABERSOCH FROM 3-8 YEARS TO 3-11 YEARS 

 
 

Impact Criteria Description Status of the impact and 
the work 

Impact on Health and Well-being  
No Change Neutral   

Implications of the change on 
public transport provisions  

No Change Neutral   

Impact on facilities / other services 
provided at the school  

No Change Neutral   

The impact on broader community 
safety  

No Change Neutral   

Would the option encourage 
families and school-age children to 

leave the community, or would 
young families be less likely to 

move to the community 

No Change Neutral   

Impact on other services provided 
locally  

No Change Neutral   

Detrimental effect on the 
community's broader economy 

No Change Neutral   

The general impact on the local 
community  

No Change Neutral   

 
  

Positive Neutral Negative  

29
Page 71



 

MODEL 3 – FEDERATION WITH A NEIGHBOURING SCHOOL 

 
 

Impact Criteria Description Status of the impact and 
the work 

Impact on Health and Well-being  

No change to the current situation Neutral 

Implications of the change on 
public transport provisions  

No change to the current situation Neutral 

Impact on facilities / other services 
provided at the school  

No change to the current situation Neutral 

The impact on broader community 
safety  

No change to the current situation Neutral 

Would the option encourage 
families and school-age children to 

leave the community, or would 
young families be less likely to 

move to the community 

No change to the current situation Neutral 

Impact on other services provided 
locally  

No change to the current situation Neutral 

Detrimental effect on the 
community's broader economy 

No change to the current situation Neutral 

The general impact on the local 
community  

No change to the current situation, but opportunities 
are identified for the Abersoch community and the 
other school that would be part of the federal model 
to come together. 

Neutral 

 
  

Positive Neutral Negative  

30
Page 72



 

MODEL 4 – CLOSE YSGOL ABERSOCH AND OFFER PUPILS A PLACE AT AN ALTERNATIVE SCHOOL 

 
 

Impact Criteria Description Status of the impact and 
the work 

Impact on Health and 
Well-being  

As the alternative school is about a mile and a half from Ysgol 
Abersoch and the pupils' homes, they are unlikely to walk to school. 
 
Children can be dropped off in the car park, whether by car or taxi / 
minibus, and there is a bus stop (public bus service) outside the 
school boundaries. Therefore, if pupils are less able to walk or cycle, 
we do not anticipate difficulty in reaching the school. 
 

Negative 

Implications of the 
change on public 

transport provisions  

 
A public bus (number 18) runs between Abersoch village and the 
alternative school. Some families may be dependent on public 
transport to reach the alternative school, however, no significant 
impact on public transport provision is foreseen as there are 
currently 10 pupils attending the school. 
 

Neutral 

Impact on facilities / 
other services 

provided at the 
school  

Cylch Meithrin and Cylch Ti a Fi are held in the school building. 
If the school were to close, these services would have to be taken 
into account when discussing the after-use of the school building.  

Neutral 

The impact on 
broader community 

safety  

No impact on wider community safety is anticipated Neutral 

Would the option 
encourage families 

and school-age 
children to leave the 
community, or would 
young families be less 
likely to move to the 

community 

As most children in the catchment area already attend other schools, 
it is not envisaged that families and young children would leave the 
community. 

Neutral 

Impact on other 
services provided 

locally  

As a large number of children in the catchment area already attend 
other schools, it is not possible to conclude that closing the school 
would have an impact on other services. 

Neutral 

Detrimental effect on 
the community's 
broader economy 

Again, as most children in the catchment area attend other schools, 
it is not anticipated that closing the school would have an impact on 
the wider community economy. 

Neutral 

The general impact 
on the local 
community  

The local school would be further away from homes within the 
existing catchment area of Ysgol Abersoch, and in terms of 
deprivation, it means that one of the indicators i.e. 'access to 
services' will be further away from the village's residents.  
 
As a high number of the catchment area's children already attend 
other schools, it cannot be concluded that the closure of the school 
would have a negative or positive impact on the local community.   
 

Negative 

 
 

 

Positive Neutral Negative  

31
Page 73



 

6. CONCLUSIONS 
 

This assessment shows that the school engages with its community and regularly uses community 

facilities, such as the hall. The community also makes use of the school building, and uses it as a venue 

for the Cylch Meithrin and Cylch Ti a Fi. 

 

It shows from the information presented that the option to continue with the current situation, or to 

federate with another school, would not have an impact on the community. Both options meant that 

a school presence would continue in the community of Abersoch by undertaking the same activities 

and using the same facilities as it currently does. 

 

Should the option of closing Ysgol Abersoch and offering pupils a place at a nearby school be realised, 

it is anticipated that it would have some effect on elements of community events. As such, it will be 

required as part of the process to encourage discussions between the alternative school and parents 

of pupils at Ysgol Abersoch so that parents and pupils can access their after school facilities and 

activities, and to encourage the alternative school to take advantage of the facilities at Abersoch 

community as well. 

 

This assessment shows that the closure of the school will have some negative impact on the 

community. To mitigate the impact on the community opportunities are identified to ensure that the 

Abersoch community is aware of the activities of the alternative school and the Abersoch community, 

where appropriate. 

 

32
Page 74



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Language Impact Assessment Report 

Ysgol Abersoch  

- September 2020 
  

33
Page 75



 

Context 

1. INTRODUCTION  

1.1 The Situation in Gwynedd 

1.2 Language Policy  

1.3 Educational Background   

2. LINGUISTIC PROFILE OF THE ABERSOCH CATCHMENT AREA 

2.1 The Background of Gwynedd's Language Profile 

2.2         Wards 

2.3 Ysgol Abersoch 

2.4 Nearby Schools 

2.5 Attainment Levels  

2.6 After-school Activities 

2.7 Community Activities 

2.8 Welsh in Education Strategic Plan 2017-2020 

2.9 Additional Evidence 

3. IMPACT ON THE WELSH LANGUAGE 

3.1        Options 

3.2         Welsh Language Impact Assessment 

4. CONCLUSION 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

34
Page 76



 

1. INTRODUCTION 

Supporting and developing the ability of children in Gwynedd to learn and use their language skills 

is essentially important to the education strategies of the County. 

 

1.1  Situation in Gwynedd  

Figures in the 2011 Census note that 65,900 (56%) people aged three years and over can speak, read 

and write in Welsh. The 2011 Census also notes that 65% speak Welsh which is a reduction since 

the previous census, when the figure was 69%. 

In Gwynedd, as many other Local Authorities in Wales, there is a considerable difference in the 

percentage of Welsh speakers within different wards. At one extreme, in wards such as Aberdyfi, 

Tywyn and the Menai ward in Bangor, between 18% and 38% of the population speaks Welsh, while 

as much as 78% speaks Welsh in the most Welsh-speaking areas e.g. Llanrug. 

 

1.2  Language Policy  

Primary  

The aim of the Language Policy is the same across all the county’s primary schools, which is to 

develop the ability of all pupils to be proficient in both languages by the end of KS2. Welsh is the 

official assessment language in the school at the end of the Foundation Phase. In KS2, the aim is to 

continue to develop the pupils' grasp of Welsh, giving attention to the development of their skills in 

both languages.  

Secondary 

In secondary schools, every pupil who has attained the necessary level, namely level 3+ at the end 

of KS2 is expected to pursue a Welsh Language Study Programme (First Language) in KS3 in order to 

ensure appropriate progression and continuation. It is hoped that these pupils can study Welsh and 

English as subjects until the end of year 11. 

Secondary schools build upon the foundations set in primary by ensuring that each pupil continues 

to develop skills in Welsh and English. Gwynedd does not define secondary schools according to 

language categories as it is the same expectation in relation to the Language Policy, namely to 

provide all students in the county with an opportunity to be bilingually proficient. 

 

1.3  Educational Background 

The 'Excellent Primary Education for the Children of Gwynedd' strategy was adopted by the Council 

in April 2009. A further higher strategy, ‘Strategic Programme – Towards 2025’, was developed 

and supported by the Council in October 2010. This document was prepared as a strategic 

foundation for steering developments in the field of education and training in Gwynedd for the 

next 15 years. The programme was presented in the context of policies and plans which were in 

the pipeline both locally and nationally, to transform the services provided for children, young 

people and their families. The 'Welsh in Education Strategic Plan for 2017-2020' was published in 

December 2017 which sets a vision, commitment and direction for ensuring that children and 

young people attain the highest standards in order to maintain the language, culture and economy 

locally. 
35

Page 77



 

2. LINGUISTIC PROFILE OF ABERSOCH CATCHMENT AREA 

2.1 The Background of Gwynedd's Language Profile  

Nearly three quarters of the County's population were born in Wales (66.8%). 65.4% of the 

population aged three years and over are Welsh speakers - which is significantly higher than the 

national average of 19%. On the whole, there is an increase in the number of Welsh speakers and 

those born in Wales towards the west and moving inland from the most populated areas along the 

coast. In Gwynedd, the ability to speak Welsh is highest in the Llanrug ward (87.8% speak Welsh) 

and at its lowest in the Menai area of Bangor (18.6%).   

2.2  Wards  

2.2.1  Abersoch, Llanengan and Llanbedrog Wards  

The existing catchment area of Ysgol Abersoch is within the Abersoch ward with the catchment area 

of Ysgol Sarn Bach within the Llanengan ward and the Ysgol Llanbedrog catchment area within the 

Llanbedrog ward (National Statistical Office). The linguistic profile of the wards of these schools are 

summarised in the following table: 

 
Abersoch Llanengan Llanbedrog Gwynedd Wales 

Welsh identity only 
266 

(34%) 

670 

(55.6%) 

453  

(45.2%) 

71,931 (59.0%)   1,761 673 

(57.5%) 

No Welsh identity 
473 

(60.4%) 

480 

(39.8) 

504 

(50.3%) 

42,566 (34.9%)  1,045,775 

(34.1%) 

Households where at least 

one person has an 

alternative first language 

to Welsh or English 

4 

(0.5%) 

6 

(0.5%) 

93 

(9.5%) 

1,463 (1.2%)  42,581 

(1.4%) 

3+ years old population 
773 

(98.7%) 

1164 

(96.5%) 

974 

(97.2%) 

117,789 

(96.6%) 

2,955,841 

(96.5%) 

Able to speak Welsh 
336 

(43.5%) 

738 (63.4%) 526 

(54%) 

77,000 

(65.4%) 

562,016 

(19%) 

No Welsh language skills 

370 

(47.9%) 

360 (30.9%) 400  

(41.1%) 

31,177 

(26.5%) 

2,167,987 

(73.3%) 

Can understand Welsh 

verbally only 
60  

(7.8%) 

58 

(5%) 

44 

(4.5%) 

8,125 

(6.9%) 

157,792 

(5.3%) 

Able to speak but unable 

to read or write in Welsh  

39  

(5%) 

50 

(4.3%) 

43 

(4.4%) 

6,838 

(5.8%) 

80,429 

(2.7%) 

Able to speak and 

understand Welsh but 

unable to write in Welsh  

21  

(2.7%| 

22  

(1.9%) 

22  

(2.3%) 

3,947 (3.4%) 

 

45,524 

(1.5%) 

Able to speak, read and 

write in Welsh  

275 

(35.6%) 

 

666 

(57.2%) 

460 (47.2%) 65,921 

(56%) 

430,717 

(14.6%) 

Another combination of 

Welsh language skills  

8  

(1%) 

 

8  

(0.7%) 

5 

(0.5%) 

1,781 

(1.5%) 

 

73,392  

(2.5%) 

Source: 2011 Census, Office for National Statistics 

 

36
Page 78



 
 

2.3  Ysgol Abersoch  

 

The following table below outlines the linguistic background of the pupils at Ysgol Abersoch. The 

table shows that the number of pupils who speak Welsh fluently at home is 1 (PLASC 2020). 

School 

 

Speaks 

Welsh 

fluently at 

home 

Does not 

speak Welsh 

at home but 

are fluent in 

Welsh 

Speaks 

Welsh at 

home but 

not fluently 

Does not speak 

Welsh at home 

and are not 

fluent in Welsh 

Cannot speak 

Welsh at all 
Total  

Abersoch 0 0 
3 

(33%) 
3 

(33%) 
3 

(33%) 
9 

Source: Data from Headteachers PLASC January 2020 

2.4 Nearby Schools  

The linguistic data for Ysgol Sarn Bach and Ysgol Llanbedrog is as follows: 

School 

Speaks 

Welsh 

fluently at 

home 

Does not 

speak Welsh 

at home but 

are fluent in 

Welsh 

Speaks 

Welsh at 

home but 

not fluently 

Does not speak 

Welsh at home 

and are not 

fluent in Welsh 

Cannot speak 

Welsh at all 
Total  

Sarn Bach  25  

(53%) 

4 

(9%) 

2 

(4%) 

11 

(23%) 

5 

(11%) 
47 

Llanbedrog  
32 

(35%) 

26 

(29%) 

3 

(3%) 

21 

(23%) 

9 

(10%) 
91 

Source: Data from Headteachers PLASC January 2020 

2.5 Attainment Level  

Schools 

% of pupils who have reached the expected level - Welsh (first language)  

Foundation Phase 

(Reached level 5+) 

Foundation Phase 

(Reached level 5+) 

2017 2017 2017 2017 2017 2017 

Abersoch  100% 100%  50% -   -   - 

Sarn Bach   77.8% 66.7%  50%  100%  100%  75%  

Llanbedrog  94.1% 100%  77.8   81.8% 90%  88.9%  

Source: GwE (September 2019) 

It is clear that there is a wide range of success when it comes to the academic attainment of schools 

in the area. Over 75% of KS2 pupils achieved the expected level (Welsh - Language) at Ysgol Sarn 

Bach and Ysgol Llanbedrog last year. The children of Ysgol Abersoch feed into the attainment level 

of Ysgol Sarn Bach after Year 3. 

As part of implementing the Language Charter, all KS2 pupils in every primary school in Gwynedd 

complete an online language questionnaire twice a year about their use of Welsh at the school. The 

following graphs demonstrate the October 2019 statistics regarding the use of Welsh language 

made by pupils with their teachers:  

37
Page 79



 

 

 

 

0%

20%

40%

60%

80%

100%

Bob
Amser

Yn Aml Weithiau Ychydig
Iawn

Byth

% of children who speak Welsh with 
their teachers (with the exception of 

English lessons)

Abersoch Sarn Bach Llanbedrog

0%

20%

40%

60%

80%

100%

Bob
Amser

Yn Aml Weithiau Ychydig
Iawn

Byth

% of children who speak Welsh with 
the rest of the school staff

Abersoch Sarn Bach Llanbedrog

Everytime Sometimes Very 
Little

NeverOften

0%

20%

40%

60%

80%

100%

Bob
Amser

Yn Aml Weithiau Ychydig
Iawn

Byth

% of children who speak Welsh 
with the children in the class

Abersoch Sarn Bach Llanbedrog

Everytime Sometimes Very 
Little

NeverOften

0%

20%

40%

60%

80%

100%

Bob
Amser

Yn Aml Weithiau Ychydig
Iawn

Byth

% of children who speak Welsh with 
children on the corridor and in the 

canteen

Abersoch Sarn Bach Llanbedrog

Everytime Sometimes Very 
Little

NeverOften

0%

20%

40%

60%

80%

100%

Bob
Amser

Yn Aml Weithiau Ychydig
Iawn

Byth

% of children who speak Welsh 
on the school playground

Abersoch Sarn Bach Llanbedrog

Everytime Sometimes Very 
Little

NeverOften

0%

20%

40%

60%

80%

100%

Hyderus
iawn

Hyderus Gweddol Dim yn
hyderus

Dim yn
hyderus o

gwbl

% of children who speak Welsh 
confidently

Abersoch Sarn Bach Llanbedrog

Everytime Sometimes Very 
Little

NeverOften

Very 
Confident

Fairly
Not 

important

Not 
important 

at all

Confident

Everytime Sometimes Very  
Little 

Never Often 

38
Page 80



 

 

It appears from the data above that the use of the Welsh language varies in the schools in the area. 
It appears that Abersoch children in key stage 2 are very confident using Welsh and use the language 
when speaking to teachers, assistants and staff. As for Ysgol Sarn Bach, we see that a high 
percentage of children make informal use of Welsh - together on the corridor, in the lunch hall and 
on the yard, as well as with the staff at the school. It is therefore anticipated that transferring the 
pupils to Ysgol Sarn Bach would not have a negative impact on the language as it would offer similar 
opportunities for Abersoch children to use Welsh when socialising. 
 
Number of responses: 
Abersoch: 2 
Sarn Bach: 33 
Llanbedrog: 46 
 
2.6 After School Activit ies (January 2020)  

Currently, some school activities take place at Ysgol Abersoch such as the Urdd. Many events are 

also held in Abersoch village hall. 

Here is a summary of what Ysgol Abersoch and the nearby schools offer after school: 

 Abersoch Sarn Bach Llanbedrog 

 
School 

building 

Village  

Hall 

School 

building 

Village 

Hall 

School 

building 

Village 

Hall 

Play Groups (School holidays)             

Aelwyd yr Urdd ✔  ✔   ✔ 

Coffee Morning/Evening  ✔ ✔   ✔ 

Cylch/Nursery School ✔     ✔ 

Sports Club/Activity  ✔    ✔  

  

It can be seen in the table above that a number of schools in the area, including Ysgol Abersoch, 

offer after school clubs with the Urdd. This means that the pupils can take advantage of the activities 

and use them as an additional opportunity to use and develop the Welsh language. In terms of short 

term provisions, we also understand that Hunaniaith run a weekly afterschool Craft Club at Ysgol 

Abersoch to promote the use of the Welsh language in the local area. 

 

0%

20%

40%

60%

80%

100%

Pwysig
iawn

Pwysig Gweddol Dim yn
bwysig

Dim yn
bwysig o

gwbl

% of children who think  it is 
important to speak Welsh

Abersoch Sarn Bach Llanbedrog

Very 
important

Fairly
Not 

important

Not 
important 

at all

Important

39
Page 81



 

 

2.7  Community Act ivit ies  

There is a village hall in Abersoch, and the School also make regular use of this resources. We also 

understand that Ysgol Abersoch is involved in Hunaniaith activities such as Diwrnod Su’mae to 

promote the benefits of using the language in business. 

2.8  Welsh in Education Strategic Plan 2017 -2020 

Both schools, Ysgol Abersoch and Ysgol Sarn Bach, implement the aims of Gwynedd Council's Welsh 

in Education Strategic Plan 2017-2020. This includes: 

 Setting a strong foundation for the Welsh language at the Early Years stage, ensuring that 
pupils from a non-Welsh speaking background are given the opportunity to learn Welsh as 
soon as possible. 

 During the Foundation Phase, building on the foundation established at the nursery and 
reception stages by continuing to develop pupils' grasp of Welsh, and begin the process of 
developing their English language skills. On a practical level, this means that most schools 
would start introducing English as a subject during the final term at the end of the 
Foundation Phase, concentrating on developing reading, speaking and writing skills in that 
language. Welsh will be the school's official assessment language at the end of the 
Foundation Phase.  

 In KS2, continue to develop the pupils' mastery of Welsh, paying attention to the 
development of their skills in both languages. Pupils' progress in Welsh and English are 
assessed at the end of the key stage. 
 

Implementing the proposal would conform to the Welsh in Education Strategic Plan in Education 

2017-20 objectives.  

2.9  Additional Evidence  

Ysgol Abersoch 

The 2017 Estyn report states: 

“Welsh in the school’s everyday language and the main medium of teaching and learning, and 

English is taught formally in Year 3. Thirty-nine per cent (39%) of pupils come from Welsh-speaking 

homes. There are no pupils from ethnic minority backgrounds. On entry to the school, basic skills 

are lower than expected, and Welsh is a new language to a majority of pupils.” 

(https://www.estyn.gov.wales/sites/www.estyn.gov.wales/files/documents/Ysgol%20Gynradd%2

0Abersoch%20en.pdf)  

 

Ysgol Sarn Bach 

The school website states:  

“Our intention and hope is that every child is able to, and chooses to speak Welsh of a good 

quality in every aspect of the school’s life, and takes pride in the Welsh language, culture and 

traditions.” 

The Estyn 2017 report states: 

40
Page 82

https://www.estyn.gov.wales/sites/www.estyn.gov.wales/files/documents/Ysgol%20Gynradd%20Abersoch%20en.pdf
https://www.estyn.gov.wales/sites/www.estyn.gov.wales/files/documents/Ysgol%20Gynradd%20Abersoch%20en.pdf


 

“Welsh is the main medium of the school’s life and work, and English is introduced as a subject in 

key stage 2... Approximately 47% of pupils come from Welsh-speaking homes”   

(https://www.estyn.gov.wales/sites/www.estyn.gov.wales/files/documents/Ysgol%20Sarn%20Bac

h%20en.pdf)  

Ysgol Llanbedrog: 

The school website states:  

“…to promote the school’s Welsh ethos, it is expected that the Welsh language is used for informal 

conversation in the classroom and on the playground. 

The Estyn 2014 report states:  

“About a quarter of pupils come from homes in which Welsh is spoken as a first language.” 

(https://www.estyn.gov.wales/sites/www.estyn.gov.wales/files/documents/Inspection%20report

%20Ysgol%20Llanbedrog%202014_0.pdf.pdf.pdf.pdf.pdf.pdf.pdf.pdf.pdf) 

 

3.  IMPACT ON THE WELSH LANGUAGE 

3.1  Options 

A number of options were proposed and discussed at the local meetings. Following an evaluation of 

these options against the Strategy factors, the list was refined to 3 options for further consideration, 

in addition to the Do Nothing option. 

 Do nothing - continue with the current structure of the school. 
 

It is anticipated that this option is neutral in terms of its impact on the Welsh language, as it would mean 

continuing with the current situation.  

 Federation with a neighbouring school 
 

This option would involve establishing a formal collaboration arrangement, between a neighbouring 

school/schools. These schools would share a single governing body, but at the same time retain their 

legal status as separate entities, their financial allocation, name and school presses, and continue to 

have their own Estyn inspection. 

The formation of a formal federation with a school or other schools would strengthen the leadership 

position of the school, and increase pupils' opportunities to socialise and collaborate with peers. 

In this case, for geographical reasons, Ysgol Sarn Bach, and Ysgol Llanbedrog were considered as 

reasonable options for the collaborative arrangement. Ysgol Foel Gron was not considered as it is 

not possible to federate schools with charitable status, with those with Community status.  

It is envisaged that this option would be neutral in terms of its impact on the Welsh language as 

Ysgol Abersoch would continue. The option would also provide an opportunity to co-plan the 

curriculum and share resources across the schools of the federation. 

 Extend the age range of Ysgol Abersoch from 3-8 years to 3-11 years 
 

At present, the age range of Ysgol Abersoch means that the school's education provision ceases at 

the end of year 3. Extending the age range to 3-11 would mean that the school can continue to 41
Page 83

https://www.estyn.gov.wales/sites/www.estyn.gov.wales/files/documents/Ysgol%20Sarn%20Bach%20en.pdf
https://www.estyn.gov.wales/sites/www.estyn.gov.wales/files/documents/Ysgol%20Sarn%20Bach%20en.pdf
https://www.estyn.gov.wales/sites/www.estyn.gov.wales/files/documents/Inspection%20report%20Ysgol%20Llanbedrog%202014_0.pdf.pdf.pdf.pdf.pdf.pdf.pdf.pdf.pdf
https://www.estyn.gov.wales/sites/www.estyn.gov.wales/files/documents/Inspection%20report%20Ysgol%20Llanbedrog%202014_0.pdf.pdf.pdf.pdf.pdf.pdf.pdf.pdf.pdf


 

educate pupils until the end of Key Stage 2, which is the end of year 6. This would be consistent with 

the age range of the majority of the county's primary schools. 

It is envisaged that this option would be neutral in terms of its impact on the Welsh language as 

Ysogl Abersoch would continue. With the exception of a possible change to the staffing structure, it 

is anticipated that provision in the school would continue in the same way.  

 Close Ysgol Abersoch and pupils to be educated at an alternative school 
 

This option would mean that Ysgol Abersoch would close, and that current pupils would be offered 

a place at Ysgol Sarn Bach (the alternative school). 

The table on the following page includes an assessment of the linguistic impact of closing Ysgol 

Abersoch, and offering pupils a place at Ysgol Sarn Bach compared to the current situation. The 

table also outlines opportunities to strengthen the Welsh language and methods to mitigate any 

potential negative impact that may result from the model. 

42
Page 84



 

 

Assessing the linguistic impact of closing Ysgol Abersoch and offering pupils a place at Ysgol Sarn Bach compared to the current situation. 

 

Impact Criteria  Description 

Status of the 

impact and the 

work 

Have any measures been identified to mitigate any 

negative impact or to create more positive opportunities?   

Final impact 

(following 

mitigation 

methods) 

The language of the 

school 

As the alternative school (Ysgol Sarn Bach) is also a Welsh 

medium school, it is therefore concluded that the proposal 

would not impact on the language medium of the education 

provision.   

As the pupils would be taught in larger classes and with more 

children of the same age group, the proposal could 

strengthen the opportunities for pupils to socialise in Welsh 

with their peers.  

Neutral 

No impact on 

the language of 

the school   

N/A N/A 

Access to Welsh 

medium education    

The alternative school is a Welsh medium school, as is Ysgol 

Abersoch. It is therefore not envisaged that the proposal 

would have an impact on this criteria.  

Neutral 

No impact on 

the situation of 

the language   

N/A N/A  

Non-statutory 

provision   

 

Pupils would have access to a higher supply in terms of 

staffing, and would be part of a larger peer group of the same 

age. 

 

Positive  

  

N/A 
 

N/A  

Before/after school 

activities   

The alternative school is a larger school in terms of pupil 

numbers so the peer groups will be larger.  

Some parents may have to travel further (to Ysgol Sarn Bach) 

for pupils to attend before and after school activities. 

Neutral 

 

The Local Authority and the Governing Body of Ysgol 

Sarn Bach could consider any additional opportunities 

for after-school activities, ensuring that 

arrangements are as accessible as possible for all 

pupils.  

 

Positive  

 

Positive Neutral  Negative  

 

43

P
age 85



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Using Welsh in the 

community 

According to the 2011 census, 43.5% of the population of 

Abersoch ward speak Welsh. 

Ysgol Abersoch has worked hard to develop the children’s 

bilingual skills and promote the importance of Welsh culture 

within the community. As a result, the closure of Ysgol 

Abersoch could have a negative impact on the Welsh 

language within the local community, 

Negative 

The Local Authority and the Governing Body of the 

alternative school may consider ways of promoting 

the use of the Welsh language in the communities of 

Aberosch and Sarn Bach through after school 

activities.   

 

Neutral 

 

44

P
age 86



 

 

4. CONCLUSIONS 

 

Our expectations are that all of the county’s pupils have age-relevant and well-balanced bilingual 
skills to enable them to be full members of the bilingual society of which they are part. Proposals to 
change local arrangements would have to take full consideration of all linguistic impacts. Supporting 
and improving the use of the Welsh language as an educational and social language among children 
will be a key consideration when drawing up proposals within the area. 
 
The assessment notes that the options to Do Nothing (continue with the current situation), form a 
federation with a nearby school, and extend the age range of the school are neutral in terms of their 
impact on the Welsh language as they would mean that the school would remain in Abersoch.  
 
In terms of the option to close Ysgol Abersoch and offer pupils a place at Ysgol Sarn Bach, it is not 
anticipated that the option would have a negative effect on the children’s linguistic ability. Ysgol 
Abersoch has worked hard to develop children’s bilingual skills and promote the importance of 
Welsh culture. It is therefore important that the proposal to move the children recognises the need 
to support and continue this work. This option would mean that children continue to be educated 
in a Welsh medium school. It is noted that a higher percentage of pupils come from Welsh speaking 
homes at Ysgol Sarn Bach (57%), compared with Ysgol Abersoch (33%). As a result, should the 
proposal be implemented, it is envisaged that there would be more opportunities for Abersoch 
pupils to use the Welsh language with their peers in class, and socially as well.  
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

45
Page 87



 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

Well-being Assessment Report  

Ysgol Abersoch 

- September 2020 
 

46
Page 88



 

Contents 

  

1.  INTRODUCTION 

 

2. HOW DOES THE PROPOSAL MEET GWYNEDD COUNCIL'S WELL-BEING OBJECTIVES? 

 

3. DOES THE PROPOSAL MEET THE GOALS OF THE WELL-BEING ACT? 

 

4. SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT PRINCIPLES 

  

5. CONCLUSION 

 

47
Page 89



 
 

1. INTRODUCTION  

 

 As a Council we are committed to the principles within the Well-being of Future Generations Act (2015) in order 
to improve the economic, social, environmental and cultural well-being of Gwynedd's communities. 
The Council's vision is: 
 
Our vision as a Council is to support all the people of Gwynedd to thrive and live full lives in their community, in 
a county which is one of the best counties to live in. 
 
The Council has adopted well-being objectives that complement the national well-being goals and ensure that 
Gwynedd residents: 

 Enjoy a happy, healthy and safe life 

 Have access to quality homes within their communities 

 Earn enough wages to support themselves and their families 

 Receive a first class education that will allow them to do what they want to do 

 To live with dignity and independence for as long as possible 

 Being able to live in a naturally Welsh speaking Society 

 Enjoy the beauty of the County's natural environment. 
 
The table below outlines the link between our well-being objectives and the national well-being goals. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
The Education Department has a role to promote the Act's well-being goals to the county's pupils through its 
activities and projects. The Act places a duty on public bodies in Wales to improve economic, social, 
environmental and cultural well-being. As part of the duty the Council has published well-being objectives that 
outline how it will improve well-being in the “Gwynedd Council Plan 2018-2023”. 
 

48
Page 90



 
 

1.1 Ysgol Abersoch Context  

 

At its meeting on 17 September 2019, Gwynedd Council's Cabinet approved the Education Department 

 “to initiate formal discussions with the governing body and other relevant stakeholders of Ysgol 

Abersoch due to concerns over the school numbers, thus enabling a range of possible options to be 

drawn up relating to the future of the school.” 

 

Between October 2019 and January 2020, 3 local meetings were held with stakeholders at Ysgol Abersoch where 

a number of options were proposed and discussed. Following the evaluation of those options, the list was 

refined into 3 options for further consideration, in addition to the Do Nothing model. Those options are detailed 

below: 

 

 Do nothing - continue with the current structure of the school. 
Please note that although the case for change has been established, the Do nothing model has been included 

for comparison purposes. 

 

 Federation with a neighbouring school 
 

This option would involve establishing a formal collaboration arrangement, between a neighbouring 

school/schools. These schools would share a single governing body, but at the same time retain their legal 

status as separate entities, their financial allocation, name and school presses, and continue to have their own 

Estyn inspection. 

 

The formation of a formal federation with a school or other schools would strengthen the leadership position 

of the school, and increase pupils' opportunities to socialise and collaborate with peers. 

 

In this case, for geographical reasons, Ysgol Sarn Bach, and Ysgol Llanbedrog were considered as reasonable 

options for the collaborative arrangement. Ysgol Foel Gron was not considered as it is not possible to federate 

schools with charitable status, with those with Community status.  

 

 Extend the age range of Ysgol Abersoch from 3-8 years to 3-11 years 
 
At present, the age range of Ysgol Abersoch means that the school's education provision ceases at the end of 
year 3. Extending the age range to 3-11 would mean that the school can continue to educate pupils until the 
end of Key Stage 2, which is the end of year 6. This would be consistent with the age range of the majority of 
the county's primary schools. 
 

 Close Ysgol Abersoch and pupils to be educated at an alternative school 
 

This option would mean that Ysgol Abersoch would close, and that current pupils would be offered a place at 

Ysgol Sarn Bach (the alternative school). 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

49
Page 91



 

2. HOW DOES THE PROPOSAL MEET GWYNEDD COUNCIL'S WELL-BEING OBJECTIVES?  

 

Gwynedd Council's well-being objectives were considered when evaluating the options. 
 

Do nothing -  continue with the status quo.  

Objectives Details: 

Enjoy a happy, healthy and safe life No effect 

Live in quality homes within their 
communities 

No effect 

Earn a sufficient wage to support 
themselves and their families 

No effect 

Receive education of the highest 
quality that will allow them to do 
what they want to do 

No effect 

To live with dignity and 
independently for as long as 
possible 

No effect 

Live in a naturally Welsh society No effect 

Take advantage beauty of the 
County's natural environment 

No effect 

 

Extend the age range of Ysgol Abersoch from 3 -8 years to 3-11 years  
Objectives Details: 

Enjoy a happy, healthy and safe life No effect 

Live in quality homes within their 
communities 

No effect 

Earn a sufficient wage to support 
themselves and their families 

No effect 

Receive education of the highest 
quality that will allow them to do 
what they want to do 

It is not anticipated that the option would affect this aim. There would be a 
statutory process involved in extending the age range. No impact is anticipated 
on the current governance arrangements. 

To live with dignity and 
independently for as long as 
possible 

No effect 

Live in a naturally Welsh society No effect 

Take advantage beauty of the 
County's natural environment 

No effect 

 

Federation with a nearby School  
Objectives Details: 

Enjoy a happy, healthy and safe life No effect 

Live in quality homes within their 
communities 

No effect 

Earn a sufficient wage to support 
themselves and their families 

No effect 

Receive education of the highest 
quality that will allow them to do 
what they want to do 

No effect. There would be a statutory process involved in establishing a formal 
federation and establishing a federal governing body. The option would offer 
opportunities for sharing staff and sharing expertise across the schools. It would 
also offer opportunities to collaborate on curricular issues and develop joint 

plans. 
 

To live with dignity and 
independently for as long as 
possible 

No effect 

Live in a naturally Welsh society No effect 

Take advantage beauty of the 
County's natural environment 

No effect 

50
Page 92



 
 

Close Ysgol Abersoch and pupils to be educated at an alternative school  
Objectives Details: 

Enjoy a happy, healthy and safe life No effect 

Live in quality homes within their 
communities 

No effect 

Earn a sufficient wage to support 
themselves and their families 

It is envisaged that implementing this option would result in staff redundancies. 
A detailed staffing policy has been developed by Gwynedd Council in 
conjunction with Trade Unions and head teachers. The policy will form the basis 
of any change to the employment of staff resulting from any proposal. 
Clear and open communication will be central to the successful implementation 
of any proposals. 

Receive education of the highest 
quality that will allow them to do 
what they want to do 

Ensuring that the pupils receive a first class education will be central to the 
proposal, ensuring that they receive at least the same quality and standard of 
education at the alternative school. 

To live with dignity and 
independently for as long as 
possible 

It is not anticipated that the proposal would be likely to have an impact on this 
aim. 

Live in a naturally Welsh society 
 

A language impact assessment was undertaken. Pupils at Ysgol Abersoch live in 
a Welsh speaking community and are educated in a Welsh medium school, such 
as Ysgol Sarn Bach. The language impact assessment notes that the position of 
the alternative school is strong, with 57% of pupils coming from homes that can 
speak Welsh. By comparison, 33% of pupils at Ysgol Abersoch come from homes 
that can speak Welsh. 

Take advantage beauty of the 
County's natural environment 

No effect 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

51
Page 93



 

3. DOES THE PROPOSAL MEET THE GOALS OF THE WELL-BEING ACT? 

 

Aim Does the proposal contribute to this aim? Measures to mitigate negative impacts on this aim: 

A prosperous Wales 
An innovative society using resources efficiently and 
proportionately, educated people, creating wealth and 
work. 

The proposal would allow pupils to be educated in larger classes 
and with more children of the same age group. It is therefore 
envisaged that it would enrich pupils' learning and social 
experiences. 
 
In addition, the proposal contributes to the goal by making more 
prudent use of resources. 
 
Implementing this option could result in staff losing their jobs. 
 

Should Cabinet decide to proceed with the proposal, 
statutory consultation will be held with all stakeholders, 
including staff and union representatives. 
 
Gwynedd Council has developed a detailed staffing 
policy, in conjunction with Trade Unions and head 
teachers. Any redundancies as a result of this proposal 
will have to conform to that policy. Clear and open 
communication will play a central role in implementing 
any proposals. 
 

A resilient Wales 
A nation that maintains and enhances biodiversity and 
healthy ecosystems that support resilience and the 
ability to adapt to change (for example climate change). 

It is not anticipated that the proposal is likely to have an impact 
on this aim. 

No effect.   

A healthier Wales 
A society where people's physical and mental well-being 
is as good as possible and people understand what 
affects their health. 

It is not anticipated that the proposal is likely to have an impact 
on this aim. 

No effect.   

A more equal Wales 
A society that enables people to fulfil their potential 
irrespective of background or circumstances (including 
their socio-economic background and circumstances). 

The proposal has been developed within the context of the 
Excellent Primary Education For children in Gwynedd The 
strategy outlines the vision:  
“Provide education of the best possible quality that will provide 
the county’s children with the experiences, skills and confidence 
to develop into  bilingual, successful and well-rounded citizens 

The equality assessment noted that the proposal was not 
anticipated to have a negative impact on equality. In 
addition, it was noted that robust policies and 
procedures were in place to ensure that the proposal 
considered complied with equal rights. It is noted that 
measures are already in place to ensure that there is no 
unlawful discrimination and harassment. 

A Wales of cohesive communities 
Attractive, viable and safe communities with good 
connections 

Following a community impact assessment, it was concluded 
that there would be some negative impact on the community 
should the school close. 

Whilst acknowledging the negative impact the closure of 
the school could have on the Abersoch community, it is 
noted that 25 pupils (3-11) living in the Abersoch 
catchment area already attend Ysgol Sarn Bach. It is 
therefore believed that a link already exists between the 
alternative school and the community in Abersoch. By 
implementing the proposal there will be an opportunity 
to build on these links between the Abersoch community 
and Ysgol Sarn Bach by holding discussions that would 

52

P
age 94



 
promote the inclusion of the Abersoch community in the 
community activity of the school. 

A vibrant Wales and culture where the Welsh language 
thrives 
A society that promotes and protects culture, heritage 
and the Welsh language and encourages people to 
participate in the arts, sports and leisure activities.  

No impact is anticipated on this aim as the proposal would mean 
that pupils would continue to be educated in a Welsh medium 
school 
 

- 

Wales is globally responsible. 
A nation that, in doing anything to improve the 
economic, social, environmental and cultural well-being 
of Wales, is considering whether doing such a thing 
could contribute positively to global well-being. 

It is not anticipated that the proposal is likely to have an impact 
on this aim. 

No effect.   

 

4. SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT PRINCIPLES 

Sustainable Development Principles Does the proposal consider the principle? 

Long term 
The importance of balancing short-term needs with the 
need to safeguard the ability to meet long-term needs is 
also important. 

There has been a pattern of low numbers at Ysgol Abersoch for some years, and the situation is now unsustainable. With 
projections showing numbers to remain low, it is concluded that the challenges facing the school are long-term, and 
therefore the case for change is clear. 

Suspension 
How action to prevent problems from occurring or 
escalating can help public bodies achieve their 
objectives. 

Should Cabinet decide to take further action, the needs of the children will be a priority when undertaking any 
reorganisation process. 
 

Integration 
Consider how the public body's well-being objectives 
may affect each of the well-being goals, all of its other 
objectives, or the objectives of other public bodies. 

The authority began the process of reviewing the school situation in the wake of a critical situation facing the school. 
 

Collaboration 
Collaboration with any other person (or different 
departments within the organisation itself) could help 
the organization meet its well-being goals. 

As part of the options appraisal process the Education department received input from a number of other departments 
within the Council. In addition, a series of local meetings were held to obtain initial input from the stakeholders. 

Contents 
The importance of involving people with an interest in 
achieving the well-being goals, and ensuring that those 
people reflect the diversity of the area they serve. 

Should the Cabinet decide to proceed with the proposal, the authority will carry out statutory consultation with relevant 
stakeholders such as parents, staff, unions, and the wider community. This consultation will also include specific 
consultation with children and young people. The authority will comply with the consultation requirements set out in the 
Welsh Government's School Organisation Code.  
  

53

P
age 95



 

5. CONCLUSION 

 

Following consideration and assessment in accordance with the requirements of the well-being act, the 7 well-being goals 
of the Council and the Council's well-being objectives were considered and it is concluded that the proposal meets the 
requirements. This proposal will allow us to respond to and meet the needs of the children today, and also strengthen 
their future well-being. 
 
It is acknowledged that should the Cabinet decide to proceed with this proposal, it may result in the loss of a school in the 
Abersoch community, however a large number of the children living within the school's catchment area already attend 
other schools, including the alternative school, and therefore there is already a link between Ysgol Sarn Bach and the 
Abersoch community. Every effort will be made to mitigate the impact on the community by encouraging links between 
the communities. Should the proposal be approved, discussions will take place to discuss the possibility that activities at 
Ysgol Sarn Bach includes the Abersoch community, where appropriate. 
 
The proposed proposal will ensure that children in the area are educated in a suitable site and in a naturally Welsh 
speaking society, increasing opportunities for socialising and working with others and giving them a fair chance to flourish 
among their peers. 
 
  
 
 

 

 

54
Page 96



 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

Equality Assessment Report 

Ysgol Abersoch 

- September 2020 
 

55 Page 97



 

Contents 

  

1. INTRODUCTION 

 

2. OPTIONS 

 

3. IMPACT OF ANY CHANGE 

 

4. ANALYSIS OF RESULTS 

 

5. CONCLUSION 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

56
Page 98



 

1. INTRODUCTION 

 

Ysgol Abersoch is located in the center of the village of Abersoch near Pwllheli, and provides education 

for 3-8 year olds. The school has a capacity of 42 (Nursery to Year 3), and in January 2020, it had 7 full-

time pupils (aged 4-8), and 2 nursery pupils. To date (September 2020) the school has 8 full time pupils 

(aged 4-8), and 2 nursery pupils. 

 

At its meeting on 17 September 2019, Gwynedd Council's Cabinet approved the Education Department 

 “to initiate formal discussions with the governing body and other relevant stakeholders of Ysgol 

Abersoch due to concerns over the school numbers, thus enabling a range of possible options to be 

drawn up relating to the future of the school.” 

 

As part of the process of developing a proposal (s) for school / school reorganisation, the Council is 

required (in accordance with the Equality Act 2010) to consider the impact of a change in any policy or 

procedure (or the creation of a policy or new procedure), on people with protected equality 

characteristics. The Council also has additional general duties to ensure fairness and foster good 

relations. An Equality Impact Assessment must therefore be carried out before a decision is made on 

any material change (i.e. that affects people with a protected characteristic). 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

57
Page 99



 

2. OPTIONS 

 
A number of options were proposed and discussed at the local meetings. Following an evaluation of 
these options against the Strategy factors, the list was refined into 3 options for further 
consideration, in addition to the Do Nothing option. 
 

• Do nothing - continue with the current structure of the school. 
 
Please note that although the case for change has been established, the Do nothing model is included 

for comparison purposes. 

 

• Federation with a neighbouring school 
 

This option would involve establishing a formal collaboration arrangement, between a neighbouring 
school/schools. These schools would share a single governing body, but at the same time retain their 
legal status as separate entities, their financial allocation, name and school presses, and continue to 
have their own Estyn inspection. 
 
The formation of a formal federation with a school or other schools would strengthen the leadership 
position of the school, and increase pupils' opportunities to socialise and collaborate with peers. 
 
In this case, for geographical reasons, Ysgol Sarn Bach, and Ysgol Llanbedrog were considered as 
reasonable options for the collaborative arrangement. Ysgol Foel Gron was not considered as it is not 
possible to federate schools with charitable status, with those with Community status.  
 

• Extend the age range of Ysgol Abersoch from 3-8 years to 3-11 years 
 
At present, the age range of Ysgol Abersoch means that the school's education provision ceases at 
the end of year 3. Extending the age range to 3-11 would mean that the school can continue to 
educate pupils until the end of Key Stage 2, which is the end of year 6. This would be consistent with 
the age range of the majority of the county's primary schools. 
 

• Close Ysgol Abersoch and pupils to be educated at an alternative school 
 

This option would mean that Ysgol Abersoch would close, and that current pupils would be offered a 

place at Ysgol Sarn Bach (the alternative school). 

 

Following a more detailed assessment of the above options, it was concluded that the preferred 
option as a proposal for statutory consultation is the proposal to close Ysgol Abersoch and offer the 
pupils a place at Ysgol Sarn Bach. 

 

 

58
Page 100



 

3. IMPACT OF ANY CHANGE 

 
The Council must have due regard to the impact any changes will have on people with equality 
characteristics below. What impact will the new policy / service or proposed changes have on these 
features? 
 

Features What kind 
of impact? * 

In what way? What is the evidence? 
 

Race (including 
nationality) 

None  Gwynedd schools have relevant policies in place to protect 
individuals from any racial discrimination, such as Equality, 
Inclusion and Anti-Bullying Policies. The Anti-bullying Policy 
provided by Gwynedd Council sets out anti-bullying guidelines 
and procedures based on factors such as race at school. In 
addition, the Equality Policy implemented by Gwynedd primary 
schools states that the schools are 
 
“…opposes to all types of prejudice and discrimination and 
acknowledges that pupils have different needs, requirements and 
objectives.” 
It is therefore not envisaged that the proposal would have an 
impact on this feature.   

The Welsh 
language 

None The Council’s Welsh Education Scheme will impose the same 
requirements on all schools, and therefore in terms of 
implementing the policy, it is not anticipated that there would be 
an impact if the proposal were to be implemented.  
A language impact assessment was carried out on the proposal. 

Disability  
 

None Under the requirements of the Council Policy, schools are 
required to provide an Anti-Bullying Policy, therefore the 
alternative school will be expected to protect against disability-
related bullying, and indeed any other ground. Gwynedd schools 
also have a Transport Code of Practice. 
 
Staff at the alternative school will need to provide the same 
level of care and be aware of all the needs of the pupils. 

Gender None It is not anticipated that implementing the proposal will have an 
impact in terms of gender, as all affected schools implement an 
equality policy which states that the school: 
“…opposes to all types of prejudice and discrimination and 
acknowledges that pupils have different needs, requirements and 
objectives.” 

Age Any effect 
would be 
minimal 
(positive or 
negative) 

Ysgol Abersoch provides education for pupils aged 3-8 years. If 
the proposal were implemented, it would mean that the pupils 
would transfer to a school with an age range of 3 to 11 on one 
site. However, it is not anticipated that this would have a negative 
impact – all affected schools implement an equality policy which 
states that the school: 
“…opposes to all types of prejudice and discrimination and 
acknowledges that pupils have different needs, requirements and 
objectives.” 

Sexual 
orientation 

None It is noted in the Equality Policy implemented by Gwynedd's 
primary schools that schools 

59
Page 101



 

 
“…opposes to all types of prejudice and discrimination and 
acknowledges that pupils have different needs, requirements and 
objectives.” 

Religion or 
belief (or lack of 
belief) 

None Ysgol Abersoch and the alternative school, Ysgol Sarn Bach are 
community schools - the proposal does not suggest changing this. 
 
Each school has an Inclusion Policy that would deal with any 
discriminatory incident that might occur in the school, related to 
religion or belief. 

Gender 
Reassignment 

None It is noted in the Equality Policy implemented by Gwynedd's 
primary schools  that schools: 
“…opposes to all types of prejudice and discrimination and 
acknowledges that pupils have different needs, requirements and 
objectives.” 

Pregnancy and 
maternity 

None - 
 

Marriage and 
civil partnership 

None - 
 

 

The Council has a duty under the Equality Act 2010 to make a positive contribution to a fairer society 

by promoting equality and good relations in its activities in the areas of age, gender, sexual 

orientation, religion, race, transgender, disability and pregnancy and maternity. 

 

 

 

 

 

General Duties 
of the Equality 
Act 

Does it make 
an impact? * 

In what way? What is the evidence? 

Remove illegal 
discrimination, 
harassment and 
victimisation 

No Implementing the proposal would not alter the statutory 
duty of affected schools to protect pupils from 
discrimination, harassment or victimisation. The aim is to 
give pupils the opportunity to express their views in a way 
that is appropriate and appropriate given any factors that 
affect them. They will continue to use the School Council, 
personal and social education lessons, anti-bullying policies 
and other means to ensure that the school prohibits 
unlawful discrimination, harassment and victimisation. 

Promote equal 
opportunities 

No It is anticipated that the alternative school will continue to 
promote equal opportunities. 

Encouraging 
good 
relationships 

No As some of the pupils in the Ysgol Abersoch catchment area 
already attend Ysgol Sarn Bach it is fair to note that a 
connection between Ysgol Sarn Bach and the Abersoch 
community already exists. However, opportunities to build 
further on the relationship with the community in Abersoch 
could arise from implementing the proposal. 

60
Page 102



 

4. ANALYSING THE RESULTS 

 
4.1 Is the proposal therefore likely to have a significant, positive impact on any of the equality 

characteristics or the General Duty? What is the reason for this? 
 

As Ysgol Abersoch and Ysgol Sarn Bach operate the same policies in relation to equality and anti-
bullying, it is not envisaged that the proposal would have significant impact on any of the equality 
characteristics or the General Duty referred to in this document. 

 
4.2 Is the proposal therefore likely to have a significant, negative impact on any of the equality 

characteristics or the General Duty? What is the reason for this? 
 

As Ysgol Abersoch and Ysgol Sarn Bach operate the same policies in relation to equality and anti-
bullying, it is not envisaged that the proposal would have significant impact on any of the equality 
characteristics or the General Duty referred to in this document. 
 

 
4.3   What should be done? 
 
Choose one of the following: 

Continue with policy / service as it is sound ✓ 

Adjust the policy to remove any barriers  
 

Prevent and remove the policy as the adverse effects are too great  
 

Continue with policy as any adverse impact can be justified  

 
4.4 If continuing with the plan, what steps will you take to reduce or mitigate any negative impacts? 

In order to mitigate the impact on the community, opportunities are identified to ensure that the 
community of Abersoch is aware of the activity of the alternative school, and community 
collaboration between the alternative school and the community of Abersoch is encouraged, where 
appropriate.  

 
 
4.5 Monitoring – what action will you take to monitor the impact and effectiveness of the policy or 

service (action plan)? 
 

The school (and their Governing Body) is responsible for implementing its equality policy and the 
Authority, through its usual support and monitoring procedures, will ensure compliance.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

61
Page 103



 

5. CONCLUSION 

 
It is not anticipated that the proposal to close Ysgol Abersoch and provide a place for pupils at Ysgol 
Sarn Bach would not affect equality. Gwynedd's primary schools already operate an Equalities policy 
which states that the schools "oppose all forms of prejudice and discrimination and recognise that 
pupils have different needs, requirements and objectives.” Should the Cabinet decide to continue with 
this proposal, and should any impacts be highlighted following the consultation, the Council will seek 
ways to mitigate them, looking specifically at any suggestions put forward in the responses. 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

62
Page 104



Appendix 3  

 
Background Pack  

Ysgol Abersoch 

 
Local Meeting 1 – 7 October, 2019  

Presentation 
1 

Meeting Minutes 12 

Local Meeting 2 – 13 November, 2019 
 

Agenda 15 

Presentation 16 

Meeting Minutes 26 

Local Meeting 3 – 6 January, 2020  

Agenda 31 

Presentation 32 

Meeting Minutes 40 

Input following Local Meetings 
44 

  

Page 105



PANEL ADOLYGU YSGOL ABERSOCH
YSGOL ABERSOCH REVIEW PANEL

7 Hydref 2019
7 October 2019

AGENDA

1. Gair o groeso gan y Pennaeth Addysg

2. Cefndir a phwrpas y cyfarfod 

3. Pam ystyried Ysgol Abersoch?                        

4. Ystyriaethau 

5. Sesiwn drafod – rhannu syniadau/opsiynau

6. Camau Nesaf

1. Welcome from the Head of Education

2. Background and purpose of the meeting

3. Why consider Ysgol Abersoch?

4. Considerations

5. Discussion session - sharing ideas / options

6. Next Steps

1
Page 106



CEFNDIR
BACKGROUND

• Ar 17 Medi 2019, penderfynodd Cabinet Cyngor
Gwynedd roi caniatâd i’r Adran Addysg gynnal
trafodaethau lleol i ystyried opsiynau ar gyfer
dyfodol Ysgol Abersoch.

• Pwrpas ein cyfarfod heddiw yw:
• Edrych ar y sefyllfa bresennol; a
• Trafod a chychwyn ystyried opsiynau posib.

• Camau Nesaf :
• Cynnal cyfarfodydd pellach er mwyn ystyried

a chymharu’r opsiynau; ac
• Adrodd yn ôl i’r Cabinet ar ganlyniadau’r

trafodaethau lleol.

• On 17 September 2019, Gwynedd Council’s
Cabinet resolved to allow the Education
Department to hold local discussions to consider
options for the future of Ysgol Abersoch.

• The purpose of our meeting today is to:
• Consider the current situation; and
• Discuss and begin to consider possible options.

• Next Steps :
• Hold further meetings to consider and

compare the options; and
• Report to Cabinet on the result of the local

discussions.

PAM YSTYRIED YSGOL ABERSOCH?
WHY CONSIDER YSGOL ABERSOCH?

2
Page 107



NIFEROEDD DISGYBLION
PUPIL NUMBERS

Niferoedd M-Bl. 3 (Medi 2019)
Numbers N-Yr 3 (January 2019

9

Capasiti (M – Bl. 3)
Numbers (N – Yr. 3)

42

Llefydd Gweigion
Surplus Places

33 (79%)

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

40

45

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019

Niferoedd Disgyblion Ysgol Abersoch (M - Bl.3) (Medi 2010- 2019)
Ysgol Abersoch Pupil Numbers (N - Yr. 3) (September 2010 - 2019)

MAINT DOSBARTHIADAU
CLASS SIZES

Meithrin
Nursery

Derbyn
Reception

Bl 1
Yr 1

Bl 2
Yr 2

Bl 3
Yr 3

Cyfanswm
Total

Dosbarth 1
Class 1

- - - 2 - 2

Dosbarth 2
Class 2

2 1 1 3 - 7

Ffynhonnell : Cyfrifiad Medi 2019
Source : September 2019 Census

3
Page 108



RHAGAMCANION
PROJECTIONS

Meithrin
Nursery

0 1 2 3 Cyfanswm
Total

Medi 2020
September 2020 1 2 1 1 3 8

Medi 2021
September 2021 1 1 2 1 1 6

Medi 2022
September 2022 1 1 1 2 1 6

0

10

20

30

40

50

2019 2020 2021 2022

Rhagamcanion 2020-2022 Projections
(M - Bl. 3 / N - Yr. 3)

Capasiti/Capacity Nifeoredd/Numbers

CYLLIDEB YR YSGOL (2019-20)
SCHOOL BUDGET (2019-20)

DYRANIAD YSGOL ABERSOCH ALLOCATION 
(2019-20)

Dyraniad / Allocation

Gwarchodaeth Lleiafswm Staffio /
Minimum Staffing Protection

Ysgol Abersoch Cyfartaledd Sirol 
County Average

Dyraniad 2019-2020
Allocation 2019-2020

£89,041 -

Gwarchodaeth Lleiafswm Staffio*
Minimum Staffing Protection*

£37,853 -

Cyfanswm Dyraniad
Total Allocation

£126,894 £404,000

Cyfartaledd y Disgybl
Average per Pupil

*£10,200 £3,884

Ffynhonnell: Dyraniad Cyllidol 2019-2020
Source: Financial Allocation 2019-2020

70%

30%

**Mae’r polisi gwarchodaeth yn sicrhau o leiaf pennaeth ac athro/athrawes ym mhob ysgol gyda mwy na 15 disgybl, a 
pennaeth a chymhorthydd dosbarth mewn ysgolion gyda llai na 15 disgybl.
**The minimum staffing protection policy ensures a minimum of headteacher and teacher at every school which has more 
than 15 pupils, and a heateacher and a classroom assistant in a school with fewer than 15 pupils. 

• Defnyddio £3,065 o arian wrth gefn i fantoli’r diffyg yn y gyllideb 
eleni

• O 2020-21 ymlaen, ni fydd y dyraniad yn ddigonol i gynnal y 
strwythur staffio presennol

• £3,065 of reserves have been used to offset the deficit this year
• From 2020-21, the allocation will not sustain the current staffing 

structure.

• Rhagamcanion 2020-21 = £15,800
• 2020-21 Projections = £15,800

4
Page 109



0

2,000

4,000

6,000

8,000

10,000

12,000

14,000

16,000

18,000

COST Y DISGYBL (2019-20)
COST PER PUPIL (2019-20)

Ffynhonnell : Dyraniad Cyllidol 2019-2020
Source : Financial Allocation 2019-2020

Ysgol Abersoch (£10,200)

Cyfartaledd Sirol (£3,884)
County Average 

Rhagamcan 2020-21 (£15,800)
2020-21 Projection (£15,8000)

STRWYTHUR STAFFIO
STAFFING STRUCTURE

Pennaeth
Headteacher

Llawn Amser
Full Time

Athrawes
Teacher

2.5 diwrnod yr wythnos
2.5 days per week

Cymhorthydd
Teaching Assistant  

12.25 awr yr wythnos
12.25 hours per week

Llanw
Supply

1 diwrnod yr wythnos
1 day per week

Swyddog Cefnogi Ysgol
School Support Officer

3 awr yr wythnos
3 hours a week

5
Page 110



DISGYBLION DALGYLCH YSGOL ABERSOCH (Medi 2018)
YSGOL ABERSOCH CATCHMENT PUPILS (September 2018)

Disgyblion dalgylch
Abersoch (3-8 oed) (Medi 2018) 

Absersoch catchment pupils (3-8 years) 
(September 2018)

M
yn

yc
hu

 Y
sg

ol
/ 

Sc
ho

ol
At

te
nd

in
g

(M
ed

i /
 S

ep
te

m
be

r2
01

8)

Abersoch 10

Arall / Other 24

Cyfanswm
Total

34

POLISI MYNEDIAD
ADMISSION POLICY

Yn unol a’r Cod derbyn i ysgolion (005/2013):

Rhaid i Awdurdodau Lleol beidio ag awgrymu y
dylai rhieni ddweud mai ysgol eu dalgylch lle y
maent yn byw sydd orau ganddynt, na bod lle
wedi’i neilltuo iddynt yn yr ysgol honno cyn
iddynt fynegi eu dewis.

Nid oes hawl gan yr awdurdod i geisio
dylanwadu ar ddewis rhieni.

In accordance with the School Admissions Code
(005/2013):

LAs must not suggest that parents should express
a preference for the school in whose catchment
area they live, or that they have been allocated a
place at that school before they have expressed a
preference.

The authority has no right to seek to influence
parental choice

6
Page 111



POLISI GOSOD TAI CYFFREDIN
COMMON HOUSING ALLOCATION POLICY

Oes posib i Gyngor Gwynedd ddylanwadu ar bwy
sydd yn symud i fyw i’r pentref?

Mae Polisi Gosod Tai Cyffredin wedi ei gosod ar y
cyd rhwng Cyngor Gwynedd, Cartrefi Cymunedol
Gwynedd, Grŵp Cynefin a Thai Gogledd Cymru.

Mae meini prawf dyraniad tai wedi ei fanylu yn y
polisi hwn. Mae tenantiaid yn cael cynnig tai sydd
o faint addas i’w amgylchiadau nhw (e.e. fel arfer
tai tair llofft i deuluoedd gyda dau neu dri o blant).
Mae pwy sydd yn cael cynnig tai yn y pentref felly
yn ddibynnol ar y polisi ac hefyd ar stoc tai yr
ardal a beth sydd yn dod yn wag i’w osod.

Is it possible for Gwynedd Council to influence
who moves to the village?

A Common Lettings Policy has been set up jointly
by Gwynedd Council, Cartrefi Cymunedol
Gwynedd, Grŵp Cynefin and North Wales Housing.

A housing allocation criteria can be seen in the
policy. Tenants will be offered houses of a size
suitable for their circumstances (e.g. typically
three-bedroom houses for families with two or
three children). A person who is offered a house in
the village is therefore dependent on the policy
and also on the housing stock in the area and
what becomes vacant to let.

CRYNODEB O BRIF HERIAU YSGOL ABERSOCH
SUMMARY OF MAIN CHALLENGES AT YSGOL ABERSOCH

• Nifer disgyblion ymysg yr isaf yn y sir.

• Rhagamcanion yn dangos lleihad pellach yn y 
niferoedd.

• Nifer uchel o lefydd gweigion. 

• Cost y disgybl (£10,200) yn sylweddol uwch na’r 
cyfartaledd sirol. 

• Ysgol yn derbyn swm sylweddol drwy’r rhwyd 
diogelu er mwyn ei gwneud yn gyllidol hyfyw.

• Cyllideb ragamcanol (2020-21) yn awgrymu na fydd 
modd parhau â’r strwythur staffio presennol yn 
dilyn y flwyddyn ariannol hon (2019-20). 

• Pupil numbers amongst the lowest in the county.

• Projections show further decline in numbers.

• High number of surplus places.

• Cost per pupil (£10,200) significantly higher than 
the county average.

• School receives a significant amount through the 
‘Minimum Staffing Protection' funding to make it 
financially viable.

• Projected budget (2020-21) suggests that the 
current staffing structure will not be sustainable 
following this financial year (2019-20).

7
Page 112



CRYNODEB O BRIF HERIAU YSGOL ABERSOCH
SUMMARY OF MAIN CHALLENGES AT YSGOL ABERSOCH

• Gyda niferoedd isel iawn yn Ysgol Abersoch ar
hyn o bryd a rhagamcanion yn dangos cwymp
pellach dros y blynyddoedd nesaf, mae
dyletswydd arnom i ystyried y sefyllfa a gweld
beth ydi’r opsiynau gorau ar gyfer y dyfodol.

• Prif bwrpas y cyfarfodydd hyn yw rhoi cyfle i
chi roi mewnbwn i’r broses ac ein cynorthwyo
wrth lunio cynigion penodol ar gyfer Ysgol
Abersoch.

• With very low numbers at Ysgol Abersoch at
present and projections showing a further fall
over the next few years, we have a duty to
consider the situation and see what are the
best options for the future.

• The main purpose of these meetings is to
provide you with an opportunity to input into
the process and assist us in formulating
specific proposals for Ysgol Abersoch.

YSTYRIAETHAU
CONSIDERATIONS

Wrth lunio a chymharu opsiynau, byddwn yn rhoi 
ystyriaeth i sawl ffactor, gan gynnwys:

• Niferoedd disgyblion

• Maint dosbarthiadau ac Amrediad Oedran

• Arweinyddiaeth a Staffio

• Cymuned

• Iaith

• Adnoddau Ariannol

• Ffactorau Daearyddol

• Ffactorau sy’n berthnasol i’r rhagdybiaeth yn 

erbyn cau Ysgolion Gwledig

In formulating and comparing options, we will 
take into account several factors, including:

• Pupil numbers

• Class sizes and Age Range

• Leadership and Staffing

• Community

• Language

• Financial Resources

• Geographical Factors

• Factors relating to the presumption against 

closure of Rural Schools

8
Page 113



RHAI OPSIYNAU POSIB
SOME POSSIBLE OPTIONS

Dyma rai opsiynau y byddwn yn eu hystyried:

1. Status Quo – Parhau hefo’r sefyllfa
bresennol

2. Ffederaleiddio gydag ysgol gyfagos/arall

3. Cau Ysgol Abersoch a chynnig lle i’r
disgyblion mewn ysgol amgen.

Here are some options we’ll be considering:

1. Status Quo – Continue with the current
situation

2. Federation with neighbouring / other school

3. Close Ysgol Abersoch and offer pupils a place
at an alternative school.

ENGHRAIFFT GWERTHUSIAD OPSIYNAU
OPTIONS APPRAISAL EXAMPLE

9
Page 114



Ffynhonnell: Cyngor Gwynedd – Dogfen Ymghynghori Statudol Ysgolion Dalgylch Y Gader (2014)
Source: Gwynedd Council – Statutory Consultation Document Schools in the Gader Catchment Area (2014) 

TRAFODAETH
DISCUSSION

10
Page 115



CAMAU NESAF
NEXT STEPS

• 16 Hydref - Dyddiad cau derbyn 
cwestiynau a/neu sylwadau pellach –
dylid eu hanfon at 
moderneiddioaddysg@gwynedd.llyw.
cymru

• 23 Hydref - Cyfarfod Panel Adolygu 2

• 16 October - Deadline to receive 
further questions and / or comments -
should be sent to 
modernisingeducation@gwynedd.llyw.
cymru

• 23 October - Review Panel Meeting 2

11
Page 116



  

 

www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru 

 

Meeting: Ysgol Abersoch Review Meeting Date:  07/10/2019       6:00pm 
Location: Abersoch Village Hall 

 

Present: Officers: 
Garem Jackson (GJ); Gwern ap Rhisiart (GapRh); Cyng. Cemlyn Williams (CW); Gwenno Haf 
Evans (GHE); Rhian Hughes (RH); 
 
On behalf of the Governors, Staff and Parents of Ysgol Abersoch:  
Linda Jones; Llinos Haf Owen; Gwenlli Williams; Annwen Parry Hughes; Cyng. Dewi Roberts; 
Owen Hefin Roberts; Margot Jones; Anna E. Jones; Eifiona Wood; Einir Wyn; Lee Scott Embury; 
Nancisa Embury; M. Marinas; Louise Overfield; 

Apologies:  Dawn Marie Jones; Wendy Jones. 

 

Executive Summary 

Item No. 
Item / 

Subject 
Actions Responsibility Complete by 

3  Presentation 
on the 
current 

situation 

Send an electronic copy of the presentation to the 
Governors, Parents and Staff. 

Education 
Department   

October 11 

3  Presentation 
on the 
current 

situation 

Education Department to check that parents pay a fee for 
the under 8's that use the bus to go to Ysgol Sarn Bach. 

Education 
Department   

*October 23 

5 Next Steps Share analysis of the options in the form of 'SWOT 
Analysis' to ensure robust discussion at the next meeting. 
 

Education 
Department   

 *October 23 

5 Next Steps  Set up a page on the Modernising Education site on 
Gwynedd Council's website with the latest information 
about the process with Ysgol Abersoch. 

Education 
Department   

October 11 

 

Item 
No. 

Item / Subject Actions 

1.  Welcome 

 Garem Jackson, Head of Education at Gwynedd Council welcomed everyone to the 
meeting. 

 It was confirmed that the Cabinet had approved to review the position and future of 
the school on 17 September 2019 following a decrease in the number of pupils at the 
school. 

 It was noted that it is important to note that Gwynedd Council has not made a 
decision about the future of the school. The purpose of the local meeting is to discuss 
possible options. 

 It was explained that although Ysgol Abersoch is not categorised as a rural school by 
the Welsh Government, the Education Department will go through the process in the 
same way if Ysgol Abersoch were a rural school. It was noted that the Education 
Department have to follow and comply with the process set out in the School 
Organisation Code (2018). 
 

Ysgol Abersoch Review Meeting 

 

12
Page 117



  

2.  

Opening words 
from the 
Cabinet 

Member for 
Education 

 The words of the Head of Education were reiterated.  

 It was explained that the purpose of the meeting was to open discussions about the 
challenges facing the school due to the low number of pupils and start to think about 
possible options for the future. 

 The importance of the stakeholders input was emphasised. 

 In response to the question from attendees regarding why did the Council go public 
about the situation so soon, it was explained that all Cabinet reports are public, 
therefore it is not possible to avoid press coverage. It was emphasised that the 
Council has no control over how the press interprets what is published. 

 It was asked who will make the final decision regarding the future of the school. It 
was noted that any option has to be compared against the status quo. The 
recommendation will be made by the Cabinet Member but the decision whether or 
not to accept the recommendation rests with the Cabinet. 

 Stakeholders emphasised that removing the school from the centre of the 
community would have a negative impact on the Welsh language. 

3.  
Presentation 

on the current 
situation 

 A presentation was given which showed the current situation at Ysgol Abersoch. 

 It was explained that two further meetings would be held to consider the possible 
options. 

 Action: Send an electronic copy of the presentation to Governors, Parents and 
Staff. 

 It has been noted that there has been a significant drop in pupil numbers since 2016. 

 It was confirmed that there are only 9 pupils on the register (September 2019 
Census). 

 It was notes that projections suggest that there won’t be an increase in births in the 
area over the next few years. Rural depopulation is a concern for many rural schools 
in Gwynedd. 

 School budget was discussed and the Area Education Officer explained that a 
‘Minimum Staffing Protection' scheme currently protects the school to ensure the 
children are educated. 

 It was noted that the cost per pupil at the school was amongst the highest in the 
county. 

 It was noted, based on September 2018 data, that 24 children living in the Ysgol 
Abersoch catchment area had chosen to attend an out of catchment area school. It 
was explained that the Council does not have the power to compel parents to send 
children to the catchment area school. 

 In response to the comment regarding the bus carrying the catchment area children 
to Ysgol Sarn Bach, it was explained that the County's Empty Seating Policy gave 
parents the opportunity to apply for a vacant seat on a school bus, and that parents 
were required to pay a fee for the transportation. 
Action: Education Department to check that parents are paying a fee for the under 
8's who use the bus to go to Ysgol Sarn Bach 

 It was explained that information in the annual information booklet for parents 
stated that parents had the right to request that their child attend any school. 

 The impact of the Common Housing Policy and the Access Policy on small areas such 
as Abersoch was explained. 

 The Area education Officer explained the factors that the Council will need to 
consider when looking at possible options for the future of the school. 

 It was noted that the Education Department would welcome more possible options / 
ideas offered by the stakeholders.  

 In response to the question regarding the options offered in other areas in a similar 

13
Page 118



  

situation, it was noted that 8 options had been considered with Ysgol Llanaelhaearn 
but now the shortlisted options was down to 3. 

4.  
Discussion 

 

 It was agreed that if something significant happens during the process such as a new 
family moving to the area this will be reflected and considered when reporting to 
Cabinet in December. 

 Housing Policy is a concern in Abersoch as young people are unable to move to the 
area. Affordable housing in the area cost around £200,000. This is not affordable as a 
first home to attract young family. 

 The Education Department has no control to influence the Housing Policy but it was 
suggested that if the community has concerns regarding the Housing Allocation 
Policy, they could contact the Council's Housing Department. 

 It was noted that the Local Member had already raised this concern. 

 It was reported that Ysgol Abersoch had received a Gold Award with the Language 
Charter. It was added that the Urdd is also held at Ysgol Abersoch. 

 Parish Council have expressed their support to secure a future for Ysgol Abersoch 
and feel that Gwynedd Council should provide financial support for the school as it is 
essential for the benefit of the community and the Welsh language. 

 It was asked what options Gwynedd Council has used in similar situations. It was 
noted that federalisation is the main one that stands out at present but it must be 
remembered that others have influence over the federalisation option, whether to 
support or oppose. 

 It was emphasised that a Community and Language Impact Assessment will be 
undertaken as part of the process. 

 It was noted that there is an important link between the school and the village hall. 
The hall is a free facility for the school and therefore a resource for the Education 
Department. 

 4 new options were proposed to consider: 
1) Change the age range of the school to 3-11. 
2) Establish a Cylch at Ysgol Abersoch. 

Discussions have been held to re-establish a Nursery School in Llanengan. Cylch in 
the surrounding areas such as Llanbedrog is extremely popular. The biggest 
problem with this option would attract children to Abersoch to make the 
organisation sustainable. 

3) Establish a Language Center for the children of Pen Llŷn. 
It was noted that demand would have to be measured, especially as there are 
already similar establishment in Gwynedd. 

4) Federalisation by locating Foundation Phase only at Ysgol Abersoch site. 

5.  
Next Steps 

 

 It was noted that we would be considering all options discussed tonight and any 
other comments can be sent to the Modernising Education Office no later than 16 
October. 

 Action: Gwynedd Council to share SWOT Analysis of the options in advance to 
ensure robust discussion during the meeting. 

 Action: Set up a new page on the Modernising Education site on Gwynedd Council's 
website with the latest information about the process with Ysgol Abersoch. 

6.  
Close 

 

 Everyone was thanked for attending the meeting and the next meeting will be held at 
the School on 23 September *. 
 

*Since the meeting, it was decided to allow more time to submit further responses 
and comments, by 23 October 2019, and the next meeting will be held Wednesday 

evening, 13 November 2019 at 6pm at Ysgol Abersoch 

14
Page 119



 

 

 
 

Ysgol Abersoch Review Meeting 
 

18:00, Wednesday, 13 November 2019 
 

Ysgol Abersoch  
 

   

1. 
 

WELCOME (Garem Jackson, Head of Education Department)  

   

2. 
 

OPENING WORD FROM EDUCATION CABINET MEMBER (Cllr. Cemlyn Williams) 

   

3.  PRESENTATION ON THE LIST OF OPTIONS (SWOT ANALYSIS) 

(Gwern ap Rhisiart, Area Education Officer Dwyfor and Meirionnydd) 

   

4. 
 

DISCUSSION - Opportunity to add or comment on the content of the SWOT analysis 

   

5.  NEXT STEPS 

   

6.  THANKS AND CLOSE 

   

   

 
 

 

 
 
 

Ysgol Abersoch Review Meeting 
 

15
Page 120



ABERSOCH SCHOOL REVIEW PANEL

13 November 2019

AGENDA

1. WELCOME (Garem Jackson, Head of Education)

2. OPENING WORD FROM THE CABINET MEMBER FOR EDUCATION (Cllr. Cemlyn Williams)

3. PRESENTATION ON THE LIST OF OPTIONS (SWOT ANALYSIS) – (Gwern ap Rhisiart, Area Education 

Officer for Dwyfor and Meirionnydd)

4. DISCUSSION – Opportunity to add or comment on the content of the SWOT analysis 

5. NEXT STEPS

6. THANKS AND CLOSE

16
Page 121



RESPOND TO THE QUESTIONS FROM THE MEETING ON 7 
OCTOBER 2019

1. Out of catchment transport. • Gwynedd Council provides free transport for learners receiving primary education who live 2 miles or further 
from the school in their catchment area, or the nearest school (not including nursery class pupils).

• As part of the Vacant Seats Scheme, the Council is prepared to consider applications from learners attending a 
school (or school site) other than the catchment-area school (or school site) to take advantage of any spare 
seats on contract vehicles by paying a fee outside the catchment area.

• Taking advantage of the scheme is subject to:
• Vacant seats available
• The vehicle does not need to deviate from its normal route
• No additional costs for the Council
• Pay the current fee for spare seats

• A fee of £63.00 per year is charged for full time pupils under 8 years of age, and a fee of £31.50 per annum for 
nursery pupils.

2. Where is the child's voice in this process? Should the Cabinet decide to undertake a statutory consultation process on any proposal, in accordance with the 
requirements of the School Organisation Code 2018, the Council would make arrangements to ensure that we 
receive the views of children and young people on that proposal.

3. What is being done to encourage people to send their 
children to the nearest or catchment area school?

“ LAs must not suggest that parents should express a preference for the school in whose catchment area they live, or 
that they have been allocated a place at that school before they have expressed a preference. Although they should 
explain the possible consequences of not doing so, LAs must make it clear that parents are allowed to express
a preference for any school.”

-Para 2.53, School Admission Code (005/2013)

4. How does the future of Ysgol Abersoch fit into the 
wider strategic picture when considering education in 
south of Llyn?

As noted in the Cabinet report of 17 September 2019, the decision to initiate a local debate about the future of 
the school came as a result of the recent fall in numbers as well as the projections suggesting that the numbers 
will not increase in the near future. This situation is not part of a wider strategy for education in southern Llyn, but 
rather a response to an individual school situation.

5. Can you outline how this process fits in with the 7 
well-being goals and 5 sustainable development 
principles set out in the Well-being of Future 
Generations Act 2015?

The Education Department has a role in promoting the aims of the Act's with the county's pupils through its 
activities and projects. The Well-being of Future Generations Act (2015) places a duty on public bodies in Wales to 
improve economic, social, environmental and cultural well-being. As part of the duty the Council has published 
well-being objectives which outline how it will improve well-being in the “Gwynedd Plan 2018-2023”.

As part of the options appraisal process, we will carry out an assessment in accordance with the requirements of 
the Well-being Act.

6. How and when is the assessment of the 'impact of 
the proposal on the Welsh language' undertaken?

In accordance with the requirements of the Welsh Government School Organisation Code (011/2018), we will 
undertake impact assessments, including an assessment on the impact on the language following confirmation of 
the short-listed options. The relevant reports will be included as an appendix to the report to Cabinet in the new 
year. 

7. What is the formula used across the County to 
project primary school numbers?

The primary school projections are calculated and reported to the authority by the primary headteachers as part 
of the September annual census process. 

RESPOND TO THE QUESTIONS FROM THE MEETING ON 7 
OCTOBER 2019

17
Page 122



LIST OF OPTIONS

1. Continue with the ‘Status Quo’

2. Change the age range of Ysgol Abersoch from 3-8 years to 3-11 years

3. Federate with a neighbouring school

4.
Federate with a neighbouring school, locating the Foundation Phase in Ysgol
Abersoch, and KS2 in the neighbouring school.

5. 
Federate with a neighbouring schools, locating the Foundation Phase + Year 3 
& 4 + Year 5 & 6 on 3 different school sites. 

6. Close Ysgol Abersoch and offer pupils a place at an alternative school 

7. Locate a Language Centre on the site of Ysgol Abersoch

8. Establish a Cylch at Ysgol Abersoch

Based on the discussion and input received during and following the meeting held on 7 October 2019, a list of options 
was drawn up:

ANALYSIS OF THE OPTIONS

18
Page 123



Option 1 - Continue with the ‘Status Quo’

STRENGTHS WEAKNESSES OPPORTUNITES THREATS

 Retaining school presence in 
the village – no effect on the 
relationship between the 
school and the local 
community

 No change in travel distances 
for the school’s current 
pupils.

 Small classes
 Welsh-medium education 

continues in Abersoch village 
- continue to promote and 
facilitate the use of Welsh 
locally / within the 
community

 School within walking 
distance of home - social 
benefits.

 Pupil numbers remain low
 Ysgol Abersoch remains 

within the school minimum 
staffing protection

 A significant percentage of 
surplus places remain 

 Schools budget allocation 
would not maintain the 
current staffing structure

 Lack of non-contact time for 
the headteacher – only 1.5 
non-contact days per week

 Small classes
 High cost per pupil.

 School projections predict a 
further reduction in numbers 

 Uncertainty remains 
regarding the long-term 
sustainability of the school 

 High percentage of pupils 
attending schools outside the 
catchment area. 

*Red font - members comments received during the meeting 13/11/19.

Option 2a - Change the age range of Ysgol Abersoch from 3-8 years to 
3-11 years

STRENGTHS WEAKNESSES OPPORTUNITES THREATS

 Retaining school presence in the 
village – no effect on the 
relationship between the school 
and the local community

 School’s age range consistent 
with the majority of the county’s 
primary schools 

 No disruption to the school’s KS2 
provision – may lead to better 
curriculum continuity as the 
school offers 2 full teaching 
phases (FPh + KS2)

 No change in travel distances for 
the school’s current pupils

 Welsh-medium education 
continues in Abersoch village -
continue to promote and 
facilitate the use of Welsh locally 
/ within the community

 Pupils have the option of 
continuing their primary 
education at Ysgol Abersoch.

 Small classes.

 Without modifications, the 
existing building / site it wouldn’t 
be suitable should there be a 
large increase in pupil numbers

 This would lead to extending the 
age range within classrooms

 It is a possibility that the school’s 
allocation would not maintain the 
current staffing structure

 Lack of non-contact time for the 
headteacher

 Ysgol Abersoch will remain in the 
minimum staffing protection. 

 Cost per pupil continues to be 
higher than the county average. 

 May lead to an increase in the 
school’s pupil numbers

 If the school’s pupil numbers 
were to increase, it would result 
in a reduction in the number of 
surplus places. 

 Should the pupils decide to 
continue at Ysgol Abersoch until 
year 6, it may have a negative 
impact on the pupil numbers at 
Ysgol Sarn Bach, the school which 
currently provides education for 
pupils between the ages of 8 and 
11 in the Abersoch catchment 
area

 High percentage of pupils already 
attend out-of-catchment schools –
it is not guaranteed that pupils 
would choose to attend Ysgol
Abersoch following the change to 
the age range

 Should the numbers remain low, 
the uncertainty regarding the 
long-term sustainability of the 
school would continue. 

*Red font - members comments received during the meeting 13/11/19.

19
Page 124



Option 2b - Change the age range of Ysgol Abersoch from 3-8 years to 
3-9 years

STRENGTHS WEAKNESSES OPPORTUNITES THREATS

 Retaining school presence in the 
village – no effect on the 
relationship between the school 
and the local community

 No change in travel distances for 
the school’s current pupils

 Welsh-medium education 
continues in Abersoch village -
continue to promote and 
facilitate the use of Welsh locally 
/ within the community

 Pupils have the option of 
continuing their primary 
education at Ysgol Abersoch for 
an additional year. 

 Small classes.

 Without modifications, the 
existing building / site it wouldn’t 
be suitable should there be a 
large increase in pupil numbers

 This would lead to extending the 
age range within classrooms

 It is a possibility that the school’s 
allocation would not maintain the 
current staffing structure

 Lack of non-contact time for the 
headteacher

 Ysgol Abersoch will remain in the 
minimum staffing protection. 

 Cost per pupil continues to be 
higher than the county average. 

 May lead to an increase in the 
school’s pupil numbers

 If the school’s pupil numbers 
were to increase, it would result 
in a reduction in the number of 
surplus places. 

 Should the pupils decide to 
continue at Ysgol Abersoch until 
year 4, it may have a negative 
impact on the pupil numbers at 
Ysgol Sarn Bach, the school which 
currently provides education for 
pupils between the ages of 8 and 
11 in the Abersoch catchment 
area

 High percentage of pupils already 
attend out-of-catchment schools –
it is not guaranteed that pupils 
would choose to attend Ysgol
Abersoch following the change to 
the age range

 Should the numbers remain low, 
the uncertainty regarding the 
long-term sustainability of the 
school would continue. 

*Red font - members comments received during the meeting 13/11/19.

Option 3 - Federate with a neighbouring school

STRENGTHS WEAKNESSES OPPORTUNITES THREATS

 Retaining school presence in 
the village – no effect on the 
relationship between the 
school and the local 
community

 No change in travel distances 
for the school’s current 
pupils.

 Welsh-medium education 
continues in Abersoch village 
- continue to promote and 
facilitate the use of Welsh 
locally / within the 
community

 Small classes
 School is more sustainable.

 Pupil numbers remain low
 Ysgol Abersoch remains 

within the school minimum 
staffing protection

 A significant percentage of 
surplus places remain 

 It is likely that the schools 
budget allocation would not 
maintain the current staffing 
structure

 Small classes
 High cost per pupil
 One governing  body.

 Sharing a headteacher
 Sharing staff
 Sharing resources and 

opportunities to use budges 
across the two schools

 In some situations, 
federating with another 
school may result in the 
headteacher receiving more 
non-contact time.

 High percentage of pupils 
already attend out-of-
catchment schools – it is not 
guaranteed the change would 
result in more children 
attending Ysgol Abersoch

 School projections predict a 
further reduction in numbers

 High percentage of pupils 
attending schools outside the 
catchment area

 Federation is a model that is 
dependent on the willingness 
of other schools to join the 
co-operation arrangement. 

*Red font - members comments received during the meeting 13/11/19.

20
Page 125



Option 4 - Federate with a neighbouring school, locating the Foundation Phase in 
Ysgol Abersoch, and KS2 in the neighbouring school.

STRENGTHS WEAKNESSES OPPORTUNITES THREATS

 Retaining school presence in 
the village – no effect on the 
relationship between the 
school and the local 
community

 No change in travel distances 
for the school’s current  FP
pupils

 More viable / suitable size 
classes

 Welsh-medium education 
continues in Abersoch village -
continue to promote and 
facilitate the use of Welsh 
locally / within the community .

 Some pupils may have to travel 
further to school - need to 
consider the environmental 
impact resulting from this. 

 Numbers remain low on both 
sites

 Age range within classes 
remain high

 Cost per pupil remains high
 Need to consider the costs 

associated with rebranding the 
schools

 One governing body
 Larger classes in terms of pupil 

numbers.

 Sharing a headteacher
 Sharing staff
 Sharing resources and 

opportunities to use budges 
across the two schools. 

 In some situations, federating 
with another school may result 
in the headteacher receiving 
more non-contact time.

 Federation is a model that is 
dependent on the willingness of 
other schools to join the co-
operation arrangement

 The age range of the nearby 
school would have to be 
changed so that they only admit 
KS2 pupils. Advice from the W.G 
would be required to see if 
implementing this model would 
be possible 

 Limiting the neighbouring
school to provide education for 
KS2 pupils only could potentially 
have a detrimental effect on 
their pupil numbers

 The change could lead to 
parents choosing not to send 
their children to the school - a 
threat to numbers.

*Red font - members comments received during the meeting 13/11/19.

Option 5 - Federate with a neighbouring schools, locating the Foundation Phase + 
Year 3 & 4 + Year 5 & 6 on 3 different school sites. 

STRENGTHS WEAKNESSES OPPORTUNITES THREATS

 Retaining school presence in the 
village – no effect on the 
relationship between the school 
and the local community

 No change in travel distances for 
the school’s FP current pupils

 More viable / suitable size 
classes

 Welsh-medium education 
continues in Abersoch village -
continue to promote and 
facilitate the use of Welsh locally 
/ within the community.

 Some pupils may have to travel 
further to school - need to 
consider the environmental 
impact resulting from this . 

 Need to consider the costs 
associated with rebranding the 
schools

 Pupils would transfer 3 times 
during their primary education

 The cost per pupil at the 3 
schools is likely to be higher than 
the county average of £3,884

 One governing body
 Larger classes in terms of pupil 

numbers.

 Sharing a headteacher
 Sharing staff
 Sharing resources and 

opportunities to use budges 
across the 3 schools

 In some situations, federating 
with another school may result 
in the headteacher receiving 
more non-contact time.

 Federation is a model that is 
dependent on the willingness of 
other schools to join the co-
operation arrangement 

 The age range of the nearby 
schools would have to be 
changed so that they only admit 
Year 3&4 / 5&6 pupils. Advice 
from the W.G would be required 
to see if implementing this model 
would be possible 

 Limiting the neighbouring
schools to provide education for 
KS2 pupils only could potentially 
have a detrimental effect on their 
pupil numbers 

 It is not possible to federate 
schools with a different legal 
status

 The change could lead to parents 
choosing not to send their 
children to the school - a threat 
to numbers.

*Red font - members comments received during the meeting 13/11/19.

21
Page 126



Option 6 - Close Ysgol Abersoch and offer pupils a place at 
an alternative school 

STRENGTHS WEAKNESSES OPPORTUNITES THREATS

 Pupils educated in more 
viable/suitably sized classes

 No pupils would have to 
travel an unreasonable 
distance to school

 A reduction in the 
percentage of surplus places

 Reduction in the cost per 
pupil.

 Loss of school presence in 
Abersoch village

 Some pupils would have to 
travel further to school

 Staff redundancies
 Loss of Welsh medium 

education in Abersoch
village.

 Opportunity for the 
community to work 
together and build 
relationships with the 
neighbouring/alternative 
school 

 Larger class sizes – an 
opportunity for children to 
be educated with more 
children of the same age 
group 

 Pupil numbers at the school 
providing education for the 
catchment area pupils 
would be more viable for 
the future.

 Loss of Welsh Medium 
Education in Abersoch Village 
- the authority would 
undertake an assessment to 
measure any potential 
impact of the proposal

 Need to consider any impact 
on the local Urdd club

 Need to consider any impact 
on the plans to establish a 
Cylch and Ti a Fi at school.

*Red font - members comments received during the meeting 13/11/19.

Opsiwn 7 - Locate a Language Centre on the site of 
Ysgol Abersoch

STRENGTHS WEAKNESSES OPPORTUNITES THREATS

 Retaining school presence in 
the village – no effect on the 
relationship between the 
school and the local 
community

 No change in travel distances 
for the school’s 

 A reduction in the percentage 
of surplus places

 Welsh-medium education 
continues in Abersoch village -
continue to promote and 
facilitate the use of Welsh 
locally / within the community.

 Locating a Language Centre at a 
school does not usually have an 
effect on the pupil numbers

 It would not generate income 
for the school

 Ysgol Abersoch remains within 
the school minimum staffing 
protection

 Schools budget allocation 
would not maintain the current 
staffing structure

 Lack of non-contact time for 
the head teacher – only 1.5 
non-contact days per week

 Small classes
 High cost per pupil
 Concerns regarding the lack of 

demand for an additional 
language center provision in 
the area.

 School projections project a 
further reduction in numbers

 Learning space would have to 
be sacrificed in order to provide 
space for the Learning Centre 

 Demand for additional 
Language Centre provision 
would need to be measured. 

*Red font - members comments received during the meeting 13/11/19.

22
Page 127



Option 8a - Establish a Cylch at Ysgol Abersoch

STRENGTHS WEAKNESSES OPPORTUNITES THREATS

 Retaining school presence in 
the village – no effect on the 
relationship between the 
school and the local 
community

 No change in travel distances 
for the school’s existing 
pupils

 A reduction in the 
percentage of surplus places

 Welsh-medium education 
continues in Abersoch
village - continue to 
promote and facilitate the 
use of Welsh locally / 
within the community

 Small classes. 

 Pupil numbers remain low at 
Ysgol Abersoch

 Ysgol Abersoch remains 
within the school minimum 
staffing protection

 Schools budget allocation 
would not maintain the 
current staffing structure

 Lack of non-contact time for 
the headteacher – only 1.5 
non-contact days per week

 Small classes
 High cost per pupil.

 Establishing a Cylch in the 
school may attract more 
pupils to the school. 

 School projections project a 
further reduction in numbers 

 Need to officially check if the 
building complies with the 
requirements of the registration 
with CIW

 Learning space would have to 
be sacrificed in order to provide 
space for the Cylch

 Would need to measure the 
demand for additional Cylch
provision in the area

 Need to employ a minimum of 2 
members of staff to run a Cylch
– income from the Cylch would 
need to meet these 
employment costs. 

*Red font - members comments received during the meeting 13/11/19.

Option 8b - Change the age range of Ysgol Abersoch from 3-8 years to 3-9 years + 
Establish a Cylch at Ysgol Abersoch

STRENGTHS WEAKNESSES OPPORTUNITES THREATS

 Retaining school presence in the 
village – no effect on the 
relationship between the school and 
the local community

 No change in travel distances for the 
school’s existing pupils

 A reduction in the percentage of 
surplus places

 Welsh-medium education continues 
in Abersoch village - continue to 
promote and facilitate the use of 
Welsh locally / within the 
community

 Pupils have the option of continuing 
their education for an extra year at 
Ysgol Abersoch.

 Small classes. 

 Without modifications, the existing 
building / site it wouldn’t be suitable 
should there be a large increase in 
pupil numbers

 This would lead to extending the age 
range within classrooms

 It is a possibility that the school’s 
allocation would not maintain the 
current staffing structure

 Lack of non-contact time for the 
headteacher

 Ysgol Abersoch will remain in the 
minimum staffing protection. 

 Cost per pupil continues to be higher 
than the county average. 

 May lead to an increase in 
the school’s pupil numbers

 If the school’s pupil 
numbers were to increase, 
it would result in a 
reduction in the number of 
surplus places. 

 Should the pupils decide to continue at Ysgol
Abersoch until year 4, it may have a negative 
impact on the pupil numbers at Ysgol Sarn
Bach, the school which currently provides 
education for pupils between the ages of 8 
and 11 in the Abersoch catchment area

 High percentage of pupils already attend out-
of-catchment schools – it is not guaranteed 
that pupils would choose to attend Ysgol
Abersoch following the change to the age 
range

 Should the numbers remain low, the 
uncertainty regarding the long-term 
sustainability of the school would continue 

 School projections project a further reduction 
in numbers 

 Need to officially check if the building 
complies with the requirements of the 
registration with CIW

 Learning space would have to be sacrificed in 
order to provide space for the Cylch

 Would need to measure the demand for 
additional Cylch provision in the area

 Need to employ a minimum of 2 members of 
staff to run a Cylch – income from the Cylch
would need to meet these employment costs. 

*Red font - members comments received during the meeting 13/11/19.

23
Page 128



LIST OF OPTIONS

1. Continue with the ‘Status Quo’

2. (a) Change the age range of Ysgol Abersoch from 3-8 years to 3-11 years

2. (b) Change the age range of Ysgol Abersoch from 3-8 years to 3-9 years

3. Federate with a neighbouring school

4.
Federate with a neighbouring school, locating the Foundation Phase in Ysgol
Abersoch, and KS2 in the neighbouring school.

5. 
Federate with a neighbouring schools, locating the Foundation Phase + Year 3 
& 4 + Year 5 & 6 on 3 different school sites. 

6. Close Ysgol Abersoch and offer pupils a place at an alternative school 

7. Locate a Language Centre on the site of Ysgol Abersoch

8. (a) Establish a Cylch at Ysgol Abersoch

8. (b) Change the age range of Ysgol Abersoch from 3-8 years to 3-9 years + 
Establish a Cylch at Ysgol Abersoch

*Red font - members comments received during the meeting 13/11/19.

NEXT STEPS

Following updating the SWOT analysis of the list of options, taking into account any comments received, we will 
proceed to evaluate the options against the considerations / factors set out in the Strategy, “Excellent primary 
education for children in Gwynedd ”, namely:

1) Class sizes and age range
2) Pupil numbers
3) Learning Environment
4) Leadership and Staffing
5) The Community
6) Financial Resources
7) Exceptional situation
8) Language
9) Geographical Factors.

Again, you will have the opportunity to comment on the contents of the Options Appraisal document during and after 
the third local meeting.

24
Page 129



OUTLINE TIMETABLE

Outline Timetable

Steps Option A Option B

Deadline for receiving comments on the SWOT analysis 20 November 2019 2 December 2019

Meeting (3/3):
• Discuss the outcome of the options appraisal

4 December 2019 w/c 2 January, 2020

Conduct Impact Assessments on the Options
December 2019 - January 

2020
January 2020

Cabinet - Cabinet Member to make a recommendation 
to Cabinet

February 2020 February 2020

25
Page 130



  

 

www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru 

 

Meeting: Ysgol Abersoch Review Date:  13/11/2019       6:00pm 
Location:  Ysgol Abersoch  

 

Present: Officers: 
Garem Jackson (GJ); Gwern ap Rhisiart (GapRh); Cllr. Cemlyn Williams (CW); Gwenno Haf Evans 
(GHE); Rhian Hughes (RH); 
 
On behalf of the Governors, Staff and Parents of Ysgol Abersoch:  
Linda Jones; Llinos Haf Owen; Cyng. Dewi Roberts; Owen Hefin Roberts; Margot Jones; Anna E. 
Jones; Eifiona Wood; Einir Wyn; Lee Scott Embury; M. Marinas; Louise Overfield; Dawn Marie 
Jones; Wendy Jones; Annwen Parry Hughes; Sue Frizby; Laura Thornicroft; Dylan Evans; Tamsyn 
Armishaw. 
 

 

Executive Summary  

Item 
No. 

Item / 
Subject 

Actions Responsibility 
Complete 

by 

3. Presentation    Add sub-headings for the strengths that convey the Linguistic 
and community aspect. 

Education Dep. November   

3. Presentation   Add option 2b, which is to change the age range of Ysgol 
Abersoch to 3-9 years. 

Education Dep. November  

3. Presentation   
Contact the Head teacher of Ysgol Abersoch for full details 
regarding the discussions that have taken place to establish 
the Cylch. 

Education Dep. November  

3. Presentation  Add an option to change the age range to include Cylch up to 
Year 4 (combine the options if possible). 
 

Education Dep. November 

4. Next Steps Request from Governors to see the possible timetable if 
recommendation is to close. Need to see the side effect of the 
timetable when considering establishing a Cylch on the site. 

Education Dep. January   

 

Ite
m 

No. 
Item / Subject Actions 

1.  Welcome 

 Head of Education welcomed everyone to the meeting and the Head teacher of Ysgol 
Abersoch was thanked for hosting the meeting at the school. 

 It was noted that the purpose of the second meeting was to go through the SWOT analysis 
by explaining the next steps. 

2.  

Opening 
words from 
the Cabinet 
Member for 
Education 

 The words of the Head of Education were reiterated and it was explained that the purpose 
of the meeting was to go through the options in detail.  

 The importance of the stakeholders input was emphasised. 

 It was noted that the Education Department had included additional options to those noted 
in the previous meeting. 
 

3.  
Presentation  

 

 The importance of the stakeholders input was emphasised when discussing the options. 

 The content of the presentation was outlined: 
o Respond to comments / questions raised at the last meeting. 
o Options analysis - invite stakeholders' comments on the content of the analysis. 

Ysgol Abersoch Review Meeting 

 

26
Page 131



  

Part 1 - Responses to the questions raised from the previous meeting 
Question 1 - Transport 

 It was noted that a process is currently underway across the Authority which requires 
schools to ensure that the children who travel on the buses have registered with the 
Transport Department. It was noted that this would help to ensure that only the children 
who are eligible for transport are on the bus. 

 
Question 3 – Catchment Area 

 It was explained that the Authority does not have the power to influence parents’ decision 
to send children to the catchment area school. In response to the question about the 
purpose of catchment-areas if it does not ensure that children attend their catchment-area 
school, it was noted that the system is mainly historical, but also, the system is used by the 
School Transport department. 

 
Questions 5 and 6 – Assessments 

 It was noted that a copy of all impact assessments will be included as an appendix to the 
report presented to the Cabinet. 

 It was asked what the usual procedure with the Assessments is? 
It was noted that the Education Department will follow the standard procedure by 
evaluating each model. 

 
Question 7 - Projections 

 Education Department agreed with the statement that the projections are not scientifically 
accurate. It was explained that the January 2020 census figure will be used by the 
Education Department in the February report. 

 
Part 2 – Discussions on the SWOT Options 
 
1) Status Quo – Continue with the current situation 

 It was noted that small classes can be argued to be a strength as well as a weakness, so it 
was agreed to include in both columns. 

 It was confirmed that the capacity of Ysgol Abersoch included Nursery numbers. 

 The ability to walk to the School was noted as a strength as well as the welcoming feeling at 
the school (social aspects). 

 It was explained that the opportunities column had been left empty as there was no change 
to the current position regarding opportunities. Education Officers agreed to include 
something in the column if stakeholders can identify a new opportunity. 

 It was stated that more strengths needed to be included such as using the bus on a daily 
basis, supporting the local leisure centre throughout the year, door to door visits. 

 Some argued that the bullet points that convey the strengths of the school are too dry. 

 Disappointment was expressed that there was no reference to the Welsh language 
throughout the document. 

 One parent noted that her child was now fluent in Welsh since starting at the school. 

 Action: Add sub-headings for the strengths that convey the Linguistic and community 
aspect. 

 Some stakeholders questioned the value of the process and suggested that the Education 
Department were not listening to their comments. 

 The Education Area Officer explained that the Portfolio Holder was present at the meetings 
in order to report back to Cabinet as the final decision would be made by the Cabinet. It 
was added that the School Organization Code 2013 gave the authority the power to follow 
a shorter process to close schools with fewer than 10 pupils on the January census, 

27
Page 132



  

however, in this case, the authority intends to follow the full statutory process. 

 The question was asked as to who decides if a school is a rural school. 
It was noted that the Education Department has no influence on the process. Criteria by 
the Welsh Government decides on the list. 

2) Change the Age Range of Ysgol Abersoch from 3-8 years to 3-11 years 

 Education Department Officers noted their concerns regarding the suitability of the 
outdoor play area as it was also a disadvantage for this model. 

 It was questioned why the potential impact on the numbers of Ysgol Sarn Bach had been 
identified as a threat. It was explained that it would threaten the local provision as a whole 
and therefore should be noted. 

 Several parents stated that the children would choose to stay at Ysgol Abersoch if the 
school provided education for children up to the age of 11. 

 The question was asked if it is possible to get parents to sign a document in advance to 
express an interest in attending the school as part of the registration process. It was noted 
that it would not be possible as it would go against the Authority's normal practice. 

 It was questioned whether the Head teacher’s lack of non-contact time is a weakness in this 
case. The Head teacher confirmed that this was a weakness. 

 It was noted that 80% is the target for non-contact time for Head teachers according to the 
principles. 

 In response to the comment regarding the Head teacher’s non-contact time it was 
suggested that the best way to address this issue would be to employ more teachers. 
Education Officers argued that the problem could also be addressed through different 
models. 

 It was confirmed that the cost per pupil at Ysgol Abersoch was amongst the highest in the 
County and that the school was within the Minimum Staffing Protection policy. 

 An additional option was proposed, to offer an additional year at Ysgol Abersoch, up to 
Year 4 (3-9 years) 

 Action: Add option 2b, which is to change the age range of Ysgol Abersoch to 3-9 years. 
3) Federalise with a nearby school 

 It was noted that 3 federalisation models had been identified. 

 It was emphasised that there had been no discussion with neighbouring schools to date. 

 It was noted that the neighbouring schools would probably be the schools that adjoin the 
Abersoch catchment area. It was emphasised that it would not be possible to formally 
federate with a school of different legal status. It was suggested that Ysgol Sarn Bach would 
be the sensible choice given the fact that pupils already transfer to the school after Yr. 3. 

 It was suggested that having a single governing body over both schools can be a weakness. 

 It was noted that the Education Department was of the opinion that it could be an 
opportunity and a strength as many schools were struggling to appoint governors. It was 
explained that the WG Regulations set clear guidelines for appointing governors to a 
federal governing body in order to ensure fair representation of the schools. 

 It was explained that the model would not offer a financial saving, but would lead to 
improving the pupil experience through the opportunities to share resources and staff as 
well as offering more non-contact time to the Head teacher.  

 It was agreed to add improving sustainability to both schools as a strength 

 It was explained that some schools had federated informally, through a Head teacher 
sharing arrangement. It was noted that informal federalisation usually arises if there is a 
problem with recruiting a Head teacher. 

 It was proposed to add a weakness - environmental impact due to the increased use of 
buses to transport the children. 

 It was stated that the next step between now and the next meeting will be to discuss this 

28
Page 133



  

option with neighbouring schools and the Authority will need to weigh up the strengths and 
challenges of each model. 

 It was noted that other schools would have to view the option as an advantage - enforcing 
federation can be a risk to the success of the model. 

 
4) Federalise with a nearby school locating the Foundation Phase on the site of Ysgol 

Abersoch, and KS2 on the site of the nearby school 

 It was added again that larger classes are a weakness. 

 Threat - parents disregarding Ysgol Sarn Bach and Ysgol Abersoch due to excessive site 
moves. 

5) Federalise with neighbouring schools locating Foundation Phase + Years 3 and 4 + Years 5 
and 6 on site of 3 different schools 

 It was asked if there is evidence that such a model exists elsewhere. 
It was noted that the Education Department was not aware of a permanent similar model 
but was aware that a neighbouring county had used a similar model temporarily, while a 
new school was being built, but with more substantial pupil numbers. 

 Add a weakness  - travel / environmental impact 

 It was also noted that it is not possible to formally federate with a school of different status 
so consideration would need to be given to which schools could be part of this model. 

 It was noted that the Governors do not favour option 5. 

 The Education Department emphasised that the purpose of the meeting is not to sell the 
options, but to consider their strengths and weaknesses. 

6) Close Ysgol Abersoch and offer pupils a place at an alternative school 

 It was again proposed that larger classes is a weakness. 

 Add a weakness - Losing the Tudwal Urdd branch, Cylch Ti a Fi and Nursery 

 In response to a query from the Governors regarding how the Education Department deals 
with admissions requests to the school, it was noted that the Education Department does 
not have the right to influence parental choice. The Officers accepted the comment that 
the Authority needed to be sensitive to the situation of the school, but it was highlighted 
that information regarding the process / review that is already underway is public. It was 
agreed to discuss the matter further following the meeting. 

 In response to a question regarding the Authority's plans for the site should it become 
vacant - it was noted that it was premature to discuss plans for the site at this point, as we 
had not agreed on an option. It was explained that the procedure that has been followed in 
the past is that the site is offered to the community in the first place. 

 The audience emphasised that the biggest threat would be the loss of the Welsh language 
within the community of Abersoch. In addition they do not feel that the document conveys 
the true character of Abersoch and that the Authority sees Abersoch as a non-Welsh 
speaking village. 

7) Locate a language centre on the site of Ysgol Abersoch  

 When discussing concerns about the lack of demand locally, it was confirmed that Llangybi 
Language Centre had not been full during any term since it opened. 

8) Establish a Cylch at Ysgol Abersoch   

 Stakeholders declared the threats under option 8 was invalid. It was noted that several had 
already expressed an interest in attending the group. 

 It was also added that the school had already received confirmation that the site was 
suitable for providing a Cylch. 

 Reference was made to the possibility of establishing an additional Ti a Fi Group to increase 
numbers. 

 It was noted that the trend is usually that Cylch works better on a school site. 

 Action: Contact the Head teacher of Ysgol Abersoch for full details regarding the 

29
Page 134



  

discussions that have taken place to establish the Cylch. 

 Action: Add an option - to establish a Cylch and change the age range to 3 to 9 years. 
General Comments 

 With the federation models it may be possible to combine different options to strengthen 
the option.  

 The Education Department agreed to include the language and community context across 
the 8 options. 

4.  
Next Steps 

 

 It was explained that the next steps would be for the Officers to update the SWOT analysis 
of the list of options, taking into account any comments received, and then evaluate the 
options against the considerations / factors set out in the Strategy, "Excellent Primary 
Education for Children in Gwynedd". 

 Stakeholders were offered two options in terms of the timescale to respond and date of the 
third meeting. The general feeling was to go with option B in order to have more time to 
consider the options and arrange the third meeting in January rather than December. It was 
asked why the Education Department was going to report to the Cabinet in February 2020. 
It was noted that the Authority had already changed the date to allow more time for the 
local discussions (at the request of the governors) - but in order to provide clarity to the 
stakeholders of the school, the authority has decided to report to the Cabinet in February. 

 The Local Member was concerned about the lack of community engagement on the 
process. 
The Education Department explained that they are not trying to make any assumptions, 
should the Cabinet decide to hold a statutory consultation on a proposal, the public will 
have the right to express their views during that process. 

 In response to the request for officers to attend a public meeting in Abersoch in order to 
gain an understanding of the local opinion, it was noted if a statutory consultation process 
is held, the public and the local community can present their views formally at this stage. 
The School Organisation Code does not require the authority to hold public meetings as 
part of a statutory consultation processes. 

 It was confirmed that one option will be recommended to the Cabinet but all options 
discussed as part of the process will be presented as part of the report and background 
documentation. The Cabinet will have to decide whether or not they agree with the original 
recommendation. 

 The Local Member noted as a member of the Scrutiny Committee, he would ask for Ysgol 
Abersoch matter to be called in for scrutiny if it would come to that position. 

 The question was asked should a proposal to close the school be put forward as the final 
recommendation, when would the school officially close. 
It was emphasised that it was too prematurely to discuss a closing date for the school, 
considering that we were in the process of trying to find possible options for the school. 
However, it was explained that, should a decision be taken to consult on a proposal to close 
the school, it is unlikely that it would recommend closure by September 2020 due to the 
statutory process timetable requirements. It was noted that this would be discussed in 
more detail at Meeting 3. 

 The Local Member noted that he had been in contact with the family who had gifted the 
school grounds. He noted that they were disappointed and were planning to look at their 
situation regarding their gift. 

 Action: Request from Governors to see the possible timetable if recommendation is to 
close. Need to consider possible effects of the timetable when considering establishing a 
Cylch on the site. 

5. 
Close 

 
 Everyone was thanked for attending 

 Confirmed that the next meeting will be held in early January 2020. 

 

30
Page 135



 

 

 
 
 

 

 

18:00 – 19:00, Dydd Llun, 6 Ionawr 2020 
18:00 – 19:00, Monday, 6 January 2020 

 
Neuadd Bentref Abersoch  

Abersoch Village Hall 
 

  

1. 
CROESO  

WELCOME 

2. 
CRYNODEB O’R BROSES 

SUMMARY OF THE PROCESS 

3. 
GWERTHUSIAD OPSIYNAU  

OPTIONS APPRAISAL 

4. 
CAMAU NESAF + AMSERLEN AMLINELLOL 

NEXT STEPS + OUTLINE TIMETABLE 

5. 
DIOLCH A CHLOI 
THANKS AND CLOSE 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Cyfarfod Adolygu Ysgol Abersoch 
Ysgol Abersoch Review Meeting 

31
Page 136



YSGOL ABERSOCH

6 Ionawr 2020 
6 January 2020

AGENDA

1. Croeso 

2. Y Broses 

3. Gwerthusiad Opsiynau

4. Camau Nesaf ac Amserlen Amlinellol

5. Cloi

1. Welcome

2. The Process  

3. Options Appraisal

4. Next Steps and the Outline Timetable

5. Close

32
Page 137



Y BROSES / THE PROCESS
Camau 
Steps

Amserlen Amlinellol
Outline Timetable

Adroddiad Cabinet – Cais i gynnal trafodaethau lleol
Cabinet Report - Request to hold local discussions 17.09.2019

Cyfarfod Lleol 1 – Trafod ac ystyried opsiynau
Local Meeting 1 – Discuss and consider options 07.10.2019

Cyfarfod Lleol 2 – Dadansoddiad SWOT o’r holl opsiynau
Local Meeting 2 - SWOT analysis of all options 13.11.2019

Cyfarfod Lleol 3 – Gwerthusiad Opsiynau + Yr opsiynau sy’n welliant ar y ‘Status Quo’
Local Meeting 3 - Options Appraisal + Options that are an improvement to the ‘Status Quo’ 06.01.2020

Gwaith Ymchwil – Asesiadau Effaith ar y Iaith, y Gymuned a Cydraddoldeb + Asesiad yn erbyn y Ddeddf Llesiant
Research - Language, Community and Equality Impact Assessments + Assessment against the Well-being Act Ionawr / January 2020

Cyfarfod Cabinet Cyngor Gwynedd
Gwynedd Council Cabinet Meeting

18.02.2020

Cyfnod Ymgynghori Statudol / Statutory Consultation Period
Mawrth – Mai 2020
March – May 2020

Adroddiad i’r Cabinet yn dilyn Ymgynghoriad Statudol / Report to Cabinet following Statutory Consultation Mehefin 2020 / June 2020

Cyfnod Gwrthwynebu - Cyhoeddi Rhybudd Statudol a chyfle i ran-ddeiliaid wrthwynebu’r cynnig
Objection Period - Publication of Statutory Notice and opportunity for stakeholders to object the proposal

Mehefin – Gorffennaf 2020
June – July 2020

Cabinet – Adrodd yn ôl yn dilyn y cyfnod gwrthwynebu + penderfyniad terfynol
Cabinet – Report back following objection period + final decision Medi 2020 / September 2020

**
 Y

n 
dd

ib
yn

no
l a

r b
en

de
rf

yn
ia

d 
y 

Ca
bi

ne
t 1

8/
2/

20
 *

*
**

 S
ub

je
ct

 to
 C

ab
in

et
 d

ec
is

io
n 

on
 

18
/2

/2
0 

**

GWERTHUSIAD OPSIYNAU / OPTIONS APPRAISAL

33
Page 138



GWERTHUSIAD OPSIYNAU / OPTIONS APPRAISAL

In order to further analyse the options, the options were
evaluated against the factors of the Strategy, “Excellent
Primary Education for Children in Gwynedd”, namely:

1) Class Sizes and Age Range
2) Pupil Numbers
3) Learning Environment
4) Leadership and Staffing
5) The Community
6) Financial Resources
7) Exceptional Situation
8) Language
9) Geographical Factors

Er mwyn dadansoddi’r opsiynau ymhellach, gwerthuswyd
yr opsiynau yn erbyn ffactorau’r Strategaeth, “Addysg
Gynradd o’r Ansawdd Gorau i Blant Gwynedd”, sef:

1) Maint Dosbarthiadau ac Amrediad Oedran
2) Niferoedd Disgyblion
3) Amgylchedd Dysgu
4) Arweinyddiaeth a Staffio
5) Y Gymuned
6) Adnoddau Ariannol
7) Sefyllfa Eithriadol
8) Iaith
9) Ffactorau Daearyddol 

YR OPSIYNAU A YSTYRIWYD / OPTIONS CONSIDERED
Yn sgil y mewnbwn a dderbyniwyd yn ystod, ac yn dilyn y ddau gyfarfod lleol, cynhyrchwyd rhestr o opsiynau i’w hystyried. Er bod yr achos
dros newid wedi ei sefydlu, mae’r opsiwn ‘Gwneud Dim’ wedi ei gynnwys at ddiben cymharu.
As a result of the input received during, and following the two local meetings, a list of options was produced for consideration. Although
the case for change has been established, the 'Do Nothing' option is included for comparison purposes.

1 Status Quo – Parhau hefo’r sefyllfa bresennol

2 (a) Newid ystod oed Ysgol Abersoch o 3-8 oed i 3-11 oed

2 (b) Newid ystod oed Ysgol Abersoch o 3-8 oed i 3-9 oed

3 Ffederaleiddio gydag ysgol gyfagos

4 Ffederaleiddio gydag ysgol gyfagos gan leoli’r Cyfnod Sylfaen ar
safle Ysgol Abersoch, a CA2 ar safle’r ysgol gyfagos

5 Ffederaleiddio gydag ysgolion cyfagos gan leoli’r Cyfnod Sylfaen
+ Blwyddyn 3 a 4 + Blwyddyn 5 a 6 ar safle 3 ysgol wahanol

6 Cau Ysgol Abersoch a chynnig lle i’r disgyblion mewn ysgol
amgen

7 Lleoli Canolfan Iaith ar safle Ysgol Abersoch

8 (a) Sefydlu Cylch Meithrin yn Ysgol Abersoch

8 (b) Newid ystod oed Ysgol Abersoch o 3-8 oed i 3-9 oed + Sefydlu
Cylch Meithrin Ysgol Abersoch

1 Status Quo – Continue with the current situation

2 (a) Change the age range of Ysgol Abersoch from 3-8 years to 3-11
years

2 (b) Change the age range of Ysgol Abersoch from 3-8 years to 3-9 years

3 Federalise with a nearby school

4 Federalise with a nearby school locating the Foundation Phase on
the site of Ysgol Abersoch, and KS2 on the site of the nearby school

5 Federalise with neighboring schools locating Foundation Phase +
Years 3 and 4 + Years 5 and 6 on 3 different school sites

6 Close Ysgol Abersoch and offer pupils a place at a nearby school

7 Locate a Language Centre on the site of Ysgol Abersoch

8 (a) Establish a Cylch Meithrin at Ysgol Abersoch

8 (b) Change the age range of Ysgol Abersoch from 3-8 years to 3-9 years
and establish a Cylch Meithrin at Ysgol Abersoch

34
Page 139



PRIF HERIAU’R SEFYLLFA BRESENNOL /
MAIN CHALLENGES OF THE CURRENT POSITION

1
Nifer disgyblion yr ysgol ymysg yr isaf yn y sir
The number of pupils at the school is among the lowest in the county

2
Rhagamcanion yn dangos lleihad pellach yn y niferoedd
Projections show further decline in numbers

3
Nifer uchel o lefydd gweigion
High number of surplus places

4 
Maint dosbarthiadau bychain
Small class sizes

5
Amrediad ystod oed eang o fewn dosbarthiadau
Broad age range within classes

6

Cost y disgybl (Medi 2019: £10,200 + Rhagamcan 2020-21 £15,800) – ymysg yr uchaf yn y sir,  4 
gwaith uwch na’r cyfartaledd sirol (£3,884), 3 gwaith uwch na’r cyfartaledd dalgylchol (£4,854).
Cost per pupil (September 2019: £10,200 + Projected 2020-21 £15,800) - amongst the highest in the 
county, 4 times higher than the county average (£3,884) + 3 times higher than the catchment average 
(£4,854)

7
Ysgol yn derbyn swm ychwanegol o £37,853 (Medi 2019) trwy’r polisi gwarchodaeth lleiafswm staffio
School receives an additional £37,853 (September 2019) through the minimum staffing protection

YR OPSIYNAU I’W HYSTYRIED YMHELLACH 
OPTIONS TO BE CONSIDERED FURTHER

1 Status Quo – Parhau hefo’r sefyllfa bresennol*

2 (a) Newid ystod oed Ysgol Abersoch o 3-8 oed i 3-11 oed

2 (b) Newid ystod oed Ysgol Abersoch o 3-8 oed i 3-9 oed

3 Ffederaleiddio gydag ysgol gyfagos

4 Ffederaleiddio gydag ysgol gyfagos gan leoli’r Cyfnod Sylfaen ar
safle Ysgol Abersoch, a CA2 ar safle’r ysgol gyfagos

5 Ffederaleiddio gydag ysgolion cyfagos gan leoli’r Cyfnod Sylfaen
+ Blwyddyn 3 a 4 + Blwyddyn 5 a 6 ar safle 3 ysgol wahanol

6 Cau Ysgol Abersoch a chynnig lle i’r disgyblion mewn ysgol
amgen

7 Lleoli Canolfan Iaith ar safle Ysgol Abersoch

8 (a) Sefydlu Cylch Meithrin yn Ysgol Abersoch

8 (b) Newid ystod oed Ysgol Abersoch o 3-8 oed i 3-9 oed + Sefydlu
Cylch Meithrin Ysgol Abersoch

1 Status Quo – Continue with the current situation*

2 (a) Change the age range of Ysgol Abersoch from 3-8 years to 3-11
years

2 (b) Change the age range of Ysgol Abersoch from 3-8 years to 3-9 years

3 Federalise with a nearby school

4 Federalise with a nearby school locating the Foundation Phase on
the site of Ysgol Abersoch, and KS2 on the site of the nearby school

5 Federalise with neighboring schools locating Foundation Phase +
Years 3 and 4 + Years 5 and 6 on 3 different school sites

6 Close Ysgol Abersoch and offer pupils a place at a nearby school

7 Locate a Language Centre on the site of Ysgol Abersoch

8 (a) Establish a Cylch Meithrin at Ysgol Abersoch

8 (b) Change the age range of Ysgol Abersoch from 3-8 years to 3-9 years
and establish a Cylch Meithrin at Ysgol Abersoch

*Er bod yr achos dros newid wedi ei sefydlu, mae’r opsiwn ‘Gwneud Dim’ wedi ei gynnwys at ddiben cymharu.
*Although the case for change has been established, the 'Do Nothing' option is included for comparison purposes.

35
Page 140



2 (b) Newid ystod oed Ysgol Abersoch o 3-8 oed i 3-9 oed /
2 (b) Change the age range of Ysgol Abersoch from 3-8 years to 3-9 years

Ymateb i’r her/
Responding to the 

challenge
Sylwadau / Comments

1
Nifer disgyblion yr ysgol ymysg yr isaf yn y sir
The number of pupils at the school is among the lowest in the county Ychwanegu 1 blwyddyn ysgol yn annhebygol o 

gael effaith sylweddol ar niferoedd disgyblion, 
rhagamcanion a’r llefydd gweigion /

Adding 1 school year is unlikely to have a 
significant impact on pupil numbers, 

projections and surplus places.

2
Rhagamcanion yn dangos lleihad pellach yn y niferoedd
Projections show further decline in numbers

3
Nifer uchel o lefydd gweigion
High number of surplus places

4 
Maint dosbarthiadau bychain
Small class sizes

Os na fyddai’n arwain at gynnydd yn niferoedd 
disgyblion, byddai maint y dosbarthiadau’n 

parhau’n fychan a gyda ystod oed eang / 
If it does not result in an increase in pupil 

numbers, class sizes would remain small and 
have a broad age range.

5
Amrediad ystod oed eang o fewn dosbarthiadau
Broad age range within classes

6

Cost y disgybl (Medi 2019: £10,200 + Rhagamcan 2020-21 £15,800) – ymysg yr uchaf yn y sir,  4 
gwaith uwch na’r cyfartaledd sirol (£3,884), 3 gwaith uwch na’r cyfartaledd dalgylchol (£4,854).
Cost per pupil (September 2019: £10,200 + Projected 2020-21 £15,800) - amongst the highest in the 
county, 4 times higher than the county average (£3,884) + 3 times higher than the catchment 
average (£4,854)

Ni fyddai’r opsiwn yn welliant ar y sefyllfa 
ariannol bresennol / 

The option would not be an improvement on 
the current financial position

7
Ysgol yn derbyn swm ychwanegol o £37,853 (Medi 2019) trwy’r polisi gwarchodaeth lleiafswm 
staffio
School receives an additional £37,853 (September 2019) through the minimum staffing protection

Sylwadau pellach / Further Comments:
- Torri ar draws darpariaeth CA2 / Interruption KS2 provision
- Ni fyddai ystod oed yr ysgol yn gyson â gweddill ysgolion y sir / Age range of the school would not be consistent with the rest of the county's schools
- Dim newid i amser di-gyswllt y pennaeth / No change to the headteacher's non-contact time

4. Ffederaleiddio gydag ysgol gyfagos gan leoli’r Cyfnod Sylfaen ar safle Ysgol Abersoch, a CA2 ar safle’r ysgol gyfagos
4. Federalise with a nearby school locating the Foundation Phase on the site of Ysgol Abersoch, and KS2 on the site of the nearby school

Ymateb i’r her /
Responding to the 

challenge
Sylwadau / Comments

1
Nifer disgyblion yr ysgol ymysg yr isaf yn y sir
The number of pupils at the school is among the lowest in the county

Byddai’n arwain at gynnydd yn niferoedd disgyblion CS yn Ysgol Abersoch, ond yn 
lleihau niferoedd yr ysgol gyfagos /

It would lead to an increase in FPh pupil numbers at Ysgol Abersoch, but reduce the 
numbers of the neighboring school

2
Rhagamcanion yn dangos lleihad pellach yn y niferoedd
Projections show further decline in numbers

Cynnydd yn rhagamcanion Ysgol Abersoch, ond yn effeithio’n negyddol ar 
ragamcanion yr ysgol gyfagos /

Increased projections at Ysgol Abersoch, but negatively affecting projections for 
neighboring school

3
Nifer uchel o lefydd gweigion
High number of surplus places

Lleihad yn llefydd gweigion Ysgol Abersoch, ond yn cynyddu'r nifer o lefydd gweigion 
yn yr ysgol gyfagos / 

A reduction in the surplus places at Ysgol Abersoch, but increasing the number of 
surplus places at the nearby school

4 
Maint dosbarthiadau bychain
Small class sizes

Dosbarth CS o faint mwy hyfyw/addas – disgyblion yn cael eu haddysgu gyda mwy o 
blant o’r un grŵp oedran / 

More viable / suitable FPh class - pupils being taught with more children of the same 
age group

5
Amrediad ystod oed eang o fewn dosbarthiadau
Broad age range within classes

Amrediad oedran hyd at 4 mlynedd yn y dosbarth CS + dosbarth CA2
Age range up to 4 years in FPh class + KS2 class

6
Cost y disgybl (Medi 2019: £10,200 + Rhagamcan 2020-21 £15,800) – ymysg yr uchaf yn y sir,  4 gwaith uwch 
na’r cyfartaledd sirol (£3,884), 3 gwaith uwch na’r cyfartaledd dalgylchol (£4,854).
Cost per pupil (September 2019: £10,200 + Projected 2020-21 £15,800) - amongst the highest in the county, 4 
times higher than the county average (£3,884) + 3 times higher than the catchment average (£4,854)

Lleihad yng nghost y disgybl, ond yn parhau’n uwch na’r cyfartaledd sirol /  Reduction 
in cost per pupil, but still above the county average

7

Ysgol yn derbyn swm ychwanegol o £37,853 (Medi 2019) trwy’r polisi 
gwarchodaeth lleiafswm staffio
School receives an additional £37,853 (September 2019) through the minimum 
staffing protection

Lleihad yn y swm gwarchodaeth, ond yn parhau yn y rhwyd diogelu. Posib y byddai’r 
ddwy ysgol yn derbyn dyraniad ychwanegol trwy’r polisi gwarchodaeth lleiafswm staffio/ 
Reduction in the protection amount, but still in the minimum staffing protection. 
Possible that both schools would receive additional support through the scheme

Sylwadau Pellach / Further Comments:
- Effaith negyddol ar niferoedd disgyblion yr ysgol gyfagos fyddai’n rhan o’r ffederasiwn / Negative effect on the pupil numbers of the neighboring school that is part of the federation
- Byddai angen dilyn proses statudol i newid ystod oed y ddwy ysgol ac i sefydlu’r ffederasiwn / Follow a statutory process to change the age range of both schools and to establish the federation

36
Page 141



5. Ffederaleiddio gydag ysgolion cyfagos gan leoli’r Cyfnod Sylfaen + Blwyddyn 3 a 4 + Blwyddyn 5 a 6 ar safle 3 ysgol wahanol
5. Federalise with neighboring schools locating Foundation Phase + Years 3 and 4 + Years 5 and 6 on 3 different school sites

Ymateb i’r her /
Responding to 
the challenge

Sylwadau / Comments

1
Nifer disgyblion yr ysgol ymysg yr isaf yn y sir
The number of pupils at the school is among the lowest in 
the county

Byddai’n arwain at gynnydd yn niferoedd disgyblion CS yn Ysgol Abersoch, ond yn lleihau 
niferoedd y 2 ysgol gyfagos / 

It would lead to an increase in pupil numbers at Ysgol Abersoch, but reduce the numbers of the 
2 neighboring schools.

2
Rhagamcanion yn dangos lleihad pellach yn y niferoedd
Projections show further decline in numbers

Cynnydd yn rhagamcanion Ysgol Abersoch, ond yn effeithio ar ragamcanion y 2 ysgol gyfagos / 
Increase in the projections of Ysgol Abersoch, but affecting the projections of the 2 neighboring 

schools

3
Nifer uchel o lefydd gweigion
High number of surplus places

Lleihad yn llefydd gweigion Ysgol Abersoch, ond yn gwaethygu sefyllfa yn y 2 ysgol gyfagos / 
A reduction in the surplus places at Ysgol Abersoch, but worsening the situation in the 2 

neighboring schools

4
Maint dosbarthiadau bychain
Small class sizes

Dosbarth CS, 3 a 4 + 5 a 6 o faint mwy hyfyw/addas – disgyblion yn cael eu haddysgu gyda mwy 
o blant o’r un grŵp oedran / More viable / suitable FPh, 3 and 4 + 5 & 6 class - pupils being 

taught with more children of the same age group

5 Amrediad ystod oed eang o fewn dosbarthiadau
Broad age range within classes

Amrediad ystod oed hyd a 2 flynedd o fewn dosbarthiadau / Age range up to 2 years within 
classes

6

Cost y disgybl (Medi 2019: £10,200 + Rhagamcan 2020-21 £15,800) – ymysg yr uchaf yn y sir,  4 
gwaith uwch na’r cyfartaledd sirol (£3,884), 3 gwaith uwch na’r cyfartaledd dalgylchol
(£4,854).
Cost per pupil (September 2019: £10,200 + Projected 2020-21 £15,800) - amongst the highest 
in the county, 4 times higher than the county average (£3,884) + 3 times higher than the 
catchment average (£4,854)

Lleihad yng nghost y disgybl, ond yn parhau’n uwch na’r cyfartaledd sirol. Cynyddu cost y 
disgybl yn y 2 ysgol gyfagos /

Reduction in cost per pupil, but still above the county average. Increase the cost per pupil in 
the 2 neighboring schools

7

Ysgol yn derbyn swm ychwanegol o £37,853 (Medi 2019) trwy’r polisi 
gwarchodaeth lleiafswm staffio
School receives an additional £37,853 (September 2019) through the 
minimum staffing protection

Lleihad yn y swm gwarchodaeth, ond yn parhau yn y rhwyd diogelu. Posib y byddai’r 3 ysgol 
yn derbyn cefnogaeth ychwanegol trwy’r polisi gwarchodaeth lleiafswm staffio/ 

Reduction in the protection amount, but still in the minimum staffing protection. Possible that 
both schools would receive additional support through the scheme

Sylwadau Pellach / Further Comments:
- Effaith negyddol ar niferoedd disgyblion y 2 ysgol gyfagos fyddai’n rhan o’r ffederasiwn / Negative effect on the pupil numbers of the 2 neighboring schools who are part of the federation
- Byddai angen dilyn proses statudol i newid ystod oed 3 ysgol ac i sefydlu’r ffederasiwn / Follow a statutory process to change the age range of 3 schools and to establish the federation
- Nid yw’n bosib ffederaleiddio gyda ysgolion sydd â statws gwahanol / It is not possible to federate with schools of different status

7. Lleoli Canolfan Iaith ar safle Ysgol Abersoch
7. Locate a Language Centre on the site of Ysgol Abersoch

Ymateb i’r her /
Responding to 
the challenge

Sylwadau / Comments

1 Nifer disgyblion yr ysgol ymysg yr isaf yn y sir
The number of pupils at the school is among the lowest in the county Nid yw lleoli darpariaeth canolfan iaith ar safle ysgol fel arfer yn 

effeithio ar niferoedd disgyblion / 
Locating a language centre provision on a school site does not usually 

affect pupil numbers

2 Rhagamcanion yn dangos lleihad pellach yn y niferoedd
Projections show further decline in numbers

3 Nifer uchel o lefydd gweigion
High number of surplus places

4 
Maint dosbarthiadau bychain
Small class sizes Gan na fyddai’n arwain at gynnydd yn niferoedd disgyblion, byddai 

maint y dosbarthiadau’n parhau’n fychan a gydag ystod oed eang. / 
As it would not lead to an increase in pupil numbers, class sizes would 

remain small and with a broad age range. 5 Amrediad ystod oed eang o fewn dosbarthiadau
Broad age range within classes

6
Cost y disgybl (Medi 2019: £10,200 + Rhagamcan 2020-21 £15,800) – ymysg yr uchaf yn y sir,  4 gwaith uwch 
na’r cyfartaledd sirol (£3,884), 3 gwaith uwch na’r cyfartaledd dalgylchol (£4,854).
Cost per pupil (September 2019: £10,200 + Projected 2020-21 £15,800) - amongst the highest in the county, 4 
times higher than the county average (£3,884) + 3 times higher than the catchment average (£4,854) Ni fyddai’r opsiwn yn welliant ar y sefyllfa ariannol bresennol / 

The option would not be an improvement on the current financial 
position

7

Ysgol yn derbyn swm ychwanegol o £37,853 (Medi 2019) trwy’r polisi gwarchodaeth 
lleiafswm staffio
School receives an additional £37,853 (September 2019) through the minimum staffing
protection

Sylwadau Pellach / Further Comments:
- Dim newid i amser di-gyswllt y pennaeth / No change to the headteacher's non-contact time
- Dim newid i niferoedd disgyblion yr ysgol / No change in pupil numbers at the school
- Ni fyddai’r opsiwn yn denu incwm i’r ysgol / This option would not attract income to the school

37
Page 142



YR OPSIYNAU I’W HYSTYRIED YMHELLACH 
OPTIONS TO BE CONSIDERED FURTHER

1
Status Quo – Parhau hefo’r sefyllfa bresennol*
Status Quo – Continue with the current situation*

2 (a)
Newid ystod oed Ysgol Abersoch o 3-8 oed i 3-11 oed
Change the age range of Ysgol Abersoch from 3-8 years to 3-11 years

3
Ffederaleiddio gydag ysgol gyfagos
Federalise with a nearby school

6
Cau Ysgol Abersoch a chynnig lle i’r disgyblion mewn ysgol amgen
Close Ysgol Abersoch and offer pupils a place at a nearby school

*Er bod yr achos dros newid wedi ei sefydlu, mae’r opsiwn ‘Gwneud Dim’ wedi ei gynnwys at ddiben cymharu.
*Although the case for change has been established, the 'Do Nothing' option is included for comparison purposes.

FFEDERALEIDDIO FFURFIOL
FORMAL FEDERATION

• Proses statudol
• Rhwng 2 a 6 o ysgolion
• Un corff llywodraethu
• 1-2 riant llywodraethwyr o bob ysgol
• Ysgolion yn cadw eu hunaniaeth (gwisg 

ysgol, enw, ethos), os yn dymuno
• Cyllidebau yn parhau ar wahân
• Cyfleon i rannu adnoddau, pontio 

disgyblion a mwy
• Opsiwn i gyflogi staff ar draws y 

ffederasiwn

• Statutory Process
• Between 2 and 6 schools
• One governing body
• 1-2 parent governors from each school
• Schools retain their identity (school 

uniform, name, ethos), if desired. 
• Budgets remain separate
• Opportunities to share resources, transition 

pupils and more
• Option to employ staff across the 

federation. 

38
Page 143



GWERTHUSIAD OPSIYNAU / OPTIONS APPRAISAL

Allwedd 
Glas– Manteision
Coch – Anfanteision 
Du – Ffeithiau / Sylwadau

Key:
Blue –Advantages
Red –Disadvantages
Black – Facts / Comments

CAMAU NESAF / NEXT STEPS 

Camau / Steps
Amserlen Amlinellol / 

Outline Timetable

Dyddiad cau ar gyfer derbyn unrhyw gywiriadau ar y gwerthusiad opsiynau
Deadline for receiving comments on the options appraisal

13.01.2020

Cynnal Asesiadau Effaith (Ieithyddol, Cymunedol, Cydraddoldeb + Asesiad yn erbyn y
Ddeddf Llesiant)
Undertake Impact Assessments (Language, Community, Equality + Assessment
against the Wellbeing Act)

Ionawr 2020  
January 2020

Dyddiad cyhoeddi dogfennau Cabinet
Publishing date for the Cabinet papers

10.02.2020

Cyfarfod Cabinet Cyngor Gwynedd
Gwynedd Council Cabinet Meeting

18.02.2020

39
Page 144



  

 

www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru 

 

Meeting: Ysgol Abersoch Review Date:  06/01/2020       6:00pm 
Location:  Abersoch Village Hall  

 

Present: Officers: 
Garem Jackson (GJ); Gwern ap Rhisiart (GapRh); Cyng. Cemlyn Williams (CW); Gwenno Haf 
Evans (GHE); Rhian Hughes (RH); 
 
On behalf of the Governors, Staff and Parents of Ysgol Abersoch:  
Linda Jones; Llinos Haf Owen; Gwenlli Williams; Annwen Parry Hughes; Owen Hefin Roberts; 
Margot Jones; Anna E. Jones; Eifiona Wood; Einir Wyn; Mikee Marinas; Louise Overfield; Dylan 
Evans; Sue Frisby; Tamsyn Armshaw; Dawn Marie Jones; Cllr. Dewi Roberts. 
 

 

Executive Summary  

Item 
No. 

Item No. Action Responsibility 
Completed 

by 
2 Options 

Appraisal 
Education department to forward a sample language 
and community impact assessment by email to relevant 
stakeholders. 

Education Dep.   January 
2020.   

 2 Options 
Appraisal 

Include in the Cabinet report a comparison of the cost 
per head of Ysgol Abersoch with the schools in the 
catchment area of Ysgol Abersoch. 

Education Dep.   February 10, 
2020 

 

Item 
No. 

Item / Subject Actions 

1.  
Welcome / The 

Process  

 Garem Jackson, Head of Education welcomed everyone to the third meeting.  

 The process to date and the next steps were explained, as well as an overview of the 
list of options. 

 It was noted that the Education Department had identified 3 options (in addition to 
the status quo) to consider further following an evaluation of all options. 

 It was explained that the next steps are to undertake further research on the options 
and carry out impact assessments. 

 It was noted that the Education Department will report back to the Cabinet on 18 
February 2020. 

2.  
Options 

Appraisal  

 It was explained, in order to analyse the options further, the options had been 
evaluated against the factors of the Excellent Primary Education for Children in 
Gwynedd Strategy. It was explained that 2 factors had already been disregarded, 
namely (i) Learning Environment - as this situation does not include a proposal for a 
new building, and (ii) Exceptional Situation – as the fragile pupil numbers at the school 
is the reason for holding the local meetings. 

 It was noted that during previous discussions, the Review Panel discussed 10 possible 
options.  

 It was explained that as the establishing of a Cylch Meithrin at the school is now 
underway, the original option had been incorporated into the status quo. It was noted 
that the option had been included separately in the Options Appraisal, but had been 
coloured grey as it was now being considered as part of the status quo. It was noted 
that the developments regarding the Cylch Meithrin would receive specific attention in 
the Cabinet report. 

 The following options were presented as the options for further consideration: 

Ysgol Abersoch Review Meeting 

 

 

40
Page 145



  

o Status Quo – Continue with the current situation 
o Change the age range of Ysgol Abersoch from 3-8 years to 3-11 years 
o Federalise with a neighbouring school 
o Close Ysgol Abersoch and offer pupils a place at an alternative school  

 Following conducting background work in assessing the options, it was confirmed that 
the following options had been ruled out as the Education Department did not believe 
that they would add significant value to the current situation: 

o Change the age range of Ysgol Abersoch from 3-8 years to 3-9 years 
o Federalise with a nearby school locating the Foundation Phase on the site of 

Ysgol Abersoch, and KS2 on the site of the nearby school 
o Federalise with neighbouring schools locating Foundation Phase + Years 3 

and 4 + Years 5 and 6 on 3 different school sites 
o Locate a Language Centre on the site of Ysgol Abersoch 
o Establish a Cylch Meithrin at Ysgol Abersoch (Cylch in the process of being 

established and will be operational from February 2020) 
o Change the age range of Ysgol Abersoch from 3-8 years to 3-9 years and 

establish a Cylch Meithrin at Ysgol Abersoch (Cylch in the process of being 
established and will be operational from February 2020)  

 It was noted that a hard copy of the options appraisal would be shared at the end 
of the meeting and the panel members were asked to submit comments on the 
accuracy of the document by January 13, 2020.  

 The general steps of a federalisation process were explained. 

 It was explained that it is not possible to federate school with different legal status. 

 It was confirmed that minutes from the three Ysgol Abersoch review meetings will be 
included as an appendix to the Cabinet report. 

 It was noted that a meeting will be held with the Headteacher and Chair of the 
Governing Body before 10/2 to present a draft Cabinet report. 

 
Impact Assessments 

 Governors asked what guidelines must the Education Department follow when 
undertaking the impact assessments. It was explained that there is a template to 
follow that is in accordance with the School Organisation Code 2018. 

 Action: Education Department to forward an example of the Language Impact 
Assessment with the stakeholders for them to see an example. 

 It was confirmed that the report and assessments will be published on 10/02/20. 

 Following an inquiry by the Governors / parents, the Head of Education noted that 
the ‘Welsh Language Charter’ certificates would be shared with the schools as soon 
as possible. 

 It was noted that the ‘Welsh Language Charter’ would be part of the assessment but 
is not a statutory element. 

 
Status Quo (including the Cylch Meithrin)  

 The Governing Body did not agree with the decision of the Education Department to 
incorporate the option to establish a Cylch Meithrin within the status quo. A request 
was made to include two status quo options in the Options Appraisal, one to clarify 
the position in September 2019, and an additional one to report on the current 
situation. 

 It was explained that the status quo option must reflect the latest situation with the 
school, and the developments regarding the Cylch Meithrin will be included as part 
of the status quo option. 

 It was confirmed that the Cylch Meithrin will receive specific attention in the Cabinet 

41
Page 146



  

report noting the possible impact it may have on pupil numbers. 

 The Local Elected Member asked if it was possible to delay the discussions and allow 
a guarantee for the school to see the positive impact of establishing the Cylch 
Meithrin on the school. 

 It was explained that no guarantee could be given and that the Education 
Department had previously received legal advice from the Monitoring Officer on a 
similar matter.  

 It was noted that discussions will be held with the Headteacher of Ysgol Abersoch to 
check the most recent pupil numbers. 

 It was agreed that it would be possible to include in the report how the situation was 
in September 2019 in comparison to the current situation ‘status quo’ – including the 
‘Cylch Meithrin’.  

 
Federalisation 

 The main aspects and the process of federalisation were explained further. It was 
explained that Ysgol Sarn Bach or Ysgol Llanbedrog would be the two local schools 
that could be considered for federation, as Ysgol Foel Gron is a school with a religious 
status. 

 There was a discussion regarding the capacity of the neighbouring schools and it was 
explained that Ysgol Llanbedrog was almost full. 

 It was explained that the School Admissions Code 2013 gives parents the right to 
apply to any school. 

 The question was raised if there had been discussions with neighbouring schools. It 
was explained that there had been no formal discussion with neighbouring schools. It 
was noted that there had been an informal discussion with the Headteacher of Ysgol 
Sarn Bach. A formal meeting will be held during January with the Headteacher and 
Chair of the Governing Body. It was emphasised that it would not be fair to express 
the initial feeling of the Headteacher of Ysgol Sarn Bach on the matter. 

 The cost per pupil of Ysgol Abersoch was discussed and it was explained that it was 
amongst the highest in the county, 4 times higher than the county average and 3 
times higher than the catchment area average. 
It was agreed to include in the Cabinet report a comparison of the cost per head of 
Ysgol Abersoch with the schools in the catchment area of Ysgol Abersoch (schools 
which are within Ysgol Abersoch comparison family). 

 
Further Discussion 

 It was explained that additional work would be undertaken on the options that are 
being considered further. It was noted that a high level analysis has been undertaken 
on the options at present. 

 It was confirmed that the Welsh Government decides which schools are categorised 
as rural. 

 The Head of Education added that the Authority have decided to follow the same 
process for Ysgol Abersoch as it would have with a small and rural school. 

 The Governors stated that they were not satisfied with the Education Department 
decision to rule out their preferred option of 'Change the age range of Ysgol 
Abersoch from 3-8 years to 3-9 years and open Cylch Meithrin a Ti a Fi at Ysgol 
Abersoch’. It was explained that the main reason for disregarding the option was that 
changing the age range to 3-9 years was unlikely to lead to a significant increase in 
pupil numbers. It was emphasised again that the impact of the Cylch Meithrin will be 
considered as part of the status quo. 

 It was added that the Governors' preferred option would be noted in the report. 

42
Page 147



  

 The Governing Body general feeling was that the process is being rushed. 

 The question was raised if it is appropriate for the local committee to appoint staff to 
work at the Cylch Meithrin. 

 It was noted that the Local Member will have the opportunity to make 
representations on behalf of the local community during the Cabinet meeting. 

 It was explained that should the Cabinet decide to carry out a statutory consultation 
on a specific proposal, the community will have the opportunity to make formal 
representations during that process. 

 The processes involved with the following options were explained: 
o Status Quo (including the Cylch Meithrin) – no statutory process   
o Change the age range of Ysgol Abersoch from 3-8 years to 3-11 years –

statutory process 
o Federalisation with a neighbouring school – statutory process 
o Close Ysgol Abersoch and offer pupils a place at an alternative school – 

statutory process 

3.  Next Steps  

 Undertake impact assessments on the options before reporting back to the Cabinet 
with a recommendation on the way forward. 

 It was confirmed that all documentation will be published on the Council's website 
on 10 February 2020. 

4.  Close 
 The meeting came to a close and all were thanked for their input during the 

meetings. 

 

43
Page 148



Below is a summary of the comments received following the 3 local meetings  

Correspondence received following meeting 1 (7 October 2019) 

1 
E-mail stating that children have a high Maths ability due to the teacher to pupil ratio at Ysgol 
Abersoch. 

2 
E-mail presenting comments and questions following the first meeting, mainly about the 
timetable, projections of pupil numbers, the Well-being Act 2015 and the Council's Vacant 
Seats Scheme. 

3 
E-mail expressing concern over the tight timetable, as it will not allow sufficient time to receive 
feedback from the Housing Associations. 

4 

E-mail requesting to postpone the schedule of meetings, and request to hold a public meeting 
in order to receive the view of the community on the situation. Further request for information 
on the Welsh Language Impact Assessment process. It was also noted that the school had 
received confirmation that two new pupils will be visiting the school soon. 

5 

Formal response of the Governing Body to the meeting on 7 October 2019. The following was 
noted: 

 That a committee had been established to open Cylch Meithrin and Ti a Fi in the school 

 That they are awaiting a reply from Cadw regarding the history of the building 

 Request for examples of federated schools 

 Inviting any Cabinet Member to visit Ysgol Abersoch  
 

Correspondence received following meeting 2 (13 November 2019) 

6 
Correspondence from the Governing Body, containing a letter and further comments on the 
SWOT analysis of the options. 

Correspondence received following meeting 3 (6 January 2020) 

7 
E-mail from the Governing Body containing a letter, comments on the accuracy of the Options 
Appraisal and a copy of Ysgol Abersoch's Hunaniaith action plan. 

8 E-mail from the Local Elected Member regarding the local meeting held on 6 January 2020.  

9 
Further email from the Governing Body regarding the process of reviewing the situation at 
Ysgol Abersoch.  

 

 

**Please note that all correspondence received following the local meetings has been shared in 

full with Cabinet Members. 

44
Page 149



Comments from the Local Member (translated version):  
 
“I have received the final report regarding Ysgol Abersoch at 18.16 on Friday 4th September 2020 with 
a request to respond by 10.00 am on Monday 6th September 2020. 
Asking me to respond in a short time has been a constant and unfair pattern during these discussions. 
I thank the department for delaying the process somewhat due to the sad circumstances of the head 
teacher. 
The Chair of the Governing Body has responded to the report and I do not wish to reiterate the most 
accurate and fair points of this response, but I fully agree on the facts and sentiments published in the 
response. 
Over the weekend I have spoken to one parent at the school who is distraught regarding the decision 
and recommendation of the department and I await this parent's response to the report. 
It is important to get everyone's views on the matter including the Staff, Parents, Governors and 
children. This is not set out in the report which asks for the process to be started by the education 
department. 
The report makes no reference to the school's success at all or the hard work of the head teacher and 
staff over recent years. 
The report does not really present the developments such as the Mudiad Meithrin and Ti a Fi and the 
positive impact to the school in the future, or the negative effect it will have on the language, 
community and culture of the village. 
I do not feel that the report is detailed enough and is therefore misleading. 
I think that continuing with the process under these special circumstances of the COVID Pandemic is 
totally unfair because of the barriers in place regarding meetings and communicating at this time. 
I will be presenting my reasons in full at the Cabinet Meeting.” 
 

Page 150



 
THE CABINET, TUESDAY, 13 OCTOBER 2020  

 

 
Present -  
Councillors: Dyfrig Siencyn, Dafydd Meurig, Craig ab Iago, Nia Jeffreys, Gareth Griffith, Dilwyn 
Morgan, Ioan Thomas, Gareth Thomas, Catrin Wager and Cemlyn Williams. 
 

Also present- 
Dilwyn Williams (Chief Executive), Morwena Edwards (Corporate Director), Iwan Evans (Head of 
Legal Services), Dafydd Edwards (Head of Finance Department) and Annes Siôn (Democracy 
Team Leader). 
 
Item 6: Garem Jackson (Head of Education Department) and Gwern ap Rhisiart 
(Dwyfor/Meirionnydd Area Education Officer). 
Item 7: Gareth Jones (Assistant Head of Environment Department),  
Item 9: Aled Davies (Head of Adults, Health and Well-being Department) and Meilys Smith 
(Leader of Community Transformation Health and Care Team Programme)  
Item 10, 11, 12 and 13: Ffion Madog Evans (Senior Finance Manager) 
Item 15:  Sion Huws (Senior Solicitor)  

 
1.  APOLOGIES 

 
 The Cabinet Members and Officers were welcomed to the meeting.  

No apologies were received.  
 

 
2.  DECLARATION OF PERSONAL INTEREST 

 
 No declarations of personal interest were received.  

 
 
3.  URGENT ITEMS 

 
 There were no urgent items. 

 
 
4.  MATTERS ARISING FROM OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY 

 
 There were no matters arising from overview and scrutiny. 

 
 

5.     MINUTES 

 
The Chair accepted the minutes of the meetings held on 8 and 15 September 2020 
as a true record. 

 
 
6.  NEW SCHOOL IN CRICIETH 

 

Page 151

Agenda Item 5



 Submitted by Cllr. Cemlyn Williams     
 

DECISION 
 
Permission was granted to conduct a statutory consultation, in accordance with 
the requirements of section 48 of the School Standards and Organisation (Wales) 
Act 2013, on the proposal to increase the capacity of Ysgol Treferthyr to 150 and 
to relocate the school to an alternative site, referred to as the A497 site, on 1 
September 2023, reporting back to the Cabinet following the completion of the 
consultation. 
 
DISCUSSION 

 
The report was submitted and it was noted that the Council's Strategic Plan 
highlighted the need for Gwynedd pupils to receive education of the highest 
standard and within the best possible locations. It was highlighted that the Ysgol 
Treferthyr building was now unsuitable and it would be uneconomic to remain in 
the same building. Consequently, it was added that the decision required the 
school to be relocated to an alternative site.   
 
The Head of Department noted that it was exciting to present the 
recommendation to invest in Cricieth and that the Council, through this scheme, 
would benefit from Band B funding from the 21st Century Schools Programme.   
 
The background of the report was received from the Education Officer for Dwyfor 
and Meirionnydd who drew attention to the matter that Ysgol Llanystumdwy had 
by now withdrawn from the discussions. It was stated that a discussion had taken 
place regarding a suitable location for the school and attention was drawn to the 
favoured site. It was highlighted that it was necessary to increase the school's 
capacity to 150 and this was following lessons learnt in opening new schools, 
namely that the number of children tended to increase in the first years of a new 
school.    
 
In terms of the budget, it was noted that the original application was for £4.97m; 
however, it was anticipated that the application would increase to £5.4m as there 
was a need for additional space for the ABC and Language Disorder Unit that will 
increase the project budget.    
 
Observations arising from the discussion 

 The report was welcomed and it was noted that the plan was exciting and 
was positive news for the future.   

 Some of the challenges in terms of the location for wildlife were 
highlighted and the need to operate to retain wildlife there was 
emphasised. In addition, the low number of children living within the new 
school area was emphasised and an enquiry was made as to how the 
children would travel to school. It was stated that the department would 
commission further work to look into alternative routes to school. 

 In terms of the former site, it was asked whether it would be offered to the 
community. It was stated that they would seek to see if the Council had 
use for the land prior to offering it to the community.   

  

Page 152



 
7.  VOLUNTARY CODE FOR THE CONTROL OF TO LET SIGNS IN BANGOR  

 
 The report was presented by Cllr. Gareth Griffith.   

 
DECISION 
 
The information in the report was accepted confirming the outcome of the 
monitoring work and the success of the Voluntary Code for the management of 
to let signs in Bangor, adopted by the Cabinet on 16 October 2018. 
 
DISCUSSION 
 
The report was submitted, noting that it was difficult to believe that two years had 
elapsed since issuing the Voluntary Code in areas of Bangor. It was expressed 
that the report followed a monitoring period. It was stated that the scheme had 
been a success and the department was continuing to respond to some 
companies.  
 
Observations arising from the discussion 

 The department was thanked for its work and Bangor companies were 
thanked for acting in accordance with the Voluntary Code. In the long 
term, with new companies being created, an enquiry was made as to how 
the department responded to these companies. It was noted that usually 
once the department became aware of the new company, they raised 
awareness of the code and worked with these companies.    

 The companies were thanked for being so willing to cooperate and it was 
stressed that this demonstrated what can happen if a dialogue is 
maintained with companies.   

 
 
 
8. COVID-19 - PREPARATIONS FOR A SECOND WAVE 

 
The report was submitted by Dilwyn Williams  

 

DECISION  

To accept the update on the arrangements that are in place in preparation for a 
possible second wave of Covid-19.  
 

DISCUSSION 

The report was submitted noting that the Covid situation was one that changed 
quickly. It was noted that the report had dated since it was written, nearly a fortnight 
ago, and the number of cases in Gwynedd over the last week had risen to 114.   

It was noted that the purpose of the report was to illustrate what the Council has and 
will do in preparation for the second wave. It was highlighted that the Government had 

Page 153



created the worst reasonable scenario that was the planning grounds for the worst 
that could happen.   

In terms of Gwynedd arrangements, it was stated that the departments had noted that 
the lessons learnt during the first wave had now been incorporated into the work of 
the departments. It was stated that staff continued to work from home and this 
reduced the risk within the Council. It was highlighted that there had been fewer 
issues with personal protective equipment as the Council had a sufficient supply. It 
was emphasised that one concern was the potential for the virus to spread and to 
take hold that could cause more demand on services with staff off work ill. It was 
noted that the Adults' Department had created a service continuity plan that would be 
discussed in the next report. It was added that there were arrangements to recover 
the Covid Team if the need arose.    

It was noted that the Test, Trace and Protect Team had been extremely active but the 
numbers had been low over August. It was added that the numbers were gradually 
increasing. In terms of the Surveillance and Prevention Group, they now met nearly 
every day to keep an eye on the situation. It was added that this Group was a 
combination of the Council and partners such as the University that discuss specific 
areas. It was noted that this group was central to the discussion with Welsh 
Government regarding Bangor cases as well as the decision to create a new Health 
Protection Area following the high number of cases.    

Observations arising from the discussion 

  Local concerns were expressed about the regulations in Bangor in terms of 
green areas for residents to gain access to them; in addition it was asked 
whether the Trace and Protect system was the same for students. It was 
stated that the numbers had increased as a result of a high number of 
students with the virus and it was added that the Council was working 
closely with the University; also, the Test, Trace and Protect system was 
the same for students and residents.   

 A need was expressed to bring pressure to bear on the Welsh Government 
to give financial support to Bangor businesses. In addition, it was stressed 
that there was a need for everyone to adhere to the regulations for a 
quicker return to the new normal.   

 It was noted that preparations for winter were difficult as staff had been 
working hard over the last few months. It was added that the period had 
highlighted that staff were willing to go the extra mile. Staff were thanked for 
all their work. It was added that the period had highlighted the importance 
and value of local government.   

 Concerns were raised about the well-being of staff if they continued to work 
for a long period of time. 
 

9.     ADULT CARE SERVICES WORKFORCE PLAN 
 

The report was presented by Cllr. Dafydd Meurig  
 
DECISION  

 To approve the allocation of up to £375,000 of a one-off resource (analysed 
in the table in section 4 of the report) to the Adults Department 2020/21 
budget, together with a further one-off resource of £390,000 to the 2021/22 

Page 154



budget, with the exact sum of the allocations to be reviewed at the end of 
the relevant two financial years.  

 To support the proposal to spend the above additional budget on the cost of 
employing the workforce beyond the normal staffing budget levels, in 
response to the inevitable increase in demand for a social care service to 
safeguard the people of Gwynedd and to fill staffing gaps that appeared as 
a result of Covid19.  
 

DISCUSSION 
 
The report was submitted, noting that the application was for one-off funding of 
£375,000 for 2020/21 and £390,000 for 2021/22. It was stated that the previous 
report had given the background to the need for funding and everyone was aware 
of the significant challenges facing the Adults' Department. It was noted that the 
report was an attempt to look at the worst possible scenario. It was added that 
there was a need to look at this before winter as the situation would interfere with 
staff well-being with staff not having an opportunity to take leave, members of staff 
being taken ill and an increase in demand.    

The Leader of Community Transformation Health and Care Team Programme 
added that the department had prepared a Workforce Plan which was a piece of 
work that looked at areas such as what had happened, staff sickness levels and 
the demand for a service. It was noted that this piece of work had used the best 
possible national work model to try and predict covid numbers and give an idea to 
see what might hit the department during the second wave. It was highlighted that 
the department had coped incredibly and staff were willing to go the extra mile and 
a pool of temporary workforce had been established. It was further noted that the 
department was in a rather different place with staff now getting tired and had not 
had an opportunity to take leave and was looking to re-open some services. In 
addition, it was added that there were signs of an increase in demand as people 
were discharged home from hospital with the effects of Covid.   

It was stated that the department had predicted how many staff could be off work 
ill and the department had planned reasonably on the basis of absences between 
1 and 2%. This meant that approximately £60,000 needed to be identified in order 
to backfill absences due to sickness. It was noted, as staff had not been taking 
leave, that the amount of leave not taken was equivalent to 18 persons working for 
20 hours a week until the end of the financial year. Therefore, £135,000 funding 
would need to be identified in order to backfill for staff to take their leave.   

In addition to this, it was noted that there had been an increase in demand and the 
Council had a specific plan to respond to this by opening additional beds and care 
centres at Glan Llyn and Plas Menai. It was noted that in order to maintain 
services for a high number of people the equivalent of 30 additional members of 
staff would be required and this would be a cost of £120,000 this year and 
£390,000 in 2021/22. The need to recruit staff without delay was emphasised to 
ensure that staff were sufficiently trained.   

 
Observations arising from the discussion 

 It was stated that assessments suggested that at worst we may need over 
300 additional staff for six weeks. Accepting that it was not practical to 

Page 155



deliver this, the solution would entail a combination of appointing a little 
more staff and then staff temporarily transferred and to divert staff from 
other council departments. 

 Support for the application was highlighted and that the department was 
preparing as best it could.   

 It was noted that the Finance Department was trying to maximise the sum 
that the Council claimed from the Government. It was explained that the 
Council would continue to spend as required in order to save lives and 
protect the health of Gwynedd residents, but the flexibility to claim had been 
reduced following the first quarter of the 2020/21 financial year, and there 
was no certainty of any additional funding by 2021/22. However, it was 
confirmed that every effort would be made to claim funding, with a need for 
Care officers, as well as the Council's Finance officers, to convince relevant 
civil servants in the context of funding this proactive Adult Care Services 
Workforce Plan.  

 
 

10.  SAVINGS OVERVIEW: PROGRESS REPORT ON REALISING SAVINGS  
SCHEMES 

 
The report was presented by Cllr. Ioan Thomas   

DECISION  

 The information in the report was accepted and the progress towards 
realising the savings schemes for 2020/21, 2019/20 and previous years 
was noted.  

 The alternative plans outlined in Section 6 and Appendix 5 to replace the 
historic schemes that could not be delivered were approved.  

 It was noted that the impact of Covid-19 had contributed to a slippage in the 
savings programme, as the Council had given the utmost priority to 
safeguarding the health and lives of the people of Gwynedd in response to 
the crisis, which meant that it was not possible to continue with the 
performance challenging and savings arrangements during the crisis 
period.  

 The intention of the Chief Executive and Head of Finance Department to 
meet with each Cabinet Member and their Heads of Department to discuss 
how it would be possible to re-grasp the procedure of delivering the 
proposed savings, so that the Council was able to proceed with a proportion 
of the savings programme, despite the crisis, was supported. 
 

DISCUSSION 
 
The report, which summarised the situation with the Council's savings was 
submitted. It was stated that since 2015/16, the Council had approved £36m of 
savings. It was noted this year that departments had focused on responding to the 
crisis and the impact of Covid-19 had contributed to the slippage in the savings 
programme.  In addition, it was noted that priority had been given to safeguarding 
the health and lives of the people of Gwynedd that meant that it was not possible 
to continue with the performance challenging and savings arrangements over this 
period.    
 

Page 156



It was stated that realising savings was getting difficult, with further indications of 
difficulties to realise savings in certain fields. Attention was drawn to appendix 1, 
indicating that 98% of further savings in 2015/16 to 2018/19 had been achieved.  
The schemes with the highest risk were highlighted, including 'End to End' by the 
Children and Supporting Families Department.  
 
It was noted that 76% of savings in 2019/20 had by now been achieved and the 
main delivery risks on schemes within the Adults Department, Environment 
together with the Children's Department. Looking at this year, it was stated that 
16% had already been realised, and 34% were on track to be realised on time by 
the end of the financial year. It was emphasised that some schemes by the 
Highways and Municipal Department and the Housing and Property Department 
acknowledged that it was not possible for some schemes to be realised and 
alternative schemes are proposed.  
 
It was stated that realising over £30m of savings since April 2015 had been 
challenging. It was added that the department had already anticipated a problem 
with achieving savings, a corporate provision was provided for the purpose in the 
2020/21 budget, to mitigate the situation. It was stated that there was now a need 
to re-grasp the procedure of delivering savings, despite the crisis.  
 
Observations arising from the discussion 

 It was expressed that it was not a shock to anyone that the adults' 
department had not achieved savings this year. It was stated that the signs 
of cuts over ten years could now be clearly seen.  

  It was noted that alternative schemes were to be seen to savings of the 
Highways and Municipal Department, but the department was assessing 
the way forward.  It was stated that the saving was one thing; however, the 
sum would be different.   

 It was stated that it was difficult to believe that cuts were being made in the 
middle of a pandemic. The importance of protecting services and the public 
was stated. It was stressed, with the second wave on the way that this 
would not be the end of the savings and it was asked when this would stop.   

 It was highlighted that the past six months had shown the importance of 
having Council staff stepping in to fill the gaps and it was necessary to 
stabilise the situation further, not to make more savings.  

 
11.     REVENUE BUDGET 2020/21 - END OF AUGUST 2020 REVIEW 
 

The report was presented by Cllr Ioan Thomas   
 
DECISION  

 The report on the end of August 2020 review of the Revenue Budget was 
accepted, and consideration was given the latest financial situation 
regarding the budgets of each department/service. 

 The financial impact of Covid-19 was noted, which was a combination of 
additional costs, income losses and slippage in the savings programme, as 
the Council had given the utmost priority to safeguarding the health and 
lives of the people of Gwynedd in response to the crisis, which meant that it 
was not possible to continue with the performance challenging and savings 
arrangements during the crisis period.  

Page 157



 The intention of the Chief Executive and Head of Finance Department to 
meet with each Cabinet Member and their Heads of Department, to discuss 
how it would be possible to re-grasp the procedure of delivering the 
proposed savings, so that the Council could proceed with a proportion of 
the savings programme, despite the crisis, was supported.  

 It was noted that there was significant overspend by the Adults, Health and 
Well-being Department this year, as complex details need to be clarified in 
Adult care; the Chief Executive had already commissioned work to obtain a 
better understanding of the matters and a clear response programme.  

 It was noted that the Chief Executive had commissioned the Children's 
Budget Taskforce to address serious financial matters within the Children 
and Families Department to get to the root of the Department's overspend, 
with the intention of submitting a report to the Cabinet detailing the 
response plan.  

 The following recommendations and financial virements (as outlined in 
Appendix 2) were approved.   

o On Corporate budgets, that:  

 (£250k) relating to capital costs had been transferred to the capital 
programme fund.  

 the net underspend of (£1,127k) on Corporate budgets would go 
towards the Council's general balances to assist in facing the 
financial challenge ahead of the Council, especially in light of the 
Covid-19 emergency.  

 That grant receipts from the Government to compensate for additional 
expenditure and loss of income in relation to the Covid-19 crisis would be 
allocated to the relevant departments in accordance with what is noted in 
Appendix 1. 

 
 

DISCUSSION 
The report was submitted, noting that it highlighted the latest review of the 
Council's revenue budget, along with the projections for the end of the financial 
year. It was stated that the figures in the end of August review highlighted the 
financial impact of Covid-19 on the figures, that were a combination of additional 
costs, income losses and a slippage in the savings programme.  
 
It was noted that the Welsh Government had established a hardship fund to 
compensate for costs and loss of income of Local Authorities. In Gwynedd, 
monthly applications of over £4.5 million had been submitted to Welsh 
Government to compensate the Council for the period up to the end of August, 
with £3.6 million having already been received. In terms of the loss of income, an 
application for the first quarter of the financial year was nearly £3.7 million, with 
£3.3 million having already been received.  
 
It was stressed that the pressure on departments had been evident this year and 
problems with realising savings had become increasingly prominent this year and 
contributed to the overspend reported in the Children, Adults and Highways and 
Municipal fields. The main matters in some of the sections were highlighted as the 
impact of Covid19 had had a significant repercussion on the Adults, Health and 
Well-being department this year, with £2.2 million spent up to the end of August. It 
was noted that £1.722 million had already been received from Welsh Government 

Page 158



and even without the impact of Covid, it was anticipated that there would be £1.8 
million of over-expenditure to realise savings of the value of £1.7 million.   
 
Although £1.8 million of additional funding was allocated to the Children and 
Families Department in 2020/21 an overspend of £2.8 million was anticipated as 
well as the failure to realise £688k savings that require a solution. It was stated 
that the latest statistics confirmed a further increase in demand for services, 
especially in the placements and Post-16 fields. It was emphasised that the 
situation was a matter of concern although it was not unique to Gwynedd.   
 
It was highlighted that problems continued this year in the field of waste collection 
and disposal and the department faced additional costs relating to Covid; however, 
it was hoped that Welsh Government would compensate us for the additional 
costs.  
 
Observations arising from the discussion 

 Staff were thanked for their work and commitment during the last few 
months.  

 Gratitude was expressed to Council’s front-line staff. In terms of the 
Education Department, it was added that cleaning and catering costs had 
risen significantly as a result of Covid, and it was asked if these types of 
costs would be compensated by the Government. It was noted that this type 
of costs would be funded as it was a cost as a result of the virus.  

 
 

12.  CAPITAL PROGRAMME 2020/21 - END OF AUGUST 2020 REVIEW 
 

The report was presented by Cllr. Ioan Thomas   
 
DECISION  

 To accept the report on the end of August review (31 August 2020 position) 
of the capital programme.  

 To approve funding the revisions as shown in part 4 of the report, namely:  

 use of various sources, worth a total of £3,646,000, to fund actual 
slippages from 2019/20 

 a reduction of £558,000 in the use of borrowing, 

 an increase of £7,105,000 in the use of grants and contributions,  

 no change in the use of capital receipts,  

 an increase of £53,000 in the use of revenue contributions,  

 no change in the use of the capital reserve, and  

 an increase of £283,000 in the use of renewal funds and others.   
 

DISCUSSION 
The report was submitted, noting that its main purpose was to present the capital 
programme and to approve the relevant funding sources. It was added that the 
impact of Covid was to be seen on the capital programme with only 13% of the 
budget spent up to the end of August.  
 
It was emphasised that the Council had firm plans in place to invest approximately 
£44m this year with £17m funded by attracting specific grants. It was stated that it 

Page 159



was anticipated that there would be slippage of £9.4 million this year to the 
following year; however, there would be no financial loss. The additional grants 
that had been attracted were noted and these included £2.3m in Phase II 
Homelessness Grant, £2.2m 21st Century Schools Grant and £1.3m in Grants 
from the Local Transport Fund and Active Travel Fund.  
 
Observations arising from the discussion 

 Attention was drawn to the Schools Grant and it was stated that this funding 
was to renovate one of the county's secondary schools. The importance of 
such projects was stressed to ensure support for young people.  

 It was highlighted that £100m capital funding over the three financial years 
2020/21 - 2022/23 was significant and it was expected that there would be 
slippage this year. It was noted that there was pride that there was so much 
investment within the county.  
 

13.  FINANCIAL PLANNING 
 

The report was presented by Cllr. Ioan Thomas   
 
DECISION  
Approved - the procedure and timetable to produce the 2021/22 Budget, while 
noting that financial planning was extremely challenging, and therefore if there was 
a funding gap to balance the 2021/22 budget, that the Council would use 
contingencies and reserves to mitigate resource losses in the short-term.  

DISCUSSION 
 
The report was submitted noting that it outlined the procedure to produce the 
2021/22 budget in this year's unprecedented context. It was stated that the 
department was currently identifying 2021/22 expenditure needs and bids for 
additional resources would come before the Cabinet soon.  
 
Since the agenda for this meeting was published, it was stated that it had become 
apparent that the UK Government would not publish an autumn 'Budget'; however, 
the Treasury was to hold a one-year Comprehensive Spending Review. It was 
noted that the Welsh Government intended to publish the local authorities' draft 
settlement in December, with the final settlement in March. It was added that this 
was a challenging schedule for local authorities, with an extended period of 
financial uncertainty. However, it was stated that Gwynedd Council would be 
starting from a relatively robust financial base.  
 
The 'devilish dozen' list of uncertain financial issues faced by the Council was 
outlined, including the impact of Covid, Brexit and the trends of price inflation. It 
was stated that financial planning would be extremely challenging and it was 
elaborated that the gap in the budget could be up to £8m; however, Gwynedd's 
firm budgetary base should allow us to 'bridge' in the short-term.  
 
It was suggested that the Council was anxious to avoid giving unnecessary 
consideration to lists of savings and cuts during a second wave of the pandemic 
and if there is a funding gap to balance the 2021/22 budget for now. It was 
recommended for the Council to consider using contingency budgets and funds to 
alleviate the loss of resources and to increase the Council Tax by 3.5%.  

Page 160



 
In the longer term, the contingency funds would need to be replenished, so that 
they were available in the future. It was stated that when there was less 
uncertainty it would be possible to establish plans for the medium term. The 
schedule of reports to the Cabinet was highlighted and it was noted that a series of 
member consultation seminars would be held virtually in January. The time-
schedule to set the budget was outlined.  
 
Observations arising from the discussion 

 It was stated that it was an uncertain period to budget for the future.  

 The importance of January seminars for members was highlighted, as it 
was an opportunity for members to give their views on the budget.   

 It was noted that the Council was in a comparatively strong position, due to 
the firm base, to buy time.   

 The finance team were thanked for their work.  
 

14.  EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC 
Resolved to exclude the press and public from the meeting during the discussion 
on the following item due to the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined 
in paragraph 12 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972 - Information 
regarding a specific individual.  

 
This paragraph is relevant as the report includes information about a specific 
individual who has a right to privacy during the appointment procedure. There is 
no public interest that calls for disclosing personal information about these 
individuals which would outweigh the rights of these individuals at this point. 
Consequently, the public interest in maintaining the exemption outweighs the 
public interest in disclosing the information. 
 

 
15.  APPOINTMENT OF SENIOR OPERATIONAL CORONER 

 
The report was presented by Cllr. Nia Jeffreys   
 
DECISION  

1. To authorise the Head of Legal Services, subject to the confirmation of the 
Chief Coroner and the Lord Chancellor, to determine conditions and to 
appoint Kate Sutherland, the existing Assistant Coroner of the North West 
Wales Area to act as a Senior Coroner until the authority had addressed the 
question of merging areas and until a permanent Senior Coroner had been 
appointed. 

2. To authorise the Head of Legal Services to hold a review to consider the 
propriety of merging the North West Wales Coroner area with other areas, 
including commencing discussions with the North Wales Councils, along 
with any other relevant stakeholders, the Chief Coroner and the Ministry of 
Justice, and to emphasise the importance of having a Senior Coroner who 
could maintain the service through the medium of Welsh and await a report 
back on the findings and the way forward.     

 
 
 

Page 161



DISCUSSION 
 

The report was discussed.  

 
 

 
The meeting commenced at 1.00pm and concluded at 4.00pm.  

 
 

 

CHAIR 
 

 
 

Page 162



 

 GWYNEDD COUNCIL CABINET 

 

 

Report to a meeting of Gwynedd Council Cabinet 

1 THE DECISION SOUGHT 

The Cabinet is asked to note and accept the information in the report. 

2 THE REASON FOR THE NEED FOR A DECISION 

The purpose of this report is to provide an update on the work that is 
ongoing in the field of equality as a result of the Strategic Equality Plan 
2016-20, and more widely.  The report is an accurate record of what has 
been done during the year. 
 
It is also a statutory duty on the Council to complete an Annual Report and 
to note employment information each year (Equality Act 2010). 
 
As this is the last Annual Report for the 2016-20 Plan it includes an 
assessment of the work undertaken over the four years and also 
recognises the relationship with the 2020-24 Statutory Equality Plan which 
was adopted by the Cabinet on 10 March 2020. 
 

3 INTRODUCTION 
 
In March 2016, the Council published its Strategic Equality Plan for the 
period of 2016-20 in order to reduce inequality between people who have 
equality characteristics and the rest of society.  Those characteristics are: 

 Age 

 Gender reassignment 

 Gender  

 Race – including ethnic or national origin, colour or nationality 

 Disability 

 Pregnancy and maternity 

 Sexual orientation 

 Religion or belief - including lack of belief 

 Marriage and civil partnership 

 
  

Date of meeting:  3 November 2020  

Cabinet Member:  Councillor Nia Jeffreys 

Contact Officer: Delyth G Williams, Equality and Policy Officer 

Contact Telephone 
Number: 

01286 679708 

Title of Item: Annual Equality Report 2019-20 

 

Page 162

Agenda Item 6



 
(Equality Act 2010) 
 
In the Strategic Equality Plan, the Council noted four objectives to work 
towards over the next four years.   The objectives were chosen based on a 
variety of evidence including internal information, the voice and 
participation of members of the public and data on equality characteristics. 
A fifth objective (the last in the list below) was added in the 2017-18 Annual 
Report, again on the basis of evidence. 
 
The objectives are:  
 

 Improve our arrangements to discover and use the opinion of people 
who share equality characteristics  

 Improve our equality impact assessment arrangements 

 Create circumstances for people from different backgrounds to 
represent the people of Gwynedd by standing in an election to 
become an elected member 

 To identify any employment and pay inequalities and to take action 
to reduce them.  

 Improve our information provision for people who do not use Welsh 
as English as a first language or need information in different 
formats 

 
The document also includes an appendix which gives employment details 
according to protected equality characteristics. 
 

4 NEXT STEPS AND TIMETABLE 

The work of implementing the Strategic Equality Plan 2020-24 Objectives 
has begun. 
 

5 ANY CONSULTATIONS UNDERTAKEN PRIOR TO RECOMMENDING 
THE DECISION 

There was no need to adjust the  Strategic Equality Plan's Equality Impact 
Assessment this time, 
 

The Views of the Statutory Officers 
 

i) Chief Finance Officer 
 

I understand that the Cabinet is asked to accept the report for 
information.  Hence, I have nothing to add to the report from a 
financial propriety perspective. 

 
ii) Monitoring Officer 

 
The annual report reflects progress and provides an overview of 
this important area. Equality considerations are embedded in the 
Council's decision-making processes and this is to be welcomed 
a propriety point of view. 

Page 163



 
  

 

  

 

Page 164



 

Page 165



 
 
 

www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/equality              2 

Purpose of the Report 

 

In March 2016, the Council published its Strategic Equality Plan for the period 
of 2016-20 in order to reduce inequality between people who have equality 
characteristics and the rest of society.  Those characteristics are: 

 Age 
 Gender reassignment 
 Gender 
 Race (including ethnic or national origin, colour or nationality) 
 Disability 
 Pregnancy and maternity 
 Sexual orientation 
 Religion or belief - including non-belief 
 Marriage and civil partnership 

(Equality Act 2010) 
 
In the Strategic Equality Plan, the Council noted four objectives to work 
towards over the next four years. An additional objective was added to the 
2018-2019 Annual Report as local evidence showed that it is something that 
requires further work.    
 

 Improve our arrangements to discover and use the opinion of people 
who share equality characteristics  

 Improve our equality impact assessment arrangements 
 Create circumstances for people from different backgrounds to represent 

the people of Gwynedd by standing in an election to become an elected 
member 

 To identify any employment and pay inequalities and to take action to 
reduce them.  

 Improve our information provision for people who do not use Welsh or 
English as a first language or require documents in a different format 
(added in the 2018-19 Annual Report). 

 

Page 166



 
 
 

www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/equality              3 

Clearly, the intention of the Annual Report is to note what has been done 
during the year in question.  However, this time, this Report as the last one for 
the 2016-20 Equality Plan, looks back on the work that has been achieved on 
the Objectives during the lifespan of the Plan.  It also identifies the relationship 
with the 2020-24 Plan. 

Lockdown as a result of Covid-19 was imposed during the last two week 
period of the plan.  Therefore, it was not an influential factor on the action plan.  
Of course, it will have an impact on the 2020-24 Plan and it is necessary to 
look carefully at our Objectives and our Action Plans and revise them as 
required. 

  

Page 167



 
 
 

www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/equality              4 

  

Action Plan 

 

Objective 1 
 
Improve our arrangements to discover and use the 
opinion of people who share Equality characteristics 
 

What did the Council promise to do during 2016-20?  

 

What is the 
timescale? 

1.1 Strengthen the Council's link to specific groups and establish 
an equality core group. Share the information that comes from the 
group throughout the Council.  

2016-17 

1.2 Share information from opinion poll exercises on the Council's 
intranet so that it is available to all. (Further consideration to be 
given to finding the best method) 

Ongoing 

1.3 Strengthen the equality element in the Engagement Handbook 
based on good practice to ensure that the services are reminded 
of the benefit that comes from receiving the views of people with 
equality characteristics as well as the duty to do so.  

2016-17 

What has happened during 2019-20?  

 

1.1 The action point was completed during 2016-20. The Equality Core Group 
continued to meet during 2019-20 focussing on giving an input into the 2020-24 
Equality Plan and the Action Plan. This has allowed us to identify obstacles and 
information that we would otherwise not have identified to be addressed in the 
Plan or vice versa. 

1.2  Information shared on the Council's intranet which is used to improve 
decisions by informing our equality impact assessments. 
1.3 Completed in 2016-17.   
 
 

Page 168



 
 
 

www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/equality              5 

What happened during the period of the Plan and what is the relationship 
with the 2020-24 Strategic Equality Plan? 

 

1.1 A Core Equality Group was established, which includes representatives of 
organisations that support different equality characteristics, in order to provide a 
specialist input to the Council’s work. Their main task was to provide input to the 
Equality Officer on various parts of her work, e.g. information on the intranet, 
equality impact assessment procedure and the new Strategic Equality Plan. 
Their work continues to the next stage with the hope of extending, strengthening 
and using their expertise when implementing the objectives.  Having said this, 
our intention is to extend the range of opinion we receive, including people who 
do not usually participate in such groups, or even Council consultations. This is 
in order to get a full picture of people's aspirations in order to improve our 
services (Objective 1 of the new Plan). 

1.2 The main information was shared but we are aware that there is a need to 
continue to improve our arrangements and to make them more accessible for 
the services. This will enable us to provide more robust equality impact 
assessments in order to ensure better decisions. It is also intended to avoid 
duplication, which leads to contributors getting fed up with the process 
(Objective 2 of the new Plan). 

1.3 The handbook was changed in 2017-18 in order to encourage managers to 
consider the needs of people with various protected characteristics to improve 
everyone's chance to have a voice. The Engagement Team has been proactive 
during the period to ensure various input within engagements and consultations. 
Considering the type of advice provided to staff will be an inevitable part of the 
response to the engagement with the public and staff in the new Plan (Objective 
2). 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

Page 169



 
 
 

www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/equality              6 

Objective 2 

Improve our equality impact assessment arrangements 

 

What did the Council promise to do during 2016-20?   

 

What is 
the 
timescale? 

2.1 Give assistance and training to officers to ensure they have 
information about their duty towards people with equality 
characteristics. This should include ensuring that impact 
assessments are a part of the development of any policy, 
project or procedure before any decisions are made.  

Ongoing 

2.2 Ensure that messages that come from seeking input from 
groups and individuals with protected characteristics are shared 
throughout the Council so that they can be included in impact 
assessments.  

Ongoing  

 

What has happened during 2019-20?  

 

2.1. The Policy and Equality Officer has continued to educate officers 
regarding the duties in other ways, by talking with individuals, attending group 
meetings and management teams. Staff have appreciated this and have said 
that they better understand how to consider the rights of people with protected 
characteristics. Unfortunately, the number of staff who completed the equality 
e-module was low during the year; therefore, we will examine how we provide 
training in the field. 

2.2 The Policy and Equality Officer has encouraged officers, when providing 
them with support to undertake the assessments, to use various resources as 
information when completing equality assessments in order to improve the 
outcome. 

What happened during the period of the Plan and what is the 
relationship with the 2020-24 Strategic Equality Plan? 

 

2.1 Our impact assessment arrangements have been strengthened during the 
four years by refining the guidelines and ensuring an understanding of the 
need, which has led to more assessments being submitted to the Policy and 
Equality Officer. We have particularly strengthened our intentions regarding 
setting the Council's budget in a difficult period. Of course, this work is 

Page 170



 
 
 

www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/equality              7 

continuous and Objective 3 in the new Plan is involved with improving our 
Equality Impact Assessment procedure. It was recognised that our training in 
the field needed to be revisited and Objective 1 is involved with the provision 
of various suitable high quality training using a variety of methods. 

2.2. The information has been used as evidence when undertaking impact 
assessments but more work is needed to encourage this. Identifying and 
providing various methods of sharing the information from engagements and 
consultations that are suitable for officers and lead to ensuring good decisions 
appear in Objective 2 and 3 of the new Equality Plan. 

 

  

Page 171



 
 
 

www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/equality              8 

Objective 3 

Create the circumstances for people from 
different backgrounds to represent the people 
of Gwynedd by standing in an election to 
become an elected member.   

 

What will Council do during 2016-20?  

 

What is the 
timescale? 

3.1 Conduct a local survey to identify the elements that prevent 
individuals from standing in an election to become a local 
councillor. 

2016/17 – 
2017-18 

3.2 Act (where possible) on the outcome of the above to 
remove obstacles.  

2016/17 – 
2017-18 
 

3.3 Various methods to raise the awareness of the people of 
Gwynedd about democracy and the opportunities to represent 
them as a local councillor.  

2016/17 – 
2017-18 

What has happened during 2019-20?  

 
3.1 Completed during 2016/17 - 2017-18 
3.2 Completed during 2016/17 – 2017-18 
3.1 Completed during 2016/17 – 2017-18 
 

What happened during the period of the Plan and what is the 
relationship with the 2020-24 Strategic Equality Plan? 

 

Action plan 3 was implemented at the beginning of the Plan period before the 
2017 Local Government Elections. It is difficult to identify whether or not the 
work has come to fruition as it is illegal for us to ask about the protected 
characteristics of those who stand in an election but we have certainly 
identified that it is long-term work. One of the lessons learnt was that sufficient 
preparation in advance is required so that it is possible to engage with 
community groups about a year or two before an election, rather than a few 
months before. Therefore, we have already started to think about promoting 
diversity for the next electoral cycle and in the in the longer term in the future. 
This will be addressed as part of the long-term day-to-day work of the 
Democracy Service. 

Page 172



 
 
 

www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/equality              9 

 

Objective 4 

To identify any employment and pay inequalities 
and to take action to reduce them.   

 

What will the Council do during 2016-20?  

 

What is the 
timescale? 

4.1 A campaign to fill in gaps in the equality characteristics 
data  

 

Commenced 
in June 
2016 

4.2 Complete a pay audit  2016/17 – 
2019/20.  

4.3 Act based on the evidence from the pay audit and any 
other relevant information  

2016/17 – 
2019/20 

What happened during 2019-20? 

 
4.1 The number of staff members who have completed the new 
questionnaire (changed in 2017-18) remains low, although work was 
undertaken to encourage staff to complete it as they started using the self-
service system. 

4.2 Already completed (2016-17) 

4.3 Improvement Priority 3 in the Council's Plan, namely Reducing 
Inequality in the County, includes the Women in Leadership project. The 
project promotes the number of women who apply for and attain higher 
positions within the Council by reviewing work conditions and the work 
environment. The Council recognises that the number of women who have 
a managerial role within the Council is disproportionate with the split within 
the entire workforce i.e. 70% are women and 30% are men, although the 
recent pay audit indicated that there are no equal pay gaps.  
 

What happened during the period of the Plan and what is the 
relationship with the 2020-24 Strategic Equality Plan? 

 
4.1 Our staff monitoring questionnaire was dated and did not ask the 
correct questions regarding some characteristics, especially religion. A new 

Page 173



 
 
 

www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/equality              10 

questionnaire that responds better to the need is now live. Various 
messages were published stressing the need for this to be completed to get 
worthwhile figures to act upon, although of course the Council does not 
have the right to demand a response. Under the circumstances, it is 
inevitable that the number completed thus far is significantly lower than the 
last one. Having said that, it must be borne in mind that the information we 
gather now meets our duty under the Equality Act 2010 much better.   
Promoting the questionnaire in order to receive better figures in the new 
Plan (Objective 4). The engagement (Objective 2) will also provide us with 
information on obstacles and provide evidence on how to act further to 
improve the diversity of our workforce. 
 
4.2 The pay audit was completed, which indicated that there were no equal 
pay gaps between men and women on the Council's salary structure. At the 
time, it was recognised that it could be beneficial for the Council to 
undertake a pay audit on some of the other protected characteristics (such 
a disability or race). This was not possible at the time as a result of data 
quality, but it is hoped that the ability to undertake such an audit could be 
developed during the period of the new Equality Plan (Objective 4).  
 
4.3 The Women in Leadership project has been established, see above. 
Acting on the findings continue to be crucial in order to strengthen the 
diversity of our workforce and appears under Objective 4 of the new Plan. 
 

 

  

Page 174



 
 
 

www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/equality              11 

Objective 5 

Improve our information provision for people who 
do not use Welsh or English as a first language or 
require documents in a different format.   

What will the Council do during 2016-20 (this Objective 
was added in 2018-19)?  

 

What is 
the 
timescale? 

5.1 Engage with the Equality Core Group and other relevant 
groups to identify the greatest need 
 

continuous 

5.2 Act on what is said, if possible continuous 

What happened during 2019-20? 
 
5.1 We have identified the need to provide information in an easy to read 
format and have acted on this. Further work is required in order to identify 
and confirm the scale of the need for various other communication methods 
within the county.    
5.2 Further work is required in order to identify the fields that need action 
 
 

What happened during the period of the Plan and what is the 
relationship with the 2020-24 Strategic Equality Plan? 
 
5.1 A considerable amount of research was undertaken in order to identify 
different methods and to examine specific needs within the county but the 
picture remains unclear. Although there is no specific Objective in the new 
plan about this subject, it is expected that we will collect information to fill 
the gap with the consultation held in Objective 2.   
5.2 It was not possible to undertake a lot of strategic action in this field due 
to a lack of information; however, the engagement work in the new Plan will 
be a starting point for us to ensure a suitable provision for the residents of 
Gwynedd. 
 

 

  

 

Bore da! 
Maidin mhaith         सु भात 

Goeie moarn dzień dobry 
I-ghodwa t-tajba صبح صبح 

 

Page 175



 
 
 

www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/equality              12 

Has the Council done anything else?  

 

As each one of us possesses at least 5 protected characteristics, every part of 
the Council's work contributes towards well-being based on equality.   

However, a fair amount of the Council's day-to-day work is also involved with 
meeting the needs of people with specific protected characteristics.  See 
below some examples of what the Council, usually in partnership with other 
organisations, has done to promote equal opportunities or to promote a better 
understanding between people with a specific characteristic and people who 
do not share this characteristic. 

 
An exhibition by Merched Chwarel was held at Storiel, Bangor, 
in May. Their work was influenced by north Wales quarries 
and they examine the real presence of women in an 
environment that was a masculine domain. The artists held 
talks as part of the exhibition. (Protected characteristic: 

Gender - women) 

 
Some pupils from Ysgol Nefyn went on a special Easter 
egg hunt at the Plas Hafan Residential Home as part of 
Gwynedd Council and Bangor University's Bridging the 
Generations project. (Protected characteristic: Age, 
promoting a good relationship between generations) 

 
Gwynedd Council launched a new Menopause Policy for staff 
on World Menopause Day (18 October). As more than two 
thirds of Council staff are women, it is a source of pride for 
the authority to be able to break this new mould. (Protected 
characteristic: Gender - women) 
 

Page 176



 
 
 

www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/equality              13 

A Gwynedd Council Residential Homes' Sports Day 
was held on a joint basis with DementiaGo in October. 
The teams, which included staff and residents from the 
areas of Arfon, Dwyfor and Meirionnydd, took part in a 
number of sports including Boccia, skittles and walking 
during the week. 
 

 Eight members of the Friends of 
Penygroes group collaborated with some 
year 4 pupils from Ysgol Bro Lleu during 
the summer in a campaign to dispose of 

litter and to draw attention to this problem in the community. (Protected 
characteristic - Age, promoting a good relationship between generations) 
 
 The ‘Be nawn ni heddiw’ scheme was started in Dyffryn Nantlle to hold 
various activities with an emphasis on people who find it difficult to leave the 
house.  The 'O Ddrws i Ddrws' bus transports the residents to and from the 
activity. Financial sponsorship from Gwynedd 
Council's ‘Integrated Care Fund’ means that the 
cost is low for the individual. The Cymydmaen Cyf. 
company runs a similar successful scheme in Pen 
Llŷn. (Protected characteristic: Age - older people, 
Disability, promotes good relationships within the 
community) 
 

Gwynedd Council launched a ‘Looking after someone?’ 
booklet at the Annual Gwynedd Older People's 
Conference in November. It brings together useful 
information and details about the available services 
and support for carers. The aim is to help carers to 
cope with their responsibilities and it includes a range 
of useful information (Protected characteristic: Age - 

older people, Disability - carers) 
 

Page 177



 
 
 

www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/equality              14 

 Some of Gwynedd's youth workers and Byw'n Iach 
staff assisted the Barmouth Community Club to 
hold a successful bingo night, with the help of the 
local PCSO and local businesses. Over £835 was 
collected towards the ‘Josh’s Lighthouse Project’, 
which raises awareness of self-harm and suicide 
among young people. Josh's family was there on 
the night to support the event. Barclays Bank will 
contribute match funding and will donate it to the Gwynedd and Anglesey Mind 
charity, which promotes better mental health and well-being for all. In addition, 
those who were organising the event were given the opportunity to complete 
the Agored Cymru Teamwork accreditation. (Protected characteristic: Age - 
young people) 
 

 In November, the Galwch Acw shop was opened in 
Caernarfon by the Learning Disability Service. It 
combines employment and training opportunities for 
adults with learning disabilities with a message 
about the importance of sustainable living. It sells 
upcycled and hand-made goods. It is also intended 

to develop a community centre to help reduce loneliness within society.  
Galwch Acw was selected to take part in the S4C programme, Prosiect Pum 
Mil. The television company gave the scheme £5,000 and filmed the people 
behind the initiative along with a number of volunteers as they restored the 
shop. (Protected characteristic - disability) 
 

In order to address a huge increase of 575% in 
homelessness cases over the last 20 years, the 
Youth Services have commissioned GISDA to try to 
reach young people before they become homeless.  
Young 16-24 year old adults will be given access to 
proactive sessions in schools, and youth and 
community projects. The sessions will provide a 
snapshot of the bleak reality of life as a homeless person, the reasons why 
people are homeless, along with some of the life skills required, such as how 
to live on a budget. The aim is to raise awareness of the support available to 
those in crisis, in an attempt to encourage young people to ask for help 
sooner. (Protected characteristic: Age - young people) 

Page 178



 
 
 

www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/equality              15 

 The Council has undertaken upgrading work valued 
at £120,000 at Plas Hedd, Bangor.  Part of the home 
has been adapted to create a suitable unit to provide 
specialist support for up to seven people with 
dementia. It includes a 'respite room', which means 
that users can come in for up to a fortnight in order to 

provide respite for their families.  The Aber Unit will ensure dedicated provision 
for people who live with dementia in the area and ensure specialist care as 
close as possible to their families (Protected characteristic: Disability) 
 
In February 2020, the Frân Wen Theatre Company worked with 
young people who have resettled in Gwynedd from Syria. The 
theme of the event was Fi di Fi ('I am Me') and they used the 
arts to encourage an understanding of the importance of well-
being. The young people provided a short film, which discussed 
some of the things that mattered to them. (Protected 
characteristics: Race, Age – young people)  

 
The Council has provided a £2000 grant to GISDA to fund 
a Co-ordinator for the LGBT+ Club to ensure its 
prosperity. The group gives a valuable opportunity for 

young Lesbian, Gay, Bisexual and Transgender people to meet and socialise 
with like-minded people. Additionally, it works with other local initiatives and 
organisations to offer opportunities in creative and artistic fields. These 
activities are a very useful consultation tool, a good forum to share feelings in 
an artistic manner and are activities that give members a lot of enjoyment. 
(Protected characteristics: Sexual Orientation, Gender Reassignment) 

The Council promoted a number of national or international days, 
e.g. World Anti-Slavery Day on 18 October. 
 

  

Fi di 
Fi 

Page 179



 
 
 

www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/equality              16 

 

Complaints and Concerns 

Three official complaints were received during the year. 

a) A complaint from a traveller about the handling of racism with regards to 
a planning application. It was responded with the explanation that there 
were no grounds for the complaint. 

b) A complaint from a wheelchair user regarding access to a polling station.  
It was responded with an apology explaining that the usual location was 
unavailable and that lessons would be learnt. 

c) A complaint on behalf of a blind person about bins always being left in a 
different place after being emptied. It was apologised and promised to 
be more careful when returning the bins. 

 

Equality Information 

See appendix 2 for Council staff monitoring figures 

Unfortunately, the number of staff members who have completed the new form 
has not sufficiently increased. A campaign to encourage completion of the 
form is an important part of Objective 4 in the new Strategic Equality Plan. It is 
necessary to have as many staff members as possible to complete the 
questionnaire in order to be able to act properly on any arising matters. 

Further information 

Page 180



Appendix 1 

 

 

The Council has a duty, according to the Equality Act 2010, to provide employment 

information annually.  This is the information for 2019-20. 

 

1. Details of the workforce in general 

30.3% of the Council's staff have filled in an optional equality questionnaire, and 

the following figures are based on these unless noted differently.   The 

information about the equality characteristics are as follows: 

 

Gender:  

Which of the following describes you best?  % of the 

Sample 

% of the 

Workforce 

Female 69.7 21.1 

Male 29.5 8.9 

Other / I think of myself in another way 0.1 0.1 

I prefer not to say 0.7 0.2 

Total 100.0 30.3 

 

Nationality or National Identity: 

Which of the following describes you best?  % of the 

Sample 

% of the 

Workforce 

Scottish 0.4 0.1 

Welsh 90.2 27.4 

Northern Irish 0.2 0.1 

British 5.0 1.5 

English 2.1 0.6 

Other 1.1 0.3 

I prefer not to say 1.0 0.3 

Total 100.0 30.3 

 

 

 

 

 Staff Information 2019-2020 

Page 181



Appendix 1 

Race: 

Which of the following describes you best?  % of the 

Sample 

% of the 

Workforce 

White 98.2 29.8 

Black - Caribbean  - - 

Black - African - - 

Black - Other - - 

Gypsies or Irish Travellers - - 

Mixed - White and Black Caribbean 0.1 0.02 

Mixed - White and Black African - - 

Mixed - White and Asian 0.1 0.03 

Mixed - Other 0.1 0.02 

Asian - Indian - - 

Asian - Pakistani 0.1 0.02 

Asian - Bangladeshi 0.1 0.03 

Asian - Chinese -  - 

Asian - Other 0.1 0.03 

Other 0.2 0.1 

I prefer not to say 1.0 0.3 

Total 100.0 30.3 

 

Sexual Orientation:  

Which of the following describes you best?  % of the 

Sample 

% of the 

Workforce 

Bisexual 0.3 0.1 

Gay Man 0.5 0.2 

Gay Woman / Lesbian 0.3 0.1 

Heterosexual or 'Straight' 95.7 29.0 

Other 0.3 0.1 

I prefer not to say 2.9 0.8 

Total 100.0 30.3 

 

Religion: 

Which of the following describes you best?  % of the 

Sample 

% of the 

Workforce 

Atheist 2.5 0.8 

Buddhist 0.1 0.03 

Christian 57.9 17.6 

No Religion 31.4 9.5 

Muslim 0.2 0.1 

Jewish - - 

Page 182



Appendix 1 

Hindu - - 

Other 2.4 0.7 

I prefer not to say 5.5 1.6 

Total 100.0 30.3 

 

Marital Status:  

Are you married, or in a civil partnership?  % of the 

Sample 

% of the 

Workforce 

No  39.7 12.0 

Yes 56.7 17.2 

I prefer not to say 3.6 1.1 

Total 100.0 30.3 

 

Disability: 

Do you consider yourself as a disabled person? % of the 

Sample 

% of the 

Workforce 

No  94.9 28.8 

Yes 2.5 0.7 

I prefer not to say 2.6 0.8 

Total 100.0 30.3 

 

Gender identity: 

Has your sexual identity changed from what you 

were assigned at birth?  

% of the 

Sample 

% of the 

Workforce 

No 96.9 29.4 

Yes 1.4 0.4 

I prefer not to say 1.7 0.5 

Total 100.0 30.3 

 

Age: 

 % of the 

Sample 

% of the 

Workforce 

16-19 0.6 0.2 

20-24 3.9 1.2 

25-29 10.3 3.1 

30-34 10.3 3.1 

35-39 11.6 3.5 

40-44 12.3 3.7 

Page 183



Appendix 1 

45-49 15.3 4.6 

50-54 13.8 4.2 

55-59 12.9 3.9 

60-64 5.8 1.8 

65-69 1.4 0.4 

70-74 0.2 0.1 

I prefer not to say 1.6 0.5 

Total 100.0 30.3 

 

2. Nature of the Posts 

There is only a need to note a gender equality characteristic here.  

 

a) Numbers employed according to posts: 

Analysis not available 

 

b) Numbers employed according to salary scale: 

 

 % 

Female 

% Male % Other / I 

think of 

myself in 

another 

way 

% I prefer 

not to say 

% of the 

Sample 

% of the 

Workforce 

Basic Scale (BS) 28.2 5.6 - 0.2 34.0 10.3 

Officers (O) 17.3 10.8 - 0.3 28.4 8.6 

Senior Officers 

(SO) 

12.0 8.2 0.05 0.2 20.5 6.2 

Senior Managers 

(SM) 

0.4 0.9 0.05 - 1.3 0.4 

Chief Officers 0.2 0.3 - - 0.5 0.2 

Teachers 

(Including 

unqualified and 

supply) 

7.9 1.7 - - 9.6 2.9 

Headteachers / 

Deputy 

Headteachers 

2.2 1.2 - - 3.4 1.0 

Soulbury 1.5 0.8 - - 2.3 0.7 

Total 69.7 29.5 0.1 0.7 100.0 30.3 

Page 184



Appendix 1 

 

c) Number employed according to salary range: 

 

Based on the salary of Full Time Equivalent (FTE) persons, and not necessarily the 

actual salary they receive.  

 % 

Female 

% Male % Other 

/ I think 

of myself 

in 

another 

way 

% I 

prefer 

not to 

say 

% of the 

Sample 

% of the 

Workforce 

£10,000 - £19,999  28.2 5.6 - 0.3 34.1 10.3 

£20,000 - £29,999  14.9 7.3 - 0.1 22.3 6.8 

£30,000 - £39,999  20.6 11.0 0.05 0.2 31.9 9.7 

£40,000 - £49,999  3.2 3.1 0.05 0.1 6.4 1.9 

£50,000 - £59,999  2.3 1.5 - - 3.8 1.1 

£60,000 - £69,999  0.3 0.6 - - 0.9 0.3 

£70,000 - £79,999  0.1 0.2 - - 0.3 0.1 

£80,000+  0.1 0.2 - - 0.3 0.1 

Total 69.7 29.5 0.1 0.7 100.0 30.3 

 

 

ch) Number employed according to contract type 

 % 

Female 

% Male % Other / I 

think of 

myself in 

another 

way 

% I 

prefer 

not to 

say 

% of the 

Sample 

% of the 

Workforce 

Fixed Term 3.0 1.5 - 0.1 4.6 1.4 

Casual 2.6 0.5 - - 3.1 0.9 

Permanent 64.1 27.5 0.1 0.6 92.3 28.0 

Total 69.7 29.5 0.1 0.7 100.0 30.3 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 185



Appendix 1 

d) Number employed according to work patterns 

 % 

Female 

% Male % Other / I 

think of 

myself in 

another 

way 

% I 

prefer 

not to 

say 

% of the 

Sample 

% of the 

Workforce 

Full-time 39.1 25.6 0.1 0.6 65.4 19.8 

Part-time 30.6 3.9 - 0.1 34.6 10.5 

Total 69.7 29.5 0.1 0.7 100.0 30.3 

 

3. People who have applied for jobs with the authority during the past 

year 

Note: these are applicants who have applied for a job on-line only - it does not include 

those who have made a paper application. It includes people who are already employed 

with the Authority as well as external applicants. A person may have applied for more 

than one post and may therefore appear twice in the data.  

 

Gender Number 

Female 2,640 

Male 1,572 

Other / I think of myself in another way 6 

I prefer not to say 30 

Total 4,248 

 

 

Nationality or National Identity Number 

Scottish 12 

Welsh 3,683 

Northern Irish 1 

British 280 

English 196 

Other 48 

I prefer not to say 28 

Total 4,248 

 

 

 

Page 186



Appendix 1 

Race Number 

White 4,123 

Black - Caribbean  1 

Black - African  5 

Black - Other 0 

Gypsies or Irish Travellers 2 

Asian - Indian 1 

Asian - Pakistani 3 

Asian - Bangladeshi 0 

Asian - Chinese 4 

Asian - Other 24 

Mixed - White and Black Caribbean 20 

Mixed - White and Black African 4 

Mixed - White and Asian 21 

Mixed - Other 1 

Other 3 

I prefer not to say 36 

Total 4,248 

 

 

Sexual Orientation Number 

Bisexual 35 

Gay Man 40 

Gay Woman / Lesbian 10 

Heterosexual or 'Straight' 4,030 

Other 12 

I prefer not to say 121 

Total 4,248 

 

 

Religion Number 

Atheist 105 

Buddhist 10 

Christian 1,740 

No Religion 2,039 

Hindu 1 

Jewish 6 

Muslim 6 

Other 81 

I prefer not to say 260 

Total 4,248 

Page 187



Appendix 1 

 

Marital Status:  Are you married, or in a civil partnership?  Number 

No  2,791 

Yes 1,317 

I prefer not to say 140 

Total 4,248 

 

 

Disability: Do you consider yourself as a disabled person? Number 

No  4,045 

Yes 131 

I prefer not to say 72 

Total 4,248 

 

 

Has your sexual identity changed from what you were assigned at 

birth?  

Number 

No 4,161 

Yes 36 

I prefer not to say 51 

Total 4,248 

 

 

Age Number 

16-19 136 

20-24 818 

25-29 974 

30-34 644 

35-39 375 

40-44 378 

45-49 277 

50-54 252 

55-59 192 

60-64 56 

65-69 11 

70-74 1 

75+ 0 

Not answered 134 

Total 4,248 

Page 188



Appendix 1 

 

 

4. Council employees who have applied for a different post within the 

authority 

Part of the above figures. 

 

 

5. Council employees who have made an application for training and the 

number who were successful 

Data regarding those who were unsuccessful is unavailable. 

 

6. Council employees who have completed training successfully 

3,168 members of staff completed training during the year, be that traditional 

training or an e-learning module.  Of these 1,302 had completed the equality 

questionnaire. 

 

Gender Number 

Female 893 

Male 396 

Other / I think of myself in another way 3 

I prefer not to say 10 

Total 1,302 

 

 

Nationality or National Identity Number 

Scottish 4 

Welsh 1,181 

Northern Irish 2 

British 58 

English 30 

Other 14 

I prefer not to say 13 

Total 1,302 

 

Page 189



Appendix 1 

 

Race Number 

Asian - Pakistani 1 

Asian - Chinese 1 

Asian - Indian 0 

Asian - Bangladeshi 1 

Asian - Other 2 

Mixed - White and Black Caribbean 0 

Mixed - White and Black African 0 

Mixed - White and Asian 2 

Mixed - Other 1 

White 1,273 

Black - Caribbean  0 

Black - African 0 

Black - Other 0 

Gypsies or Irish Travellers 0 

Other 5 

I prefer not to say 16 

Total 1,302 

 

 

Sexual Orientation Number 

Bisexual 4 

Gay Man 6 

Gay Woman / Lesbian 3 

Heterosexual or 'Straight' 1,242 

Other 6 

I prefer not to say 41 

Total 1,302 

 

Religion Number 

Atheist 34 

Buddhist 1 

Christian 724 

No Religion 421 

Muslim 2 

Jewish 0 

Hindu 0 

Other 33 

I prefer not to say 87 

Total 1,302 

Page 190



Appendix 1 

 

Marital Status:  Are you married, or in a civil partnership?  Number 

No  530 

Yes 729 

I prefer not to say 43 

Total 1,302 

 

 

Disability: Do you consider yourself as a disabled person? Number 

No  1,233 

Yes 29 

I prefer not to say 40 

Total 1,302 

 

 

Has your sexual identity changed from what you were assigned at 

birth?  

Number 

No 1,264 

Yes 14 

I prefer not to say 24 

Total 1,302 

 

 

Age Number 

16-19 8 

20-24 52 

25-29 140 

30-34 140 

35-39 172 

40-44 164 

45-49 193 

50-54 153 

55-59 160 

60-64 71 

65-69 20 

70-74 3 

I prefer not to say 26 

Total 1,302 

 

Page 191



Appendix 1 

 

7. Staff members who have been part of the complaints procedure, either 

as a complainant or as the person the complaint was made against 

12 individuals have been part of the complaints procedure.  Of these only 2 

completed the equality questionnaire. It is not possible to analyse further due to 

the risk of identifying individuals.   

 

8. Staff members who have been through the disciplinary procedure 

There have been 61 disciplinary cases during the year.  Of these, only 8 

completed the equality questionnaire. It is not possible to analyse further due to 

the risk of identifying individuals.   

9. Staff members who have left the Council's employment 

609 persons left the Council's employment during 2019/20.  Of these, 102 

completed the equality questionnaire. 

 

Gender Number 

Female 70 

Male 30 

Other / I think of myself in another way 1 

I prefer not to say 1 

Total 102 

 

 

Nationality or National Identity Number 

Scottish - 

Welsh 91 

Northern Irish - 

British 6 

English 5 

Other - 

I prefer not to say - 

Total 102 

 

 

Page 192



Appendix 1 

 

 

Race Number 

Asian - Pakistani 1 

Asian - Indian - 

Asian - Bangladeshi - 

Asian - Chinese - 

Asian - Other - 

Mixed - White and Black Caribbean - 

Mixed - White and Black African - 

Mixed - White and Asian - 

Mixed - Other - 

White 101 

Black - Caribbean  - 

Black - African - 

Black - Other - 

Gypsies or Irish Travellers - 

Other - 

I prefer not to say - 

Total 102 

 

Sexual Orientation Number 

Bisexual 1 

Gay Man 1 

Gay Woman / Lesbian - 

Heterosexual or 'Straight' 92 

Other - 

I prefer not to say 8 

Total 102 

 

Religion Number 

Atheist 3 

Buddhist - 

Christian 45 

No Religion 37 

Muslim 1 

Jewish - 

Hindu - 

Other 3 

I prefer not to say 13 

Total 102 

Page 193



Appendix 1 

 

Marital Status:  Are you married, or in a civil partnership?  Number 

No  51 

Yes 46 

I prefer not to say 5 

Total 102 

 

 

Disability: Do you consider yourself as a disabled person? Number 

No  92 

Yes 3 

I prefer not to say 7 

Total 102 

 

 

Has your sexual identity changed from what you were assigned at 

birth?  

Number 

No 97 

Yes - 

I prefer not to say 5 

Total 102 

 

 

Age Number 

16-19 2 

20-24 9 

25-29 22 

30-34 11 

35-39 11 

40-44 11 

45-49 5 

50-54 6 

55-59 9 

60-64 10 

65-69 5 

70-74 - 

I prefer not to say 1 

Total 102 

 

Page 194



  Atodiad 2 

 

                     
 
 
 
 
1) ASSESSMENT AUTHORS 

Delyth G Williams, Policy Officer 
 

        
2) PARTNERS 
Who are your partners when starting or changing the policy / plan / practice?  
They will need to be included when undertaking this assessment.  
 

 People who share equality characteristics 

 Groups who represent people who share equality characteristics 
 

           
3) DATE ASSESSMENT BEGUN 

8 October 2015 
2019 Version – 18 June 2018 
 

      
5) AIMS AND OBJECTIVES OF THE POLICY / PLAN / PRACTICE 
Note why the policy / plan / practice is necessary.  Note what the Authority 
hopes to achieve.  
 

 
The purpose of the 2016-20 Strategic Equality Plan is to reduce inequality 
between people with equality characteristics and the rest of society. The 
intention is to do so by setting objectives that will ensure that the voice of 
people with those characteristics is given fair consideration. It is also 
important to ensure that equality is mainstreamed thoughout the work of the 
Council. 
 
The purpose of the Annual Report is to report on any progress. 
 
 

 
  

 

EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSMENT 

STRATEGIC EQUALITY PLAN 

Page 204



  Atodiad 2 

 

6) PARTICIPATION AND CONSULTATION 
Have you consulted regarding the change in policy / plan / practice?  What 
was the result?  Remember it is a statutory requirement to consult with the 
people who will be affected.  
 

 
We have received input through a number of sources. A regional engagement 

day was held with various stakeholders to discuss our regional objectives. 

The Council has collected information regarding people's priorities through 

Gwynedd Challenge, an opinion gathering exercise, which included a meeting 

with groups of older people, young people and disabled people. This 

information has been used in forming the following objectives but also will be 

used in shaping of our future work. 

Information from previous engagements has also been used.  

A public consultation was held at the end of 2015. 

 
 

 
 
7) EVIDENCE AVAILABLE 
The evidence can be based on local, regional or national evidence, e.g. the 
service’s data or regional equality statistics or a national report.  

  
Our evidence has come from a variety of sources including 
 
• Engagement - see above 
• The Council's internal information 
• Data on equality characteristics 
 
There is more information on this data in the plan. 
 

 
 
8) GAPS IN EVIDENCE 
Note any gaps in evidence and explain how you intend to fill them.  
 

 
We have identified gaps in evidence in the Plan and identified methods to 
correct this e.g. collecting information on the equality characteristics of the 
workforce.  We have updated the questionnaire but need to encourage more 
people to complete it. 
 
We do not feel we have enough information about the need for documents in 
different formats, e.g. Easy Read or British Sign Language. There has not 
been much demand for alternative sources but we are not sure if this is 
because there is no real demand or because people are unaware of their 

Page 205



  Atodiad 2 

 

rights in this regard.  Work is ongoing to find out more information through our 
fifth objective. 
 

 

Page 206



  Atodiad 2 

 

 
9) RELEVANCE AND EFFECT 
The relevance of the policy / plan / practice to the general equality duty and to each one of the equaltiy groups (protected 
characteristics) must be shown.  The real or likely effect must be clearly notes.  It is possible that not every characteristic will be 
relevant or be affected.   
9a)  

Equality Act General Duty  
 

Relevance 
 

The real or likely effect  

Removing illegal 
discrimination, harassment 
and victimisation 
 

Positive The Plan intends to respond to these duties and will therefore have a positive 
impact. 

Promoting equal 
opportunities 
 

Positive The Plan intends to respond to these duties and will therefore have a positive 
impact. 

Foster good relations 
 

Positive The Plan intends to respond to these duties and will therefore have a positive 
impact. 

 

P
age 207



  Atodiad 2 

 

 
9b)  

Characteristics Relevance 
 

The real or likely effect  

Race 
 
 

Positive The purpose of the plan and objectives are to reduce inequality and will 
therefore have a positive impact on people who share this characteristic.  Each 
of the objectives will have an impact by including people by engagement, fully 
take into account the needs of people by assessing the impact of our policies, 
encouraging more people to stand in elections, looking at our employment 
arrangements and improving our communication.  
 

Disability 
 
 

Positive The purpose of the plan and objectives are to reduce inequality and will 
therefore have a positive impact on people who share this feature. Each of the 
objectives will have an impact by involving people through engagement, fully 
take into account the needs of people by assessing the impact of our policies, 
encouraging more people to stand in elections, looking at our employment 
arrangements and improving our communication. 
 

Sex 
 
 

Positive The purpose of the plan and objectives are to reduce inequality and will 
therefore have a positive impact on people who share this characteristic.  Each 
of the objectives will have an impact by involving people through engagement, 
fully take into account the needs of people by assessing the impact of our 
policies, encouraging more people to stand in elections, and looking at our 
employment arrangements.  
 

Gender reassignment 
 
 

Positive The purpose of the plan and objectives are to reduce inequality and will 
therefore have a positive impact on people who share this feature.  Each of the 
objectives will have an impact by involving people through engagement, fully 
take into account the needs of people by assessing the impact of our policies, 
encouraging more people to stand in elections, and looking at our employment 
arrangements.  
 

Sexual orientation 
 
 

Positive The purpose of the plan and objectives are to reduce inequality and will 
therefore have a positive impact on people who share this feature.  Each of the 
objectives will have an impact by involving people through engagement, fully 

P
age 208



  Atodiad 2 

 

take into account the needs of people by assessing the impact of our policies, 
encouraging more people to stand in elections, and looking at our employment 
arrangements.  
 

Religion or belief 
 
 

Positive The purpose of the plan and objectives are to reduce inequality and will 
therefore have a positive impact on people who share this characteristic.  Each 
of the objectives will have an impact by involving people through engagement, 
fully take into account the needs of people by assessing the impact of our 
policies, encouraging more people to stand in elections, and looking at our 
employment arrangements.  
 

The Welsh language 
 
 

Positive There is no specific effect on the Welsh language but, of course, all the work 
will be done in accordance with the Council's Language Policy 

Age 
 

Positive 
 
 

The purpose of the plan and the objectives is to reduce inequality and therefore 
it will have a positive impact on people who share this characteristic. Each of 
the objectives will have an impact by involving people through engagement, 
fully take into account the needs of people by assessing the impact of our 
policies, encouraging more people to stand in elections, looking at our 
employment arrangements and improving our communication.   
 

Pregnancy and maternity 
 

Positive The purpose of the plan and objectives are to reduce inequality and will 
therefore have a positive impact on people who share this characteristic.  Each 
of the objectives will have an impact by involving people through engagement, 
fully take into account the needs of people by assessing the impact of our 
policies, encouraging more people to stand in elections, and looking at our 
employment arrangements.  
 

Marriage and Civil 
Partnership 
 

Positive The purpose of the plan and objectives are to reduce inequality and will 
therefore have a positive impact on people who share this characteristic.  Each 
of the objectives will have an impact by involving people through engagement, 
fully take into account the needs of people by assessing the impact of our 
policies, encouraging more people to stand in elections, and looking at our 
employment arrangements.  
 

P
age 209



  Atodiad 2 

 

 
10) ADDRESSING THE EFFECTS 
 

a) Note any possible effects from an equality perspective  
 
The plan and the objectives are expected to have a positive effect from an 
equality perspective. 
 
 

b)  What steps can be taken to lessen or improve these effects? 
 
 
Monitoring and reviewing, see below. 
 
 
 

c) Is it necessary to reconsider the proposal? 
 
No 
 
 

 
 
11) ARRANGEMENTS FOR MONITORING AND REVIEWING 
What steps will you take to review the policy / plan / practice once it has been 
adopted?  Although the above assessment recognised the possible effect, it 
must be remembered that the full effect will not be seen until the policy is 
implemented  

 
An annual report will be completed yearly to note the work which has been 
completed and to recognise any gaps 
 
 

 
12) DECISION 
 

 
Submit to Cabinet for approval of the contents, and for information 
 
 

 

Page 210



 

GWYNEDD COUNCIL CABINET 

 

 

Report to the Cabinet 

1 DECISION SOUGHT 

That the Cabinet adopts the Code of Conduct for Staff on behalf of the Council 
as employer.  

 
2 REASON WHY DECISION IS NEEDED 

The Code of Conduct brings together aspects of staff terms and conditions and 
provides general guidance on what behaviours support and drives the new 
culture that is being established within the Council. It is based on the 
fundamental principles of transparenct and working in accordance with the law.  

 
3 INTRODUCTION 

The Ffordd Gwynedd plan for 2019 – 22 refers to a project that is focused on 
reviewing all staff terms and conditions of employment during the term of the 
plan. The project was established so as to support and ensure consistency with 
the ongoing efforts to change our way of working as an organisation. 
 
Gwynedd’s residents have the right to expect the highest standards of conduct 
from Council employees, and the Code of Conduct provides information what is 
required. It is compatible with the job description of all individuals working for 
the Council.  
 
The document also reminds staff of the responsibility that is placed on all of us 
as local authority employees to conduct ourselves in accordance with the 
Statutory Code issued by the Government of Wales.  
 
Staff are also reminded of the need to take account of any duties placed on 
them by relevant professional bodies.  
 
The trade unions and the Council’s Heads of Department were all consulted on 
the development of the document, and there was clear support to its 
introduction.  

 

Meeting Date: 3rd November 2020 

Cabinet Member: Councillor Nia Jeffreys 

Contact Officer: Geraint Owen 

Contact Number: 01286 679335 

Item Title: Code of Conduct for Staff 

Page 211

Agenda Item 7



 

This Code of Conduct sets suitable standards of accountability, honesty, and 
communication, which (with the relevant policies) are an essential foundation 
for achieving financial propriety. Therefore, I support the decision sought. 

 

 
 

4 REASON AND JUSTIFICATION BEHIND THE DECISION 

 
Adopting this document will enable us as an employer to do the following: 
 

 Provide guidance on the competencies and behaviours that are 
expectant of staff, as a means of reinforcing the change in culture.  

 Provide guidance to managers in recruiting to jobs, in describing the 
competencies and behaviours that are important to Gwynedd Council as 
an employer. 

 Supporting managers and staff in having discussions about performance 
and professional development at work.  
 

6 NEXT STEPS & TIMETABLE 

If the Cabinet do decide to adopt the Code, then work will be undertaken to 
promote and communicate the contents. In addition, adopting this document 
will enable us to move ahead with the wider work programme for reviewing and 
developing our terms and conditions of employment. 

 
7 ANY CONSULTATIONS UNDERTAKEN PRIOR TO MAKING THE DECISION 

 

Monitoring Officer 
 

The maintenance of high standards of conduct is based on clearly 
communicating expectations and creating a culture where these behaviours 
are central. I welcome a document which provides  a clear summary of the 
main messages in the various Policies and Statutory Code of Conduct. Taking 
such steps contribute to a wider corporate culture of respect for propriety and 
the law.  
 

Head of Finance 

  

 

Page 212



 

Reviewed December 2019    Page 1 of 4 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Code of Conduct and 

Practice   
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 213



 

Reviewed December 2019    Page 2 of 4 

Code of Conduct and Practice  

 

1. Purpose  

The people of Gwynedd are entitled to expect service and conduct of the highest standard from all 

Authority staff and this Code of Conduct and Practice provides an outline of those standards.  

Our conduct is essential in order to ensure that we display the mind-set, the responsibilities and the 

practices that are necessary to implement the principles of Ffordd Gwynedd and this document 

provides detail on those aspects. The intention is that this Code will steer and lead on the standards 

we expect, in the aim of ensuring performance of the highest quality. 

In addition, staff should familiarise themselves with the Code of Conduct (Qualifying Local 

Government Employees) (Wales) Order, established in 2001 by the Government of Wales to ensure 

that authorities across Wales operate morally, honestly, and without bias or prejudice when 

exercising its duties. Gwynedd Council’s Code of Conduct does not supersede this document but in 

fact is compatible with the requirements that are set out.   

Employees who have registered with a professional body and/or are members of a professional body 

must comply with that relevant code of conduct, along with Gwynedd Council's Code of Conduct and 

Practice. Again, the content of this Code is compatible with such requirements.  

 

2. Scope  

This procedure applies to Gwynedd Council employed staff, whether they are permanent, temporary,  
casual, full-time or part-time staff.  The procedure does not apply to schools' staff where their 
employment is regulated by the governing bodies of schools.   In addition, it does not apply to those 
employed via an agency or self-employed consultants.  

 

3. Key Principles 
 
The Ffordd Gwynedd culture means Putting the people of Gwynedd at the centre of everything we 

do. This means that there is an expectation for Gwynedd Council staff to have the appropriate 

attitude, ability, confidence and skills in order to realise their potential.  The four principles below 

provides the context of the behaviours expected.  

 Committed  

 Personal integrity 

 Open to thinking differently  

 Proactive  

All employees have a personal responsibility to their employer and to their colleagues to protect and 

respect the dignity of the people with whom they work. Reference can be made to the generic 

expectations in the job descriptions of all staff members in order to understand more of the principles 

expected of Gwynedd Council employees.  

Page 214

http://www.legislation.gov.uk/wsi/2001/2280/schedule/made/welsh
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/wsi/2001/2280/schedule/made/welsh
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/wsi/2001/2280/schedule/made/welsh
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/wsi/2001/2280/schedule/made/welsh
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/wsi/2001/2280/schedule/made/welsh


 

Reviewed December 2019    Page 3 of 4 

The examples noted in the job description and in this code of conduct are only for guidance, and the 

lists are not exhaustive.  The Council acknowledges that circumstances can vary per individual case.   

The Council will not tolerate discriminatory conduct, including harassment, and such conduct will be 

dealt with under the Disciplinary Policy.  

 

 
 
 
Accountability 

 taking ownership for decisions and being 
accountable for their conduct at all times.  

 making the most effective and efficient use of the 
resources available.  

 ensuring that they have the necessary skills to 
achieve the roles needed now and in the future.  

 ensuring that decisions are made based on evidence.  
 acting in a timely way to remove barriers that 

prevent the ability to achieve what matters to the 
people of Gwynedd.  

 ensuring that complaints receive due attention and 
that the department considers any lessons arising in 
order to improve the service.  

 being aware of our personal responsibility for our 
own health, safety and well-being, as well as that of 
our colleagues.  

 reporting on any safeguarding issue, or any other 
issue that could potentially harm the safety or well-
being of a member of staff / member of the public.   
 

Collaboration  
 working effectively with others to achieve the 

Council's vision.  
 maintaining a good working relationship and 

respecting, acknowledging and maintaining the 
boundaries of our role as local government 
employees.  

 declaring any personal relationships or connections, 
e.g. with councillors, contractors, the media.  
 

Continuous improvement  
 showing commitment to ongoing improvement by 

learning from experiences and reflecting on our 
practice.   

 committing to the ongoing appraisal process.  
 being prepared to share experiences and knowledge 

in order to help each other to improve and develop.  
 ensuring that the information and skills are up-to-

date and taking steps to improve our practice where 
needed.  

 

 
 
 
Trust 

 acting in a way within and outside the workplace that 
instils people's trust, confidence and credibility in us.    

 contributing to an environment of trust and 
accountability in our teams by communicating 
honestly, openly and respectfully.   

 acknowledging our personal responsibility as a role 
model and public figure.   
 

Respect and Dignity 
 showing respect and dignity towards managers, 

colleagues, councillors, visitors and any member of the 
public.   

 showing respect to use of property and facilities 
provided by the employer.  

 promoting equal opportunities and constructive 
working relationships at all times.   

 contributing towards creating a fair and inclusive 
environment by being transparent and aware of any 
examples of bullying or harassment faced.   

 commitment to equality and diversity by ensuring that 
they do not discriminate on the grounds of any of the 
protected characteristics within the Equality Act 2010.  

 

Honesty 
 ensuring an open and honest relationship with others 

and behaving without bias or prejudice.  
 ensuring honesty and accuracy when completing work-

related documents, e.g. application form, timetables.  
 not allowing personal and political views to disrupt 

their work.    
 ensuring that the public funds in our care are used 

responsibly and legally.  
 informing the employer of any criminal convictions or 

unspent notices, or restrictions placed on their 
practice.  

 

Committed Personal Integrity 

Page 215



 

Reviewed December 2019    Page 4 of 4 

 
 
 
Accepting and Offering Feedback  

 seeking advice and guidance where needed.  
 being open to receive feedback and responding to it 

positively and constructively.  
 willing to provide constructive feedback to others.  
 reflecting, listening and questioning ourselves.  
 encouraging others to work in a way that is 

consistent with the principles of Ffordd Gwynedd.  

 
Challenge 

 a culture of ongoing performance improvement. 
 being aware, understanding and in compliance with 

current relevant policies, procedures and guidelines.  
 challenging the conduct and practice of ourselves 

and others that is contrary to what is expected and 
noted in this Code.     

 

 
 
 
Communication  

 maintaining relationships clearly, respectfully and in 
the most appropriate way for the situation at hand. 

 being able to adapt the communication method 
appropriately and responsibly, subject to the audience.  

 behaving in a way that does not lead to a bad 
reputation within and outside the Council (this could 
include misuse of social media).   

 dealing with information and data in an appropriate 
way, applying the necessary protocols relating to 
confidentiality, sensitivity and disclosure.  
  

 
 
 

 

Relevant Policies 
 

Code of Conduct (Qualifying Local Government Employees) (Wales) Order 2001 

Officers’ Interests Policy 

Whistleblowing Policy 

Social Media Policy 

E-mail and Internet Use Policy 

Policy on Receiving Gifts and Hospitality  

Data Protection Policy 

Safeguarding Children and Adults Policy  

Information Security Policy 

Disciplinary Policy  

Corporate Health, Safety and Well-being Policy 

Recruitment and Appointment Policy  

Fraud or Financial irregularity Policy   

Dignity at Work Policy  

Open to thinking differently  Proactive 

Page 216



GWYNEDD COUNCIL CABINET 

Report to a meeting of Gwynedd Council Cabinet  
 

 

Date of meeting:   3 NOVEMBER 2020 
 

Cabinet Member:    Councillor Gareth Wyn Griffith 
  

Contact officer:  Dafydd Wyn Williams – Head of Environment 

Department 
 

Contact Number:   32371 
  

Subject:  Appoint three Community Engagement Officers to 

assist with work deriving from the pandemic 
 
 

 

THE DECISION SOUGHT 
 

That the Cabinet agrees to underwrite the cost of employing three Community 

Engagement Officers for the Environment Department for an interim period, up to 31 

March 2022, and agrees for the Head of Environment Department to recruit as soon as 

possible. 
 

 

REASONS FOR THE NEED FOR A DECISION 
 

In order to be able to recruit as soon as possible to assist with the work of responding to 

the pandemic, by appointing three Community Engagement Officers to advise and to 

engage with communities and businesses in Gwynedd.  
 
As part of the above, to set up a training scheme for the three Community Engagement 

Officers, which could contribute towards providing the Council's Public Protection 

Services with resilience in future. 
______________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

INTRODUCTION AND RELEVANT CONSIDERATIONS 
 

1. BACKGROUND 

1.1  Following the workshop held on 10 September 2020 with Cabinet Members, the 

matters that had arisen during the pandemic were reported to a meeting of the 

Cabinet held on 15 September 2020. One of the matters that arose and required 

attention from the Environment Department and then the Cabinet referred to the 

field of Public Health, where it was noted: 

Page 217

Agenda Item 8



"The lockdown and the period that followed have highlighted a great desire by 

our residents to ensure that we address public health matters.  The demand has 

been significantly higher than the resource we have to satisfy it.  
 

Looking at these matters through the eyes of our residents, the aspiration is not 

unreasonable. Unfortunately, a decade of financial hardship has meant that we 

no longer have the resilience resources.  Consideration will need to be given as 

to how to close the circle." 
 

1.2  This report includes the Department's temporary response to the above, and looks 

at providing a short-term urgent response that will assist the work of the Public 

Protection Services by being the direct contact with businesses and communities. 

Also, we are looking at this as part of a training scheme over time, which will set 

the foundations for attempting to contribute towards long-term resilience for the 

Public Protection Services. 
 

 FUNDING AND REGIONAL MATTERS 

1.3  The situation of the Public Protection Services, as noted above, is not unique to 

Gwynedd, and recently the six Councils in the region have submitted an 

application for grant funding from Welsh Government's Hardship Fund. The 

application mostly focuses on attempting to gain an urgent resolution by 

receiving funding to employ three (FTE) Public Protection Enforcement Officers 

(Covid-19) each for the six Councils.  It is noted that these would be Community 

Engagement Officers for Gwynedd, and more is explained about their role in 

parts 1.11 to 1.15 of the report. 
 

1.4  The application was submitted by Conwy Council on behalf of the region's 

authorities, and Welsh Government has approved a grant of £426,000 for the 

authorities. The grant is expected to be shared equally, meaning a grant of 

£71,000 for Gwynedd, and the fund will be available up until the end of March 

2021; however, it is understood that this will also be extended for the following 

financial year (this is to be confirmed). 
 

1.5  The grant funding from the first bid has not yet been received (although it is on 

the way) and there is no formal confirmation of what will happen with the grant 

for the next financial year. Therefore, the Cabinet is requested to agree for the 

Council to underwrite the cost of employing the three officers on a GS4 salary, for 

a period commencing 1 December 2020 to the end of March 2022, at a total 

cost of £113,220 (including on-costs). 
 

 THE COUNCIL'S PUBLIC PROTECTION SERVICES 
 

1.6  Prior to the pandemic, there were three Public Protection Services in the 

Department, namely: 
 

 Pollution Control and Licensing Service 
 Trading Standards and Animal Health / Animal Feed Services  
 Food, Health and Safety Service (including infectious diseases) 
 

1.7  In light of the pandemic, Public Protection duties involving infectious diseases 

have clearly become one of the Council's main priorities, and therefore new 

Services have been created to support the relevant work, namely: 

Page 218



 

 Test, Trace and Protect Services - Covid   

 

1.8  In light of the pandemic, the importance of the role of the Public Protection 

Services has become more apparent in terms of protecting the health of our 

communities, as well as advising and supporting the businesses of the County and 

the expectation that we use our enforcement powers in light of allegations of 

breaching the Coronavirus regulations. 
 

1.9  The majority of the duties with regard to enforcing new Coronavirus regulations 

have been implemented by Public Protection officers, however, there is a need 

for stricter enforcement and, at the same time, visual presence is required in our 

towns.   
 

1.10  As the Public Protection Services go about examining complaints, advising and 

enforcing where there is justification to do so, it is extremely difficult to provide a 

regular visual presence out in our communities to engage with communities and 

businesses. 
 

COMMUNITY ENGAGEMENT OFFICERS 
 

1.11  In the short term, the purpose of the three Community Engagement Officers is to 

have a visual presence in our communities and towns, who advise and assist 

businesses and residents on Covid issues, as well as report back on issues that 

could arise at the time. It is intended for them to become familiar faces in our 

communities, and a direct contact between Public Protection Services (and 

other Council Departments where practical) and Gwynedd residents and 

businesses. This can then assist the Public Protection Services to focus more on 

issues that are more complex and contentious in nature. 

1.12 The Community Engagement Officers will be part of the current network of 

Council officers who work with communities such as Regeneration Officers etc., 

as well as working closely with partners such as the Police. Of course, they will also 

be an important contact with the Town and Community Councils as well as Local 

Members. 

1.13  It is intended to use the temporary period as an opportunity to invest in these 

Officers in the short term, but with an eye on the long term. Therefore, as well as 

an initial training programme (which will be undertaken by the Public Protection 

Services) in order to prepare the individuals to go out to the towns and 

communities, a programme of more comprehensive training will be drawn up for 

the full period, and this includes: 

 Training and experiences of working in various fields of work across the 

Public Protection Services. 
 Allocating officers from the Public Protection Services to mentor the 

Community Engagement Officers. 
 The above will include shadowing Public Protection officers in their day-to-

day work. 
 

 

 

Page 219



 

1.14  Appointing the interim posts would therefore not only contribute towards the work 

of the pandemic, but will also be an opportunity to attempt to develop careers 

for the individuals in Public Protection fields, which could assist the Council to 

create more resilient Services in the long term. This could be an opportunity for 

various individuals in the Council as a short term secondment. Recent 

experiences have shown that it is difficult to attempt to recruit officers for Public 

Protection Services, in light of the need for relevant qualifications, training and 

experiences, and the training programme could be a solution for this whilst 

recruiting for the long term. 

1.15  The three posts would sit underneath the Covid Test, Trace and Protect Services, 

with officers from this Service as well as the three Public Protection Services being 

allocated to mentor new officers. Although it would sit beneath the Covid Test, 

Trace and Protect Services, which have of course, as the three new posts, been 

specifically created to respond to Covid, the three posts would naturally become 

an integral part of the entire Public Protection Services. It is expected that a 

reasonable amount of time will be required for initial training and to familiarise 

with Council arrangements, before the new officers will be in a position to fully 

undertake their duties. 

2. ANY CONSULTATIONS UNDERTAKEN PRIOR TO RECOMMENDING THE DECISION 

2.1  Discussions with the Chief Executive and with the Public Protection Services.  

3. NEXT STEPS AND TIMETABLE 

3.1  Draw up an initial and a more comprehensive Training Programme for the entire 

period and allocate officers for mentoring. 

3.2  Advertise the three posts with the intention of appointing so that the officers 

commence from 1 December 2020. 

 

 
VIEWS OF THE STATUTORY OFFICERS 
 

The Monitoring Officer: 
 

No observations in relation to propriety to add. 

 

Head of Finance: 

 
In the 2020/21 Revenue Budget Review report presented to Cabinet on 13 October, I 

noted that the Welsh Government had established a hardship fund of up to £ 264 million 

towards compensating local authorities with increased costs and income losses arising 

from the Covid-19 crisis.  A recent letter from the Minister for Housing and Local 

Government recognizes the cost of enforcing Covid-19 restrictions, and agrees that local 

authorities can claim (up to the level of their offer) from the Local Authority Hardship 

Fund to increase their enforcement capacity.  A total of up to £ 2.5m has been allocated 

in the All Wales Hardship Fund for this purpose in 2020/21, of which £ 426,000 is for the 6 

North Wales authorities. It could be expected that there will be around £ 71,000 

allocated for Gwynedd, but that is to be confirmed 

Page 220



 

In order for the Environment Department to move forward and recruit suitably qualified 

staff, if it is a priority, the Cabinet can underwrite the cost of employing 3 Community 

Engagement Officers for a temporary period up to 31 March 2022. We will claim the 

relevant expenditure from the Welsh Government's Covid-19 hardship fund, where 

appropriate, but until we receive confirmation of the amount of grant that can be 

claimed, for the time being Cabinet will need to underwrite the full cost of £ 113,220 from 

the Council’s balances.  Technically, that would prejudge a one-off budget bid for 

2021/22, if the Government’s hardship fund did not cover all the cost.  It is not usual for 

the Cabinet to prejudice 'bid', but I support the proposal in the unique circumstances of 

the Covid-19 crisis, and because of the practical difficulties of recruiting for very short 

contracts. 

 

 

 
 

 

Page 221


	Agenda
	4 MATTERS ARISING FROM OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY
	Appendix 1 - EDUCATION AND ECONOMY SCRUTINY COMMITTEE DECISION NOTICE
	Appendix 2 - Education and Economy Scrutiny Committee Minutes
	Appendix 3 - Education Scrutiny Pack - Report
	Appendix 3b - Ysgol Abersoch - Education and Economy Scruity Committee Pack
	Appendix 3c - Cabinet Decision 15 September 2020
	Appendix 3ch - Cabinet Report - Ysgol Abersoch (September 2020)
	Appendix 3ch - Cabinet Report - Appendix 1
	Appendix 3ch - Cabinet Report - Appendix 2
	Appendix 3ch - Cabinet Report - Appendix 3
	Appendix 3ch - Cabinet Report - Appendix 4

	5 MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON 13 OCTOBER 2020
	6 ANNUAL EQUALITY REPORT 2019/20
	Item 5  - Equality Annual Report 2019-20
	Item 5 - Staff Information 2019-20
	Item 5 - Equality Impact Assessment

	7 CODE OF CONDUCT FOR STAFF
	Item 7 - Code of Conduct for Staff

	8 APPOINT THREE COMMUNITY ENGAGEMENT OFFICER TO ASSIST WITH WORKING DERIVING FROM THE PANDEMIC

